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TOP 10 MILESTONES OF GUODIAN TECH 2015
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Longyuan Environmental ranks first again in all three
indicators for the coal-fired power generation and
environmental protection industry
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Yu Zhengsheng pays a visit at Guodian United Power

Technology (Baoding) Co., Ltd. ERIESECEHAAMEHEE SiZERE

Longyuan Engineering Green Power Station as general
contractor for the Hainan Project commences operations at
high standards
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Longyuan Technology expands into the international arena
and achieves success in the oil-saving ignition market
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Guodian Tech ranks 16th among global new energy
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The "Chinese Brain" developed by Guodian Zhishen is applied to
the world's first 1,000-MW secondary reheating generating unit
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-— National Technology Support Scheme
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2015 MILESTONES OF THE COMPANY

On January 31, Yu Zhengsheng, a member of China’s Political
Standing Committee and the chairman of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, visited Guodian United
Power Technology (Baoding) Co., Ltd. and fully recognized the
achievement of Guodian Group in the development of the green
renewable energy industry, being the top operator of wind power
world-wide, with United Power ranking second in the domestic wind
turbine market and the sales figures of wind turbines in the USA. He
also encouraged the Company to strengthen innovation in technique
and institutional mechanisms, and to continue the development in
the green and low-carbon industry.

On March 12, Guodian Tech entered into the Framework Agreement
on the Cooperative Development of Renewable Energy with the
People’s Government of Sunite-ZuoQi, Xilin Gol League, Inner
Mongolia. The execution of the cooperation agreement is beneficial
to both the government and the enterprise, putting more effort on the
development of the renewable energy industry, and contributing to
the development of the local economy.

On May 17, Longyuan Environmental ranked first in the three
indicators issued by China Electricity Council for the year 2014,
namely desulphurization, denitrification and concession operation of
thermal plants. As of the end of 2014, the Company’s accumulated
commenced thermal plant desulphurization construction units
amounted to 99.93 million kW, denitrification construction units
amounted to 94.1025 million kW and aggregate contracted
desulphurization concession units amounted to 30.06 million kW, all
of which ranked first in the industry and were far beyond those of
other companies.

On July 27, Longyuan Technology received good news from India’s
Adani Power Limited that the No. 1 boiler of the TIRODA power
plant saved more than 300 tonnes of fuel in aggregate, which is far
beyond the contractual requirements. Meanwhile, micro oil ignition
products were also introduced in countries including Indonesia,
Zambia, Cambodia and Tajikistan, etc. through various methods,
drawing extensive attention and recognition from international users.

On July 31, the No. 1 generator of EPC project of the south-western
power plant of Hainan Guodian, for which Longyuan Engineering
was the general contractor, successfully passed the 168-hour pilot
operation, invested in power generation at a high level, realized the
target to commence operation within 13 months and created the
fastest domestic record of construction progress for the same type
of generators in the PRC. The construction project also succeeded
on the first go in the seven test runs: water pressure, wind pressure,
energizing of auxiliary power system, boiler ignition, turbine running,
generator units’ access to the power grid, and the 168-hour test run.
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On September 25, the 2x1,000 MW ultrasupercritical secondary
reheating No. 3 power generation equipment for Guodian Taizhou
Power Generation Plant Phase |l successfully completed its 168-hour
pilot operation at full capacity, and the distributed control system
(DCS) which functions as the “brain” was provided by Guodian
Zhishen. During the pilot operation period, the utilization factor of
automation system reached 100%, utilization factor of protection
system reached 100%, and Primary Frequency Control and AGC
both passed the power grid assessment.

On November 10, the commencement conference of the National
Technology Support Project “Coal-fired Power Plant Flue Gas
Integration of Ultra-clean Treatment Technology and Demonstration
Project” was held at Guodian Tech. The project mainly focuses on
studying the ultra-clean emission technique of coal-fired power plant
flue gas pollutions, and which formulated the integrated control
technology of “plasma low-NO_combustion + SCR denitrification +
ultra-low temperature electrostatic precipitator + limestone-plaster
wet flue gas double-cycling desulfurization + wet deep purification”,
will and demonstrate the application on the newly constructed Phase
I 600 MW coal-fired generator in Bengbu.

On November 23, the National Key Lab Wind Power Equipment and
Control constructed by United Power, as a supporting organization,
passed the inspection and acceptance by the Ministry of Science
and Technology of China. During the construction period, the
lab had successively undertaken 6 national and provincial key
projects, published 46 papers, obtained 259 authorized patents,
and participated in 5 national standards and 2 industrial standards
formulation.

In April 2016, Longyuan Environmental ranked first in both capacities
of the newly constructed units of flue gas desulfurization and the
units of thermal power plant flue gas NOx emission reduction, which
were accumulated from operation commencement at the end of
2015 as released at the annual meeting of Environment Protection
Branch of China Electricity Council.
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1. On October 11, the result of “2015 Global Top 500 New Energy Companies” was jointly announced by China Energy News
and China Institute of Energy Economics Research, where GUODIAN TECH ranked 16th on the list of the Global Top
500 New Energy Companies and was granted the “Outstanding Contribution Award of 2015 Global Top 500 New Energy
Companies” for two successive years. At the same time, its subsidiary, United Power, ranked 77th on the list.

2. On November 6, Longyuan Environmental and Huadian Tianren, both being subsidiaries of GUODIAN TECH, were
awarded second prize for the China Power Technological Innovation Award for “dual-cycle limestone-gypsum wet flue
gas desulfurization project technology featuring achievable ultra-low emissions of sulphur dioxide” and “power station
boiler combustion condition monitoring and comprehensive optimized control system” respectively, and United Power and
Longyuan Technology were also awarded third prize for the China Power Technological Innovation Award for “R&D of 1.5
MW ultra-low speed wind turbine generator” and “pulverized coal boiler dual-scale ultra-low nitrogen combustion technology”
respectively.

3. On November 29, Longyuan Environmental obtained a certificate and a medal for advanced units for energy conservation
and emission reduction for the “Twelfth Five-year Plan”. During the “Twelfth Five-year Plan”, the installed capacity of
production commencement of desulphurization of the Company amounted to approximately 85 million kW whereas installed
capacity of denitrification amounted to approximately 110 million kW, almost doubling those of the enterprise ranking
in second place. Among which, in-depth emission reduction for desulfurization of approximately 25 million kW made a
significant contribution for the energy conservation and emission reduction work for the “Twelfth Five-year Plan”.

4. On January 26, 2016, Guodian Tech was awarded the Most Promising Listed Company by the 2015 China Financial Market
Award for Listed Companies.
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Haidian District, Beijing, PRC

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong

Flat L, 15/F, Hong Kong Mansion, 1 Yee Wo Street Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Strategic Committee

Mr. YANG Guang (Chairman)
Mr. SHEN Xiaoliu

Mr. FENG Shuchen

Mr. YAN Andrew Y.

Mr. CHEN Dongaing

H Share Registrar

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Website Address

www.01296.hk

Principal Banks

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
(Beijing Wukesong Olympic Branch)
Bank of Communications Corporation Limited (Hong Kong Branch)

(1) Mr. CHEN Dongqging was appointed as the president of the
Company on the Board meeting dated February 4, 2016, and was
appointed as an executive Director and a member of the Strategic
Committee of the Company on the 2016 first extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on March 29, 2016. Please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated February 4, 2016 and March 29,
2016 for details.

(2) Mr. TANG Chaoxiong was appointed as the vice president and chief
accountant of the Company on the Board meeting dated October 12,
2015, and was appointed as an executive Director and a member
of the Nomination Committee of the Company on the 2016 first
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on March 29,
2016. Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated October
12, 2015 and March 29, 2016 for details.

(8) Mr. SHEN Xiaoliu was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, a member of the Strategic Committee and a member of
the Audit Committee of the Company on the 2016 first extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on March 29, 2016. Please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated March 29, 2016 for
details.
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PEETORATE PROFIEE
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Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited (the
“Company”, “our Company” or “Guodian Tech”), formerly Guodian
Technology & Environment Group Co., Ltd., was converted into a
joint stock limited liability company on May 16, 2011 and listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on December 30, 2011. The Company, together with its
subsidiaries (the “Group” or “our Group”), is the flagship platform
for environmental protection and energy conservation solutions and
renewable energy equipment manufacturing and solutions businesses
within the China Guodian Corporation (the “Guodian Group”) and its
subsidiaries and associates.

The principal businesses of the Company are carried out under two
segments, namely, the environmental protection and energy conservation
solutions, and the renewable energy equipment manufacturing and
services. The Company is a leading market player in the PRC in these
industries given its advanced technology and diversified business models.
In 2015, the Company was selected again among Top 500 Global New
Energy Enterprises and ranked 16th place, and was also awarded the
Top 500 Global New Energy Outstanding Contribution Award for two
consecutive years. The Company also ranked 209th among the Fortune
China Top 500 Listed Company in 2015 published by Fortune Magazine.

In its environmental protection and energy conservation solutions
business, the Group is the largest supplier of technology and integrated
systems solutions to coal-fired power plants in the PRC, providing
innovative and advanced technology designed to reduce pollutant
emissions and to maximize efficiencies in resource utilization, with
overall objectives of reducing the environmental impact of coal-fired
power generation and maximizing cost-efficiencies and profitability for its
customers. Leveraging on its comprehensive environmental protection
and energy conservation technologies and solutions for all aspects of
coal-fired power plants (with the core business lines being SO, and NO,
emissions reductions, water treatment, plasma ignition and combustion
stabilization, and energy management contracts), the Group is capable
of providing “One-stop Shop” solutions to its customers tailored for their
specific needs. The Group is also one of the leading manufacturers of
wind generation equipment in the PRC in its renewable energy equipment
manufacturing and services business, with well-established brands and is
well known for its product quality and performance. In line with its strategic
focus on providing integrated solutions and services, the Group also
provides renewable-energy related services such as the maintenance and
repair of wind turbine generators business.
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CORPORATE PROFILE (CONTINUED

Focusing on technology innovation and industrial applications, the
Group has gained a slew of innovative achievements in relation to
significant technology and product innovation through original creation,
resources consolidation and technology development. Among its
leading technologies in the PRC or globally, the Group’s plasma ignition
technology is ranked first in the world. In the domestic market, the Group
possesses a leading position in many technologies, including wet flue gas
desulfurization, seawater desulfurization, boiler low-nitrogen combustion
and flue gas denitrification. Beijing Guodian Longyuan Environmental
Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Longyuan Environmental”), Yantai Longyuan
Power Technology Co., Ltd. (“Longyuan Technology”) (Stock Code:
300105), Guodian United Power Technology Co., Ltd. (“United Power”),
Beijing Huadian Tianren Power Controlling Technology Co., Ltd. (“Huadian
Tianren”), Beijing Guodian Zhishen Control Technology Co., Ltd.
("Guodian Zhishen”) have become well-known brand names in the PRC.

As of December 31, 2015, the Group had established 5 national
scientific research platforms including the national key laboratories of
wind generation equipment and system technology, 2 provincial-level
key laboratories, 12 provincial-level enterprise technology (engineering
technology) research centers, and 2 postdoctoral research centers. The
Group is undertaking 78 continued scientific research and development
("“R&D”) projects, among which there are 24 on-going research and
science and technology projects of outstanding systems of national
ministries and commissions and provinces and municipalities. The
Group obtained significant results in the aspect of R&D of new model
to wind generators, ultra-clean emission management of thermal power
plant, water saving and zero sewage discharge of thermal power plant,
conversion of lignite quality results and R&D in integrated energy saving
technology of thermal power plant. In 2015, the Group harvested 299
forms of new intellectual property rights, including 87 invention patents.
The Group has been granted 1,711 intellectual property rights, including
22 international invention patents and 309 invention patents, taking an
absolute advantage in the industry.

The Company believes that its strategic focus on investing in and
promoting technological R&D as a core activity to support the development
of its various businesses has yielded substantial returns, allowing it
to maintain its established position at the forefront of technological
advancements in the environmental protection, energy conservation and
renewable energy industries, and to develop innovative, practical and
cost-efficient solutions and applications and high-quality products in these
industries. The Company also believes that these industries are expected
to play a key role in the sustainable growth and development of the PRC
energy and power sector, which is integral to the sustainable economic
growth and development in the PRC. Going forward, the Company expects
to leverage on its operations in the PRC to expand internationally, with the
objective of becoming a top tier supplier of integrated clean technology
solutions and services.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
5 SR

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the
“Board”) of the Company, | am honored
to present to you the 2015 annual report
of the Group (the “Annual Report”).

In 2015, a year in which the world’s
economy underwent many complex
changes, the Chinese economy entered
a state of “new normal”, calling for further
structural adjustment. The development
of electric power is gradually transforming from scale expansion to quality
effectiveness. This change brings new challenges and opportunities
for Guodian Tech’s transformation. Guodian Tech will follow the energy
structure adjustment and technological enhancement of electric power,
and in accordance with “innovation, coordination, green, opening up,
sharing”, the five development ideals as our guidance, proposed at the
fifth Plenary Session of the 18th The Communist Party of China (“CPC”")
Central Committee, adhering to industry development direction to
cleaner and more efficient energy use, and making contributions to the
construction of the beautiful and ecological China.

Over the years, Guodian Tech has been committed to developing and
promoting environmental protection and energy conservation solutions
and renewable energy technologies while focusing on breakthrough of
a batch of key core technologies, forming a strategic emerging industry
cluster with comparative advantages, enhancing its corporate social
responsibility (CSR) capability and promoting clean electricity production.
Guodian Tech is now a leading force in environmental protection, energy
conservation and renewable energy in China’s electric power sector.

Going forward, the Company will continue to leverage on the platform
and resources provided by its controlling Shareholder, the China
Guodian Corporation and further develop into a globally recognized
supplier of products and services in environmental protection and
energy conservation solutions and renewable energy equipment and
solutions. The Company will strive to become a global leader in the
provision of integrated clean technology solutions, to maximize returns
to its Shareholders as well as to contribute further to the society with its
extraordinary performance.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | hereby would like to extend our sincere
gratitude to all the Shareholders, clients, business partners for their trust
and support and to all the management and employees for their efforts
and contributions.

Mr. YANG Guang
Chairman of the Board
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PRESIDENT'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders:

In recent years, the growth of national
power demand has decreased sharply,
while the competition in the energy
saving and environmental protection
industry has increased. The problem
of wind generation abandonment and
power rationing in the new energy
industry has been very severe. Structural
adjustment and industry reshuffle have
been constantly progressing as a result of
surplus in the national economic capacity.
Guodian Tech is also in the midst of phasing out unsatisfactory production
capacity, adjusting structure, enhancing quality to increase effectiveness.

In 2015, the Group has adhered to its strategy of transformation
development by conscientiously implementing the work deployed by the
Board of Directors and proactively coping with the tough challenges in
the market. The Group has overcome multiple challenges on many fronts
including the slowdown in the growth of the macro-economy, rapid decline
in power demand, the pressure of financing and the rising operation
costs. The Group has also solved problems accumulated in long-term
operations so as to maintain the enterprise’s steady operation. The Group
has recorded revenues of approximately RMB20,654.4 million, gross
profit of approximately RMB3,625.2 million and operating cash inflow of
approximately RMB4,910 million for the year.

In addition, the Company achieved substantial progress in respect of
the cultivation of new business. For example, two generators located
at Hainan Ledong Power Station constructed by Guodian Longyuan
Power Technology and Engineering Co., Ltd. were brought into the
national power grid with all indicators performing well, the construction
period for which only took 16 months, which has created an advanced
level of national construction for similar units; the acquisition of good
quality generator units including Jianbi by Longyuan Environmental
has implemented denitrification franchise, and the development project
of reserving 1.5 million KW of wind power has further improved the
Company'’s profit structure.

Going forward, the Company shall diligently implement the “155 Strategy”,
set up value and create ideals, through deepening reform, reinforcing
management, improving mechanism, optimizing indicators, and improving
capacity. The Company shall adhere to market-orientation, accelerate the
business combination, increase the market competence in quality, service,
cost and technique, take the economic, political and social responsibilities,
to contribute to the continuous development of Chinese economy in fields
of saving energy and environmental protection.

%

Mr. CHEN Dongqing
President
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS
P REME

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Continuing Operations BEREEK
Revenue WA 14,621,416 18,127,181 18,533,654 22,686,197 19,970,161
Profit before taxation from REFECEEBZ
continuing operations BTN 1,099,948 1,292,181 1,087,036 1,163,753 194,164
Income tax Fi (86,296) (236,168) (128,006) (197,029) (139,872)
Profit for the year from RER GBS EE
continuing operations ZHE 1,013,652 1,056,013 959,030 966,724 54,292
Discontinued operation DRIEEEER
Profit/(loss) for the year from REREERILE 2 ET
discontinued operation T8, (E518) 150,761 (22,042) (99,748) (1,103,231) (4,744,011)
Profit/(loss) for the year AREFE(BE) 1,164,413 1,033,971 859,282 (136,507) (4,689,719)
Attributable to: BB
Equity shareholders of the AR BRI
Company 840,681 692,947 557,095  (393,374) (4,639,616)
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R 323,732 341,024 302,187 256,867 (50,103)
Profit/(loss) for the year AREFE(BE) 1,164,413 1,033,971 859,282 (136,507) (4,689,719)
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) GRREAR L#EHERET],
per share (Expressed in RMB)  (518) (LA E#FI7F)
— Continuing and —RBEKEEBNE
discontinued operations WIS TS 0.173 0.114 0.092 (0.065) (0.765)
- Continuing operations —FHEREER 0.139 0.116 0.107 0.110 (0.006)
- Discontinued operation —BRIRSER 0.034 (0.002) (0.015) (0.175) (0.759)
Total Non-current assets FRBEERTE 14,730,958 20,345,067 21,051,864 20,170,875 17,616,846
Total Current assets MEEERTE 27,324,740 25,950,620 33,554,731 36,758,174 25,335,828
Total assets BEME 42,055,698 46,295,687 54,606,595 56,929,049 42,952,674
Total Current liabilities REAEEE (29,118,663) (26,763,084) (33,817,587) (37,841,594) (28,686,925)
Total Non-current liabilities FRBBEETE (1,940,956) (7,391,477) (7,906,766) (6,347,071) (6,362,796)
Net assets BEFE 10,996,079 12,141,126 12,882,242 12,740,384 7,902,953
Total equity attributable to equity  BEBMNZARD AR E K
shareholders of the Company B 8,771,546 9,281,884 9,740,266 9,243,905 4,606,464
Non-controlling interests FEERE 2224533 2,859,242 3,141,976 3,496,479 3,296,489
Total equity TS HA%E 10,996,079 12,141,126 12,882,242 12,740,384 7,902,953
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the revenue from continuing
operations of the Group was approximately RMB19,970.1 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 12.0% compared to
that for the last year; the revenue from discontinued operation of
the Group was approximately RMB684.3 million, representing a
decrease of 76.6% compared to that for the last year.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the gross profit from
continuing operations of the Group was approximately RMB3,806.1
million, representing a decrease of approximately 7.1% compared
to that for the last year; the gross loss from discontinued operation
of the Group was approximately RMB180.9 million, representing a
decrease of 200.4% compared to that for the last year.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the operating profit from
continuing operations of the Group was approximately RMB911.0
million, representing a decrease of approximately 53.9% compared
to that for the last year; the operating loss from discontinued
operation of the Group was approximately RMB4,338.1 million,
representing an increase of approximately 470.4% compared to that
for the last year.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company was approximately RMB4,639.6
million, as compared to a loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company of approximately RMB393.4 million, representing an
increase of approximately 1,079.4% for the last year.

The Board recommends not to distribute dividends for the year
ended December 31, 2015.

MR EME(E)
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R am L AT

Certain statistical data and other information relating to the PRC
and the industries in which the Group operates contained in, for
instance, the section entitled “Key Industry Developments” in this
announcement, have been derived from various publicly available
official publications. The Company believes that these sources
are appropriate and has taken reasonable care in extracting and
reproducing such information. The Company has no reason to believe
that such information is false or misleading or that any material
fact has been omitted that would render such information false or
misleading. The information has not been independently verified by
the Company or any other relevant party. The Company makes no
representation as to the accuracy of the information contained in
such sources, and which may not be consistent with other information
compiled within or outside the PRC. Accordingly, such information
may not be accurate and should not be unduly relied upon for your
investment in the Company.

The annual report contains certain forward-looking statements and
information relating to the Group or the Company that are based on
the management’s belief and assumptions. The words “anticipate,”
“believe,” “expect,” “going forward” and similar expressions, as they
relate to the Company, the Group or the Company’s management,
are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Such statements
reflect the current views of the Company’s management with respect
to future events and are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and
assumptions. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties
materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, the
Group’s business, financial condition and results of operations may
be adversely affected and may vary materially from those described
herein as anticipated, believed or expected.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2015 INDUSTRY AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Key Industry Developments

In 2015, the Chinese economy entered into a new normal of medium
and high speed growth. At present and in a future period, the situation
of the world economy will be more complicated and variable. In the
Central Economic Working Conference, General Secretary Xi Jinping
comprehensively elaborated on the new normal of economic growth
in China, and pointed out that the Chinese economy is in the historical
stage of “three-stage” combination: economic growth transferred from
high speed to medium and high speed, economic development mode
transferred from scale and speed oriented extensive growth to quality and
efficiency oriented intensive growth, economic structure transferred from
increment and capacity expansion to deep adjustment combining stock
adjustment and increment optimization, economic development motive
transferred from traditional growth points to new growth points. The new
normal of economy urges new normal of electric power. The electric power
market entered the “double-low” channel of low growth and low utilization
hours. The development of electric power sped up from scale expansion
to quality and benefit orientation, with increased focus on structural layout
optimization and clean and highly efficient development.

The National Energy Administration canceled the unapproved projects
in the second batch of wind power project approval plan, totaling
2.2626 million KW, amongst which 346.5 thousand KW was from China
Guodian Corporation. The National Energy Administration released the
Notice on Requirements for Cancellation of Unapproved Projects in
the Second Batch Wind Power Project Approval Plan on January 12,
2015. From January 1, 2015 onwards, the projects which were listed
in the second batch wind power project approval plan in the “Twelfth
Five-Year” Plan but which had not been approved will not be included in
the approval plan, and qualification for approval will be cancelled. If the
project approval construction is re-launched, the project must re-apply for
an approval plan. The wind power projects cancelled involve 51 projects
in 16 provinces (autonomous region, municipality), totaling 2.2626 million
KW, amongst which 5 projects totaling 346.5 thousand KW belonged to
China Guodian Corporation, accounting for 9.8% and 15.3% of the number
and capacity of projects cancelled respectively.

(CONTINUED)
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEmEDN (&)

The 3rd Session of the 12th National People’s Congress was held in
Beijing. The 2015 Government Work Report was passed, and expected
GDP growth goal is approximately 7%. The report proposed to implement
“Made in China 2025, insisting on driving innovation, intelligent
transformation, foundation enhancement, and green development, and
accelerate transforming from large nation of manufacture to powerful
nation of manufacture, implement key projects involving high-end
equipment, information network, integrated circuit, new energy, new
materials, biological medicine, aircraft engine and gas turbine, and
cultivating a batch of emerging industries into leading industries,
formulating “Internet +” action plan, promoting combination of mobile
internet, cloud computing, big data, Internet of Things and the modern
manufacturing industry, facilitating healthy development of e-commerce,
industrial internet and internet finance, and leading internet enterprises to
expand into the international market.

Meanwhile, the report also pointed out that environmental pollution is
disastrous for people’s livelihood, poses a concern, and should be treated
strictly. In 2015, the CO, emission strength reduced over 3.1%, COD
(Chemical Oxygen Demand) and ammonia nitrogen emission reduced
approximately 2%, and SO, and NO_emission reduced approximately
3% and 5% respectively. The report proposes to deeply implement air
pollution prevention and treatment action plan, implement regional joint
prevention and control, promote ultra-low emissions transformation of
coal-fired power plants, and promote zero growth of coal consumption
in key regions, actively cope to climate change, and expand carbon
emission permit trade pilots; implement water pollution prevention and
treatment action plan, strengthen treatment of river, lake and sea water
pollution, water pollution source and agricultural non-point source
pollution, and implement full process supervision from the source of water
to the faucet, promote third party treatment of environmental protection,
and conduct environmental tariff legislation well. The energy conservation
and environmental protection market potential in China is vast. The energy
conservation and environmental protection industry shall be created into
an emerging pillar industry.

Several Opinions of CPC Central Committee State Council on Further
Deepening of the Electric Power System Reform (“Opinions”) were
released. The “Opinions” point out that the key points and route to
deepen electric power system reform is, based on further perfecting
government-enterprise separation, plant-grid separation, main-auxiliary
separation, to develop a competitive price for electricity except in respect
of its transmission and distribution, duly present electricity distribution
and sales business to society, and duly present power generation and
utilization plan apart from that in relation to public welfare and regulatory
power; promote transaction organs to operate independently and normally;
continuously deepen regional power grid construction and study on
transmission and distribution system suited to Chinese national conditions;
further strengthen government supervision, further strengthen power
systematic planning, and further strengthen safe and efficient operation
and reliable supply of electric power.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Chinese Wind Energy Association issued the Statistics of 2015 China Wind
Power Installed Capacities ( {20155 HETE#A S5 ET) ). Wind
Power Committee of China Renewable Energy Society (/B a] B4 EER
EoFiEHEELE ) published the statistics of 2015 China wind power
installation (from January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015). According to the
statistics, in the whole country (other than Taiwan region), newly installed
wind power units amounted to 16,740 whereas newly installed capacity
amounted to 30,753 MW, representing a year-on-year increase of 32.6%.
In 2015, United Power ranked the first and accounted for a market share
of 10% in terms of newly installation units.

In 2015, newly installed offshore wind power capacity in China amounted
to 100 units and 360.5 MW, representing an increase of 57.2% as
compared with the corresponding period last year. In particular, intertidal
wind power capacity was 181.5 MW, accounting for 50.35% of the total
capacity of newly installed offshore wind power. Shanghai Electric had the
largest supply of offshore turbines, accounting for 83.2%

China lowered coal-fired electricity on-grid price and industrial and
commercial electricity price from April 20, 2015. Firstly, national coal-fired
on-grid electricity price was lowered to approximately RMB0.02 per KWh
on average in accordance with the coal power price linkage mechanism.
Secondly, the same price for commercial electricity and industrial
electricity was implemented, and nationwide industrial and commercial
electricity price was lowered to approximately RMB0.018 per KWh on
average to ease the electricity charge burden of enterprises. China will
continuously adopt different electricity prices for high energy-consuming
industries, and clarify and strengthen punitive measures in relation to
electricity price implementation. Thirdly, by utilizing the decrease in price,
dredge the significant structural contradictions in the price of natural gas
and prices of denitrification, dust removal, ultra-low emissions and other
environmental electricity, in order to promote reduction in emissions and
prevention of air pollution.

The Ministry of Finance released the Interim Measures for Fund
Management of Renewable Energy Development (“Interim Measures”).
The Interim Measures point out the fund for renewable energy
development should implement the principles of specific use of funds
and specialized management, and should be managed by the Ministry
of Finance together with other relevant departments. The key supporting
range of the specialized fund for renewable energy contains: renewable
energy and new energy key technology demonstration promotion and
industrial demonstration, renewable energy and new energy scale
development, utilization and capability construction, renewable energy
and new energy public platform construction, and renewable energy and
new energy comprehensive application demonstration. The specialized
fund for renewable energy development supports and releases locally
or incorporates into the budget of the central department via rewards,
allowance and interest subsidy. The fund mainly adopts competitive
distribution, factor method distribution and fact-based settlement
according to factors such as renewable energy and new energy nature,
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEmEDN (&)

target, investment cost and the comprehensive utilization level of energy
resources. For projects duly settled, the method of advance appropriation is
principally used for final settlement.

New Law on Prevention and Treatment of Air Pollution was passed. On
August 29, 2015, President Xi Jinping signed to release No. 31 Presidential
Decree, and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Treatment of Air Pollution revised by the 16th session of the 12th NPC
was officially issued. This law will be implemented from January 1, 2016.
The revised Law on Prevention and Treatment of Air Pollution, contains,
in total, 8 chapters and 129 articles. This law aims to improve the quality
of air, strengthen responsibilities of local governments, and strengthen
supervision of local governments. With insistence on treating at the source,
from promoting change in economic development to optimizing industrial
structure and adjusting the role of energy structure in order to perfect the
relevant system. To highlight “treating haze by technology”. The country
encourages and supports research on scientific technologies about air
pollution, analyzing the source of air pollution and trends in variation,
promoting advanced and applicable air pollution prevention technology
and equipment, promoting scientific findings commercialization, and
playing a supporting role with respect to scientific technology in air
pollution prevention and treatment; encouraging and supporting the
development and utilization of clean energy, and specially arranging
clean, grid-connected energy power. Coal-fired power plants and other
coal-fired units shall adopt clean production processes, and construct dust
removal, desulfurization and denitrification devices as support, or adopt
other measures to control air pollutant discharge such as technological
transformation. China encourages coal-fired units to adopt advanced air
pollutant cooperative control technology and device such as dust removal,
desulfurization, denitrification and demercuration to reduce air pollutant
emission. Enterprises with respect to iron and steel, building materials,
non-ferrous metal, petroleum and chemical engineering which discharge
dust, sulfide and nitric oxide during the production process shall adopt
clean production processes, and construct dust removal, desulfurization
and denitrification devices as support, or adopt other measures to control
air pollutant discharge such as technological transformation.

The State Council requires comprehensive implementation of ultra-low
emissions and energy conservation transformation of coal-fired power
plants. In the executive meeting of the State Council on December 2, 2015,
Premier Li Kegiang clarified one “critical task” to relevant departments:
before 2020, to comprehensively implement ultra-low emissions and
energy conservation transformation to coal-fired units, and resolutely
eliminate and shut down outdated capability and units not complying with
relevant mandatory standards so that the average coal consumption per
KWh in all existing power plants is lower than 310g, and in newly built
power plants lower than 300g; the eastern and central regions shall reach
these standards in advance by 2017 and 2018. Meanwhile, all coal-fired
units must reach unit energy consumption lower limit standards according
to the “Thirteenth Five-Year” plan.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The meeting requires accelerating policy incentives for ultra-low emissions
and energy conservation transformation. The enterprises will mainly
undertake transformation while the central and local governments will offer
policy support and enlarge preferential financing support such as credit,
bonds and other financial support. The air pollution prevention special
fund of state revenue shall properly support provinces with favorable
energy conservation and emission reduction effect. Meanwhile, as the
“Thirteenth Five-Year” plan is released, all coal-fired units must reach the
base level of unit energy consumption limit standards.

Notice of National Development and Reform Commission, Ministry of
Environmental Protection and National Energy Administration on Problems
Regarding Implementation of Supporting Policies for Ultra-Low Emissions
Electricity Price of Coal-fired Power Plants (FGJG [2015] No. 2835),
released on December 9, 2015. In order to implement requirements for
“promoting ultra-low emissions transformation of coal-fired power plant”
in the 2015 Government Work Report, promote clean coal and efficient
utilization, and promote energy conservation, emission reduction and air
pollution treatment, the electricity supporting policy for coal-fired power
plants with ultra-low emissions will be implemented.

Ultra-low emissions means the air pollutant emission concentration
of coal-fired generator sets basically complies with the gas-fired unit
emission limit (hereinafter referred to as “ultra low limit”) requirements, i.e.
under the benchmark oxygen content of 6%, the emission concentration
of smoke dust, sulfur dioxide, and nitrogen oxide shall be no higher
than 10mg/Nms3, 35mg/Nm3 and 50mg/Nm3 respectively. In order to
encourage and guide towards ultra-low emissions, the coal-fired power
generation enterprises qualified after acceptance of local provincial level
environmental department and complying with aforesaid ultra low limit
requirements shall be supported by proper on-grid electricity price. For
on-grid operating existing units before January 1, 2016, RMBO0.01 per KWh
(tax included) shall be added for unified procurement on-grid electricity;
for newly built unit operating on-grid after January 1, 2016, add RMB0.5
cents per KWh (tax included) for unified procurement on-grid electricity.
The provincial energy authority shall confirm the type of unit applicable
to on-grid electricity price supporting policies. The electricity purchase
expenditure increased by the ultra-low emissions electricity price policy
shall be dredged at adjustment of selling electricity price. The aforesaid
standard for rise in electricity prices is temporarily set to be implemented
by the end of 2017. After 2018, the standards shall be unified and reduced
gradually. If local governments formulate stricter ultra-low emissions
standards, they shall be encouraged to issue relevant supporting award
policy measures.

Notice of National Development and Reform Commission on Lowering
Coal-fired Power On-grid Electricity Price and Common Industrial and
Commercial Electricity Price (FGJG [2015] No. 3105) (“Notice”). The
Notice clarifies to reduce nationwide coal-fired power on-grid price, by
on average approximately RMB0.03 per KWh (tax included, and similarly
hereinafter) from January 1, 2016, and lower the selling price of common
industrial and commercial electricity within the same range; support ultra-
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low emissions transformation and renewable energy development of
coal-fired power plant, and set up a special fund for industrial enterprise
structural adjustment; to reduce the electricity tariffs for industrial and
commercial use by approximately RMB0.03 per KWh on average across
the nation, whilst no adjustments shall be required to be made to those
for bulk industrial users with a view to alleviating the burden of SMEs.
Pursuant to the Notice, the tariff surcharge on renewable energy for use
other than daily use and agricultural production was raised by RMB0.019
per KWh, utilizing in part the capacity created in reducing the coal-fired
power on-grid price for setting up a special fund for industrial enterprise
structural adjustments as an effort to help the local governments to, for
instance, settle the unemployed as a result of phasing out companies
with dissatisfactory production capacity in the coal and steel sectors.
The management measures for the special fund will be issued by the
relevant authority. As pointed out in the Notice, for the purpose of
fostering the ultra-low emissions renovation at coal-fired power plants,
price subsidies will be given to coal-fired generating units passing the
acceptance checks and complying with the requirements in respect of
ultra-low emissions limits pursuant to the provisions under the Notice
of the National Development and Reform Commission on Issues in
Relation to the Favorable Tariff Policy in Support of Ultra-low Emissions
at Coal-fired Power Plants (FGJG [2015] No. 2835). Standards on the
adjustments to electricity tariffs for cross-province and cross-region power
grid transmission were put forward in the Notice, pursuant to which,
adjustments shall be determined upon negotiation between the seller
and buyer with regard to the market pricing principle and with reference
to the adjustments to electricity tariffs in the transmitting and transmitted
regions. According to the standards on the adjustments to the on-grid
electricity tariffs for “point to grid” transmission, the adjustments can be
determined upon negotiation with reference to the benchmark on-grid tariff
standards of the transmitted region on adjustments to electricity tariffs for
coal-fired power generation. For the tariffs for “grid to grid” transmission,
adjustments can be determined upon negotiation with reference to the
benchmark on-grid tariff standards of the transmitting region on the range
of adjustments to electricity tariffs for coal-fired generating units.

The National Development and Reform Commission, “On Improving
Onshore Wind Benchmark Price Of Photovoltaic Electricity Policy, “(NDRC
Price [2015] No. 3044) (“Notice 2”). Notice 2 stipulates, with respect to
benchmark internet electricity prices of wind power projects on land,
that for 2016 and 2018, those in types |, I, and Il resource areas were
respectively reduced by RMB2 cents and RMB3 cents, those in type IV
resource areas were reduced by RMB1 cent, RMB2 cents. As for the
benchmark price for photovoltaic power plants in 2016, those in types |
and Il resource areas were respectively reduced by RMB10 cents and
RMB7 cents, and those in type Ill resource area were reduced by RMB2
cents. At the same time, it was mentioned that use of the roof for building
construction and ancillary spaces for photovoltaic power generation
projects, in conformity with the conditions was allowed to be changed to
a “full on-grid access” model, and the generating capacity in relation to
the project for “full on-grid access” model shall be in accordance with
benchmark prices for such access by local photovoltaic power plants.

2015 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

KHEBEFHETERR NHA3DE - ATEM
BEBTERE  BEP/NMIEEESE - CRE)
1R RAETEF R EEEIAINL M A E R AT
HREREEMMBUEE - RS2 T K195
o MAMKEEE LBEESNREZMR R
TROEABRBEZERES - ST EBAK
Ko MEITERRERTRETHAERARS -
BRESEEIEHBAIMIIRIT T - CBA)
LSRR EREBESRESCE - BRI ZZ R
HEZRRMR BB BN EELIFEEE
[ EB B8 HT) (B2 BI5[2015]28365F ) FTE » HIR0
BUABATABEFRBREERNRKEEHR
AETEESR -CRFRHES BESXE
ERAREE  BETSEERA  2FX X
BiEEEARIEN - ARFETHERETE o [3
B ZEN LREBRERE  J2EXEEN
REEETEBARRERHHEE - [REE X
BER  A2EXTEMERARTEEIRRE
EHEEE -

BEREENEZ(FRTESE FREANRBEE LA
1T B8 BR A 8 A0 (2B 75[2015]3044 5% )
([BH=]) - CRAZ)RE  HETFTREEL
HIISHTE(E - 20165 ~ 2018F—45 48 - =4F
ERRDPIEE2HE 308 WEERED
PRI - 2088 o ¥ HRBEEFTEE - 2016
F—f - ZEEREDBIRE1I09E 798 =
EERERK2DE - REEL - FIPREMETE
L BISEENSHANKREEIER - £FE
BHENBERTAHEE A 2ELEIER 28
TR IBENEEEMEACERBE AT
HBETEERE -



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Key Business Developments

The Group faced multiple challenges in 2015, including, for example,
China’s economy has stepped into the “New Normal”, with a decrease in
the rate of economic growth, painful structural adjustment and pre-stimulus
digest “Three superimposed” obvious stage characteristics, thermal power
industry, coal-fired power tariff cut, which directly affected the profitability
of the power generation business. The new energy industry is long past its
glory days and the issue of power restriction has posed a serious problem,
excess capacity will lead to an increase in fierce competition and reshuffle
of the industry. Both the Group’s revenues and its new contract value
decreased in 2015 and the Company is facing a huge challenge.

Environmental Protection Business

With regard to the desulfurization business, the Group entered into new
desulfurization engineering, procurement and construction (“EPC”)
contracts for an aggregate capacity of approximately 15,680.0 MW in
2015. As of December 31, 2015, for desulfurization EPC business, the
newly installed capacity of the Group was approximately 22,980.0 MW
and the cumulative installed capacity of the Group was approximately
179,055.0 MW. As of December 31, 2015, the cumulative installed
capacity was 36,610.0 MW for the Group’s desulfurization concession
projects.

With regard to the denitrification business, the Group entered into new
denitrification EPC contracts for an aggregate capacity of approximately
6,570.0 MW in 2015. As of December 31, 2015, the newly installed
capacity and the cumulative installed capacity for the Group’s
denitrification EPC business were approximately 9,720.0 MW and
123,403.0 MW, respectively; the Group’s cumulative installed capacity
for denitrification concession projects was approximately 7,100.0 MW.
In 2015, the Group successfully acquired quality power units, including
Jianbi, to operate the denitrification concession business. As a result,
the asset structure of concession was further optimized and the overall
profitability was further increased. As of December 31, 2015, the Group’s
annual production capacity of denitrification catalysts was kept on an
optimal level with a capacity of approximately 24,000.0 m3. In 2015, as
the stimulatory effect of the denitrification policy entered into late stage,
the conventional low-NO _business was quickly sluggish, the low-NO_
business dropped significantly, the research and development of the new
products of low-NO _business of the Group will help to improve the overall
profitability of the low-NO_business.

As of December 31, 2015, the daily water treatment capacity of the Group
was approximately 1.48 million tons, which allowed it to remain in the
top 20 in China in terms of water treatment capacity. In 2015, the Group
processed approximately 237.3 million tons of sewage water, including
municipal recycled water, with a decrease of 0.5% as compared with
2014, and reduced the cumulative COD emissions by approximately
91,500.0 tons.
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Energy Conservation Solutions Business

For the environmental conservation business, the supporting efforts on
general contracting for power stations business put by the Group was
increasingly significant. In 2015, the revenue of general contracting
business reached RMB2,495.5 million. In the future, the Group will actively
strive for more general contracting for power stations business including
Xinjiang Zhundong and Gansu Lanzhou projects, making them become
the supporting points of new profit growth of the Group. Plasma ignition
and micro oil ignition business remained the leading position in terms of
industrial technology. The Group entered into 13 new energy management
contracts (“EMC”) in 2015, with a cumulative contract amount of
approximately RMB205.1 million.

Wind Power Products and Services Business

The Group’s WTG sales volumes by product type for the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014 are set forth below:
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Confirmed Successful
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Investment in wind power in the PRC continued to grow in 2015. Demand
for the Group’s main product for the wind power products and services
segment, the WTGs, increased significantly in 2015. The marketing efforts
of the Group proved to be effective, which secured the leading position of
the Group in the market. According to the statistics of China Wind Energy
Association and “Analysis on Global Wind Turbine OEM 2015 Market
Share” released by MAKE, a Danish consulting institute of wind power,
United Power had an accumulated installed capacity of 3,064.5 MW from
January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015, ranking the second nationally and
the sixth globally in this regard. In 2015, the Group carried out the work
of “developing quality and advancing service” to wind turbine products.
The service quality had reached international standard such that the
Group had passed through the attestation of the international TUV service
standards. The average malfunction rate of the WTGs for over three days
dropped significantly, to 0.014 occurrence/unit/year, with a year-on-year
decrease of 57.6%, averaging a troubleshooting time of 3.6 hours/unit,
with a year-on-year decrease of 33.1%, keeping ahead in the industry.
Meanwhile, the revenue of the after-sale service market grew sharply. The
wind turbine products and service business maintained the sustained
development growth trend, and Guodian Group was among the top 500
new energy enterprises in the world.

Solar Power Products and Services Business (Discontinued Operation)

In 2015, as a result of insufficient number of customer orders for
production, the influence of the overall downturn of the photovoltaic
industry, as well as the accelerating competition of the industry of
photovoltaic products and services, and taking into account of the
relatively backward photovoltaic business of the Group, thus lacking
sufficient market competitiveness, large costs in investing in production
line technological transformation, as well as other factors such as gradual
reduction in photovoltaic feed-in tariff year by year in the future, in
accordance with the current operational, financial and market conditions
of photovoltaic industry of the Group as well as the overall future
development strategy of the Group, in 2015, the Group gradually shut
down the crystalline silicon cell production line with an annual production
capacity of 180 MW, the components production line with an annual
production capacity of 400 MW, and the thin film solar cell production
line with an annual production capacity of 60 MW. Management decided
to cease all production and R&D activities of Guodian Solar Co., Ltd in
accordance with the estimated financial position and the prevailing market
conditions.

Steadily Expanding into the Domestic Market
The Group actively cultivated new customers in the domestic and

overseas power and non-power industries and enhanced its position in the
existing domestic and overseas markets.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEmEDN (&)

The Group has made significant progress in expanding into the domestic
market. Total value of the contracts with customers outside of Guodian
Group accounted for approximately 22.43% of the total value of the
contracts entered into by the Group in the whole year. The local electric
power enterprises and the affiliated electric power, chemical engineering
and coal enterprises became new customers of the Group. In 2015, the
environmental protection sector market business became more stable,
successfully signing the first outer large-scale coal chemical wastewater
treatment system projects, orders for which amounted to RMB240 million;
in the wind generator sector, there was a rather large increase in the
orders for pitch system, of which the foreign orders received was up
to 52%; as to institutional mechanisms: exploring the establishment of
a market to develop and share the results of the mechanism, working
together and collaborating effectively to expand market reach and extend
marketing efforts.

Actively Expanding into Overseas Market

In 2015, the Group actively explored the overseas market and scientifically
enlarged the overseas marketing network. In 2015, the overseas operating
revenue was RMB180 million and the value of new contracts was RMB849
million. Currently, the Company has equity interests in a wholly-owned
subsidiary in Hong Kong and the Group mainly signed the following new
contracts in 2015:

° a 244.5 MW wind power project in South Africa;
° a power plant #1 furnace plasma ignition project in Turkey;

° a power plant 2*150MW boiler plasma ignition and stable
combustion system project in Tajikistan;

° a power plant micro oil reconstruction project in India; and

° a power plant #1 #2 furnace micro oil ignition system transformation
project in Pakistan.

Dedication to Technological Innovation and Research and
Development

The Group dedicated itself to technological innovations and research and
development to enhance core competitiveness. The dedication of the
Group led to a number of achievements in the following respects:

° Setting up a complete scientific and technological R&D system.
The Group now has 5 national scientific R&D platforms including
the “national key laboratory for wind power equipment and system
technology”, 2 provincial key laboratories, 12 provincial enterprise
technology (engineering technology) research centers, and 2 post-
doctoral scientific research centers, with incomparable advantages
in this regard domestically.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

° Undertaking major scientific projects and participating in the
enactment of national and industrial standards. Longyuan
Environmental was approved to assume the Coal-fired Power Plant
Flue Gas Integration of the Ultra-clean Treatment Technology and
Demonstration Project, which is funded by the national science
and technology support program under the Ministry of Science
and Technology. United Power was approved to assume the Key
Technological Research and Demonstration of Large-scale Wind
Power Plant Intelligent Operating Maintenance, which is also funded
by the national science and technology support program under the
Ministry of Science and Technology. The Group actively participated
in formulating and modifying national and industrial standards. By
the end of 2015, it had participated in formulating 20 international
and national standards, and 16 industrial standards. In 2015, the
Group gained a total of 299 patents, including 87 for invention.

° Greatly promoting new technologies and transforming advanced
technologies into product advantage. The Group worked hard to
push forward the integrated application and innovation of advanced
mature products, such as the desulfurization and denitrification of
the Company, plasma low-nitrogen combustion, water treatment and
automation into demonstration projects. It promoted the construction
of demonstration project in Taizhou power plant featuring “key
technology for secondary reheating of 1,000 MW ultra supercritical
units”, a project funded by the national sci-tech support plan, in
a high-standard and high-quality manner; it made positive efforts
in pressing ahead with the R&D and popularization of ultra-clean
treatment technology targeted at coal-fired power plant flue gas
emissions; doubled efforts were also made to promote the R&D and
application of PM2.5 removal technology: United Power completed
the R&D and application of 1.5 MW-97 and 2 MW-115 wind turbines
for the low wind speed areas with the average wind speed lingering
at 5.5-6.5 m/s; Guodian Longyuan Electrical Co., Ltd. successfully
completed the development and manufacture of the third-generation
converter; the Group vigorously advanced the R&D and application
of zero wastewater discharge for thermal power plants.

As a result of the remarkable achievements in technological innovation
and R&D, in 2015, the Group has established a strong foothold in this field
while winning numerous awards:

o Longyuan Technology, a subsidiary of the Company, was given the
award of excellence for Chinese patent by the National Patent Office
for “plasma ignition burner”;

° ““W"-type boiler low-NO _pulverized coal combustion” and “600 MW
supercritical turbine control and protection system key technology
and its application” were awarded second place for China electric
power scientific and technological progress;
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BB AT ()

o “Research on key technology for large-scale wind turbine unit
performance optimization” won the third place for China electric
power scientific and technological progress.

ANALYSIS OF 2015 FINANCIAL RESULTS

Please read this section in conjunction with the financial statements of the
Group as of, and for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Analysis of Consolidated Results
Revenue

Total revenue of the Group in 2015 was approximately RMB20,654.4
million, representing a decrease of 19.3% from approximately
RMB25,605.6 million in 2014. The Group’s decrease was primarily due
to the overall economic environment and the environmental impact of
industry, energy saving solutions, wind power products and services,
environmental services and solar energy products and services
(discontinued operation) all decreasing on different levels. Revenues
from environmental protection, energy conservation solutions, wind power
products and services, and solar power products and services businesses
(discontinued operation) decreased by approximately RMB1,384.7 million,
RMB564.7 million, RMB836.4 million and RMB2,235.1 million, respectively,
representing decreases of 15.2%, 15.3%, 8.8% and 76.6%, respectively
as compared to those for 2014. The decrease in revenue from the energy
conservation solution business was primarily due to the decrease in
plasma market share, the hindrance to the commencement of waste heat
recovery business, the relatively late execution time of the contracts in
relation to the EMC business and the non-execution of certain projects.
The decrease in revenue from the wind power products and services
business was primarily attributable to a slight decline in the number of
wind turbines of which the transfer testing was completed by the Group in
2015. The decrease in revenue from the environmental protection business
was primarily due to a significant decrease in revenue from the Group’s
NO, emission reduction and low NO_combustion equipment businesses.
The decrease in revenue from the solar power products and services
business (discontinued operation) was primarily attributable to the
significantly decreased revenue resulted from the considerable reduction
of new EPC projects and gradual closure of modules production lines of
the Group’s photovoltaic business this year.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CON
EIRE S TmEE D

The following table sets out the Group’s revenues by segment and as

TERDBIETEE2015%F K2014F12A31H EF

TINUED)
T (48)

a percentage of the total revenue of the Group for the years ended J*?;z’\*liilj THVARE B AR EEARERLZIA
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively: B
2015 2014
(RMB million) % (RMB million) %
(AR EET) % (AREHZT) %
Environmental protection REREREMRAR
and energy conservation
solutions:
Environmental protection RR 7,750.0 375 9,134.7 35.7
Energy conservation solutions ENRERRIA T & 3,124.6 15.1 3,689.3 14.4
Renewable energy equipment  TIE4 8RR ESIE
manufacturing and services: BRI :
Wind power products and JB\E EE o S AR 7S 8,617.6 41.8 9,454.0 36.9
services
Solar power products and KFZeEE M &R (B4 684.3 3.3 2,919.4 11.4
services (discontinued 1EEEE)
operation)
All others B EAM 477.9 2.3 408.2 1.6
Total F 20,654.4 100.0 25,605.6 100.0
Cost of sales HERK

In 2015, the cost of sales for the Group amounted to approximately
RMB17,029.2 million, representing a decrease of approximately

RMB4,298.2 million or 20.2%,

as compared to that in 2014 of

approximately RMB21,327.4 million. This decrease in the costs of
sales was primarily due to the consistent decrease in revenue for the
Group’s environmental protection, energy conservation solutions, wind
power products and services and solar power products and services

(discontinued operation).
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BB AT ()

The following table sets out the Group’s cost of sales by segment and
as a percentage of total cost of sales of the Group for the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively:

TERDAHINEZ2015F K2014F 128318 1LF
BEASHE DM AEEHEER AR EEAERR
HERANE A

2015 2014
(RMB million) %  (RMB million) %
(AR¥EET) % (AREHZT) %
Environmental protection REREREMRAR
and energy conservation
solutions:
Environmental protection IR1R 6,359.8 37.3 7,519.3 35.3
Energy conservation solutions ERRERRR T 5 2,812.9 16.5 3,307.8 15.5
Renewable energy equipment  AIE4 8RR ESIE
manufacturing and services: BRI :
Wind power products and [B\E 2= i 2 AR 7% 6,737.4 39.6 7,544.7 35.4
services
Solar power products and KI5 BeE m & AR 865.2 5.1 2,739.2 12.8
services (discontinued (BERLEEE)
operation)
All others e H A 253.9 1.5 216.4 1.0
Total st 17,029.2 100.0 21,327.4 100.0
Gross profit and gross profit margin EFREFE

For the foregoing reasons, gross profit of the Group in 2015 amounted
to approximately RMB3,625.2 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB653.0 million, or 15.3%, as compared to that in 2014
of approximately RMB4,278.2 million. The decrease in gross profit was
mainly due to the decrease in gross profit for the environmental protection
and the gross loss recorded in the solar power products and service
business (discontinued operation). The average gross profit margin of the
Group across all segments of the Group increased from 16.7% in 2014 to
17.6% in 2015. The increase in gross profit was primarily attributable to the
slight increase in gross profit margin for the Group’s wind power products
and services business. The sharp decrease in gross profit margin for the
solar power products and services (discontinued operation) was primarily
due to the sharp fall in the number of new photovoltaic EPC projects and
gradual shut down of modules production lines. Gross profit margins for
environmental services and energy saving solutions were basically the
same as the year of 2014.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following table sets out the Group’s gross profit and gross profit
margins by segment for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014,

respectively:

(CONTINUED)
EEEMNWmESIT(E)

TERD RIS EE2015%F K2014F12A31H IEF
RS EE DAL EEFNFEFZE

2015 2014
(RMB million) %  (RMB million) %
(AR EET) % (AREHZT) %
Environmental protection REREREMRAR
and energy conservation
solutions:
Environmental protection RR 1,390.2 17.9 1,615.4 17.7
Energy conservation solutions ENRERRIA T & 311.7 10.0 381.5 10.3
Renewable energy equipment R B4 RERR BRI
manufacturing and services: KRR
Wind power products and [5. % 2 o K AR % 1,880.2 21.8 1,909.3 20.2
services
Solar power products and KI5 eEE M RTE (180.9) (26.4) 180.2 6.2
services (discontinued (B#RbgEE)
operation)
All others PE E A 224.0 46.9 191.8 47.0
Total st 3,625.2 17.6 4,278.2 16.7
Other revenue HA A

Other revenue of the Group’s continuing operations increased by
RMB21.7 million, or 7.1%, from approximately RMB303.8 million for 2014
to approximately RMB325.5 million for 2015. The increase was primarily
due to the increase in subsidies from the PRC government; other revenue
of the Group’s discontinued operation decreased by RMB7.7 million, or
48.7%, from approximately RMB15.8 million for 2014 to approximately
RMB8.1 million. The decrease was primarily due to the decrease of
interest income.

Other net income/(loss)

The other net loss from continuing operations of the Group for 2015 is
approximately RMB29.3 million, while other net income for 2014 was
approximately RMB22.5 million. That was primarily because the loss on
disposal of non-current asset reduced. The other net loss for Group’s
discontinued operation increased from approximately RMB5.1 million
for 2014 to approximately RMB5.7 million for 2015 by RMBO0.6 million, or
11.8%. The increase was primarily because the loss on foreign exchange
increases.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BB AT ()

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group’s continuing operations
increased by RMB35.0 million, or 3.2%, from approximately RMB1,101.4
million for 2014 to approximately RMB1,136.4 million for 2015. The
increase was primarily due to the increase of after-sales services;
selling and distribution expenses of the Group’s discontinued operation
decreased by RMB22.3 million, or 70.1%, from approximately RMB31.8
million for 2014 to approximately RMB9.5 million. The decrease of relevant
expense was driven by decreased sales.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group’s continuing operations increased
by approximately RMB812.2 million, or 62.4%, from approximately
RMB1,301.3 million for 2014 to approximately RMB2,113.5 million for 2015;
administrative expenses of the Group’s discontinued operation increased
by approximately RMB3,230.3 million, or 351.2%, from approximately
RMB919.7 million for 2014 to approximately RMB4,150.0 million. The
increase was primarily due to the Group’s various impairment losses of
approximately RMB4,216.1 million.

Operating profit/(loss)

As a result of foregoing factors, operating profit of the Group’s continuing
operations decreased by approximately RMB1,065.6 million, or 53.9%,
from approximately RMB1,976.6 million for 2014 to approximately
RMB911.0 million for 2015; operating loss of the Group’s discontinued
operation increased by approximately RMB3,577.5 million, or 470.4%, from
approximately RMB760.6 million for 2014 to approximately RMB4,338.1
million.

Finance costs

Finance cost of the Group’s continuing operations decreased by
approximately RMB258.1 million, or 30.9%, from approximately RMB834.2
million for 2014 to approximately RMB576.1 million for 2015. Primarily due
to the decreased interest expenses as a result of the decreases in the
Group's borrowing size and effective interest rates of bank borrowings;
finance cost of the Group’s discontinued operation slightly decreased
from approximately RMB344.1 million for 2014 to approximately RMB325.2
million for 2015, primarily due to the decreased effective interest rates.

2015 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

HERZHHZ

2015%F « AEBERERLEEBRHERDHHAX
HARMB11364BETT + RO4FHHARE
1,101 4B BB MARKES5.06&813.2% + +
TEARNEBRRBEENILI  AEEMERIELEE
EBHERDEAIHARKISHET - 82014
FHPOARBIISEEBILAI ARKE23EET

%70.1% - TR2EHNHERNM O EEEEE
FIH) TR o
TS

20156 « AEFERBELEEBITHRAZIHARE
2113 5B BT B2014FEMH AR 130138
BTEMHOARE8122AE TH62.4% : KE
BRI EEBITHRRASZOARKA15008 8
TC  B2014F O AREII97TEE T IHA
R#3,230.3A 8 TE351.2% - AETHHAYLH
ENEERHNASEFROSERBEBIOA

i —

Ri&E4216.1H8BTT °
AR T (EE)

ERERE - AEEFELCEEHNLEERE
H2014F PO AR 9766 BB TR L ELHA
R¥91M0BEL  THROARE1,0656EET
3(53.9% : NEE DKL EEBHRLE BN
2014 F M ARET60.6 E B LEMEH AR
4338 1BHETT - MKW ARKEIS7758E T
470.4% °

R B

20154 + AEFERBELEEBNMBRAHAR
#5761 H BT © B2014F O ARKES342HE
TR ARKE258.1H EL030.9% « HAH
REFZZHRFHERREREERITERE
B EREESRNFEEBARML  AEBBEKILE
LEEBMPIBERANARKEIB2EETT - &
2014FMARE3MMABETHEERLD - TER
AR BERFIEABRIE -



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Profit/(loss) before taxation

As a result of foregoing factors, profit before taxation of the Group’s
continuing operations decreased by approximately RMB969.6 million, or
83.3%, from approximately RMB1,163.8 million for 2014 to approximately
RMB194.2 million for 2015; loss before taxation of the Group’s
discontinued operation increased by approximately RMB3,558.7 million, or
322.2%, from approximately RMB1,104.6 million for 2014 to approximately
RMB4,663.3 million.

Income tax

The Group’s income tax charges for continuing operations decreased by
approximately RMB57.1 million, or 29.0%, from approximately RMB197.0
million for 2014 to RMB139.9 million for 2015.

The effective tax rate for continuing operations increased from 16.9% for
2014 to 72.0% for 2015, which was primarily due to that the Group did not
recognise deferred tax assets in respect of certain unutilised tax losses
and unutilised tax credits.

Loss for the year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded a loss for the year of
approximately RMB4,689.7 million for 2015, compared with a loss for the
year of approximately RMB136.5 million for 2014.

Loss attributable to non-controlling interests

As a result of the foregoing, profit attributable to non-controlling interests
of the Group decreased by approximately RMB307.0 million, or 119.5%,
from approximately RMB256.9 million for 2014 to a loss attributable to
non-controlling interests of approximately RMB50.1 million for 2015.

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

As a result of the foregoing, loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company was approximately 4,639.6 million for 2015, representing
an increase of approximately RMB4,246.2 million, or 1,079.4%, from a
loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of approximately
RMB393.4 million for 2014.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEE T (8)

Analysis of Segment Results

The following table sets out the Group’s segment revenues, segment gross
profit and segment operating profit, each as a percentage of total Group
revenues, Group gross profit, and Group operating profit for the years

D EPREDAN

TR BN EZE2015%F 2014612 A31H IEE
EAREBME D EUA « DEEFFID AR LT
AR & BRAREEEALEBRA « EFMLELF)

ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively: B DL
2015 2014
(RMB million) % (RMB million) %
(AR¥EET) % (AREEZT) %
Environmental protection and BRREEERAR
energy conservation
solutions
Environmental protection: IRIR -
Revenue WA 7,750.0 37.5 9,134.7 35.7
Gross profit EA 1,390.2 38.3 1,615.4 37.8
Operating profit A FE 236.1 (6.9) 1,106.9 91.0
Energy conservation solutions:  EigEfRR T ¢
Revenue WA 3,124.6 15.1 3,689.3 14.4
Gross profit EF 311.7 8.6 3815 8.9
Operating profit A FE 208.0 (6.1) 264.6 21.8
Renewable energy equipment  TIE4 8RR ERIE
manufacturing and services KRR
Wind power products and [BE 2 mm S AR
services:
Revenue WA 8,617.6 41.8 9,454.0 36.9
Gross profit EA 1,880.2 51.9 1,909.3 44.6
Operating profit T 422.9 (12.3) 643.6 52.9
Solar power products and KIGaeE @& RIS (B4R LE
services (discontinued wa) -
operation):
Revenue WA 684.3 3.3 2,919.4 114
Gross profit EF (180.9) (5.0) 180.2 4.2
Operating profit A FE (4,338.1) 126.6 (767.4) (63.1)
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Environmental Protection and Energy Conservation Solutions
Environmental protection
Revenue

Revenue from the environmental protection business decreased by
approximately RMB1,384.7 million or 15.2%, from approximately
RMB9,134.7 million for 2014 to approximately RMB7,750.0 million for 2015.
The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue from the
NO, emission reduction and low NO_combustion equipment businesses
of the Group. Revenue generated from the ash removal business of the
Group increased by approximately RMB180.7 million, or an increase of
approximately 40.5% compared with the corresponding period of 2014.
The growth in revenue from the ash removal business was primarily
attributable to the increased market demand stimulated by the air pollution
control initiatives promulgated by the PRC government in 2015. Revenue
generated from the NO_emission reduction and low NO_combustion
equipment businesses decreased by approximately RMB978.3 million
and RMB411.1 million respectively, or a decrease of approximately 34.0%
and 50.6% respectively. The decrease in revenue from the NO_emission
reduction and low NO,_ combustion equipment businesses of the Group
were primarily attributable to the fact that as the stimulation effect from
NO, emission reduction policies enters into the later stage, routine NO_
emission reduction and low NO _combustion equipment businesses
rapidly shrank, causing a substantial decrease in the number of contracts.

The following table sets out the revenues from the business lines
comprising the Group’s environmental protection business, each as a
percentage of the revenue from this business, for years ended December
31, 2015 and 2014, respectively:

(CONTINUED)
EEEMNWmESIT(E)

RRRERERRE R
BIR
L'ON

IRIREFUAN2014F AR 134.7EETT
B E2015F AR 75008 87T BAL
AREE13847THETLH15.2% - TBRAAAE
EE - ERREREEBRRABDERK - K&
B R BE 22 TS 2= AR Y MR A 22014 [R BRAREL 3 R 40
ARE180.7EE T « 18 540.5% - BREEBIK
ABEFBRREA2015F R EBFBEHZER SR
ZHFEHE MR RTS8 - i - EAR
BREEBEENBRAD BB HARKI78.3E
BILEAREAABET  RIED R A4£34.0%
50.6% ° NEEGM - KA R EEFAR
LEZRERBBEERMEBRERBREE AR -
BREEESNERAMBERBEEBRRZE - &
Gt ENERN S E

TR BIETEZE2015F N 2014F12831B ILF
ERREAEERREBHSEFEHBA - A
& BIEHRFEZERVANB DL

2015 2014

(RMB million) % (RMB million) %

(AR¥BEET) % (ANRMEET) %

SO, emission reduction iR 3,737.6 48.2 3,799.7 41.6
NOx emission reduction Jil=Rat 1,896.6 24.5 2,874.9 315
Low NO_combustion equipment  {E&UAZE R 400.8 5.2 811.9 8.9
Water treatment IKEIE 1,088.0 14.0 1,201.9 13.1
Ash removall MR EE 627.0 8.1 446.3 4.9
Total ot 7,750.0 100.0 9,134.7 100.0
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BB AT ()

Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the environmental protection business of the Group
decreased by approximately RMB1,159.5 million, or 15.4%, from
approximately RMB7,519.3 million for 2014 to approximately RMB6,359.8
million for 2015. This was mainly due to the decrease in cost of sales for
the NO,_ emission reduction and low NO_combustion equipment business,
partially offset by the increase in cost of sales for ash removal business,
which were consistent with the changes in revenues from these business
lines.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

As a result of the foregoing reasons, gross profit attributable to the
environmental protection business decreased by approximately RMB225.2
million, or 13.9%, from approximately RMB1,615.4 million for 2014 to
approximately RMB1,390.2 million for 2015. Gross profit margin for this
business increased slightly from 17.7% to 17.9%. The increase in gross
profit margin was primarily attributable to the increases in gross profit
margins for the NO_emission reduction and ash removal businesses.
The increase in the gross profit margin of ash removal business was
attributable to the rise in gross profit of unit projects as a result of the
increase in large-scale ash removal projects as the market was expanded
under the influence of national environmental policies which caused
increases in gross profit margin per project. The increase in the gross
profit margin of the NO_emission reduction business was attributable to
the relatively high gross profit margin of part of the EPC business and the
successful acquisition of high-quality denitrification concession assets
including those in Jianbi. Meanwhile, the decrease in the gross profit
margin of low-NO_combustion equipment business was attributable to the
decrease in the number of contracts of low-NO_combustion equipment
business due to the saturated low-NO _combustion equipment market,
which led to a slump in the gross profit margin of low-NO,_ combustion
equipment business. The decrease in the gross profit margin of water
treatment business was mainly attributable to the decline in water-related
EPC business due to the shrinking of the water treatment market.
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MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
B E R w0 AT (48

The following table sets out the changes in gross profit margins for the
business lines comprising the Group’s environmental protection business
for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared with the year ended
December 31, 2014:

TR B E2015F12A31 A I FEBKAEE
IRIREGHEBFEN REEZE20145F12A318
IEFEMLE L

2015 2014
(%) (%)

SO, emission reduction R A 15.9 15.3
NO, emission reduction R 25.1 221
Low NO,_ combustion equipment RRREER 12.1 231
Water treatment IKERIR 21.8 225
Ash removal MREE 16.7 9.2
Energy conservation solutions i Y
Revenue I A

Revenue attributable to the energy conservation solutions business
decreased by approximately RMB564.7 million or 15.3%, from
approximately RMB3,689.3 million for 2014 to approximately RMB3,124.6
million for 2015. The decrease was mainly due to the fact that the new
EMC was signed so late that it is yet to be implemented and there was no
new contract in waste heat recovery business. The increase in revenue
of the general contracting regarding the Group’s power stations business
was attributable to the completion as scheduled of and revenue from the
newly-constructed projects in Hami and Ledong, Hainan Province that
were progressing smoothly.

IR E AR AR 2014FEN AR 3,689.3
BEILBRDE2015FMARELZ,1246EE T
WO ARES64.7TEBEILK5.3% - HAPEER
EAESRABWEBFR B - EMCAFHEIEE
R E R AT - ANEB B I EREEE
¥BWAEN  REANERE - BE%LRIER
ﬁJﬁJllﬁﬂ ’ &H%Eﬁg%lﬁﬁﬁwul‘&k °

2015 F3k
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENwm R (8)

The following table sets out the revenues from the business lines
comprising the Group’s energy conservation solutions business, each as a
percentage of revenue from this business, for the years ended December
31, 2015 and 2014 respectively.

TERDAHINEZ2015F K2014F 128318 1LF
EREERNEBE RS RERP S EBRN
WA UAREBLEETFEZESBANE S

2015 2014
(RMB million) % (RMB million) %
(AR¥EET) % (AER®HZT) %
Plasma-assisted coal ignition and g7 225k MR 360.8 11.5 4755 12.9
combustion stabilization
Steam turbine flow passage YU R MU (S 60.1 1.9 55.0 15
retrofitting and maintenance
Energy management ARERERE 146.4 4.7 407.3 11.0
contract (“EMC”)
Waste heat recovery FRENEIY - - 291.2 7.9
General contracting for power BULEREAE 2,495.5 79.9 2,420.9 65.6
stations
Boiler comprehensive utilization — $B1E4R A ¥ okiE 61.8 2.0 39.4 1.1
and retrofitting
Total @t 3,124.6 100.0 3,689.3 100.0
Cost of sales SHEE R AR

Cost of sales for the energy conservation solutions business decreased
by approximately RMB494.9 million or 15.0%, from approximately
RMB3,307.8 million for 2014 to approximately RMB2,812.9 million for 2015.
Such decrease was consistent with the decrease in revenue from this
business segment.

Gross profit and gross profit margins

As a result of the foregoing reasons, gross profit attributable to the energy
conservation solutions business decreased by approximately RMB69.8
million, or 18.3%, from approximately RMB381.5 million for 2014 to
approximately RMB311.7 million for 2015. Gross profit margin for this
business was 10.0%, which was basically at the same level as the 10.3%
for 2014.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following table sets out the changes in gross profit margins for the
business lines comprising the Group’s energy conservation solutions
business for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared with the
year ended December 31, 2014:

(CONTINUED)
EEEMNWmESIT(E)

TEREFEE2015F12 831 H L FEBKAEER
ENRERRIR H RESHE SR TR REH Z20144F
12 A31H IEFEAELEL A E L -

2015 2014
(%) (%)
Plasma-assisted coal ignition and combustion LB RSB N AR 36.2 31.3
stabilization
Steam turbine flow passage retrofitting VR MR T oS B 57.6 63.5
and maintenance
EMC A RBERER 14.7 10.3
Waste heat recovery BRENE] - 15.9
General contracting for power stations BILER AR 5.8 4.4
Boiler comprehensive utilization and retrofitting HRIESRE T A sGE (5.6) 20.5
Renewable energy equipment manufacturing and services A4 LR EEE R RIS
Wind power products and services EEEDRBRE
Revenues WA

Revenue attributable to the wind power products and services
business decreased by approximately RMB836.4 million, or 8.8%, from
approximately RMB9,454.0 million for 2014 to approximately RMB8,617.6
million for 2015. The decrease was mainly attributable to the overall
commencement of production requirements of wind power project
development companies, as well as the strengthening of streamlined
testing in the work of wind turbines testing of the Group in 2015, as a
consequence the numbers of wind turbines that had completed testing for
the year dropped slightly, resulting in a decrease in revenue.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales attributable to the wind power products and services
business decreased by approximately RMB807.3 million or 10.7%, from
approximately RMB7,544.7 million for 2014 to approximately RMB6,737.4
million for 2015, consistent with the revenue decrease in this business
segment.

R EERRRBEEBIBRAK014FHHARE
9,454.0B B ILR L E2015F M AR #8,617.6
BEIL B HARESSE.4HEBITL8.8% ° I
PHEFEZREAESXEREEE AR QG EEEE
K Zsk - FRAEE2015F R TR TE N
BT R REAIE - EXEFETAFAARAED
EHEERE N E - BEURABRTRD ©

SHERA

REEREREESHEEKARK2014F 894
AR®BT7544 78 ETTH L E2015F N AR
6,737.4B BT ML HAR®KES807.38 Btk

10.7% @ EEZFEBHBAR D REF—B -
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BB AT ()

Gross profit and gross profit margin

As a result of the foregoing reasons, gross profit attributable to the wind
power products and services business decreased by approximately
RMB29.1 million or 1.5%, from approximately RMB1,909.3 million for 2014
to approximately RMB1,880.2 million for 2015. Gross profit margin for this
business increased slightly from 20.2% for 2014 to 21.8% for 2015. The
increase was primarily due to the scientifically effective decrease in costs
during the course of raising quality and management for WTG products.

Solar power products and services (Discontinued Operation)
Revenues

Revenue attributable to the solar power products and services business
decreased by approximately RMB2,235.1 million or 76.6%, from
approximately RMB2,919.4 million in 2014 to approximately RMB684.3
million in 2015. The decrease was mainly due to a significant decrease in
revenue from the solar power EPC and solar cells and modules business.
The decrease in revenue from the solar power EPC business was primarily
due to the substantial decrease in new EPC projects for the year, with
only a few projects coming to a close and the successive closing down of
modules production lines.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales attributable to the solar power products and services
business decreased by approximately RMB1,874.0 million or 68.4%, from
approximately RMB2,739.2 million in 2014 to approximately RMB865.2
million in 2015. Such a downward trend was consistent with the decrease
in revenue from the above business segment.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Due to the foregoing reasons, gross profit and gross profit margin for the
Group’s solar power products and services business for 2015 substantially
decreased, which was primarily due to the successive closing down of
solar cells and modules production lines of the photovoltaic industry.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity and Source of Capital

In 2015, the Group’s cash is mainly used in business operations and the
repayment of bank borrowings due.

The following table sets out the net cash flows of the Group for the years
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the cash and cash equivalents
as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively:

TINUED)
T (48)

(CON
EIRE S TmEE D
REBESMNERTR

20154 « AEBEMIR S F B EB KL
HRRITIE R Z A o

REES|

TERDBIETEZE2015%F K2014F12A31H ILF
EAREERIREREFHEMN2015F K2014F 12
A31BALEENRG KRS EEY

2015 2014
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR¥EET) (AE¥EZET)
% %
Net cash generated from operating activities REEEEL VIR FE 4,905.8 2,705.6
Net cash used in investing activities SEEBFR R T8 (757.3) (1,164.3)
Net cash used in financing activities BERESFERCIREFE (4,272.2) (2,718.3)
Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31 MN12A31HEIRE MRS EED 2,325.5 2,456.1
Net cash generated from operating activities AREST B B > I SEEE

Net cash generated from the Group’s operating activities for 2015 was
approximately RMB4,905.8 million, as compared to the net cash generated
from the Group’s operating activities of approximately RMB2,705.6 million
for 2014, primarily attributable to the Group’s increased efforts in the
collection of its trade receivables and therefore achieved a better result in
collection of trade receivables.

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in the Group’s investing activities for 2015 was
approximately RMB757.3 million, as compared to the net cash used in
the Group’s investing activities of approximately RMB1,164.3 million for
2014. The primary reason for the decrease in net cash used in investing
activities was the decrease in the Group’s newly acquired and constructed
property, plant and equipment in 2015 as compared to 2014.

REBOISFLEFHEENRS FHOABAR
#4,905.8F BT M2014F AREELE B ESE
IR FHEOABARE27056EET  TE2A
BAEENATREERERERNE - EUEREE

R -

REZBREHZHEFHE

REE20IFREEFHFEANRESFENAAR
757 3B &I © M2014FE MK EEENFE AR
SFBHOABARE11643HET - WEEHFEA
IR FERALEERBARAEE2015F AN
Y - BB REBR2014FH D o
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BB AT ()

Net cash used in financing activities

Net cash used in the Group’s financing activities for 2015 was
approximately RMB4,272.2 million, as compared to the net cash used
in the Group’s financing activities of approximately RMB2,718.3 million
for 2014, primarily due to the Group’s repayment of corporate bonds of
RMB1,200 million and private placement bonds of RMB1,350 million that
fell due during the year.

Working Capital

As of December 31, 2015, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
were approximately RMB2,325.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB130.6 million, as compared to RMB2,456.1 million for
the same period of 2014. As at December 31, 2015, the Group had total
unutilised bank facilities of approximately RMB19,838.0 million.

The Group’s gearing ratio, which is calculated by dividing net debt
(including interest-bearing other payables and interest-bearing bank loans,
less cash and cash equivalents) by the sum of total equity plus net debt,
increased from 55.8% as of December 31, 2014 to 62.6% as of December
31, 2015.

Based on the existing cash resources and unutilised bank credit facilities,
the Directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group will
have enough working capital to support current requirements and daily
operations for the coming 12 months.

Net Current Liabilities

As at December 31, 2015, the Group’s net current liabilities were
approximately RMB3,351.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB2,267.7 million or 209.3%, as compared to that as at
December 31, 2014. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group’s
net current liabilities increased, but the Group will have enough working
capital to support current requirements and daily operations for the
coming 12 months based on current capital source and unutilised banking
facilities.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Inventory Analysis

The inventories were approximately RMB3,492.4 million as of December
31, 2015, which decreased by approximately RMB1,011.6 million, or
22.5%, from approximately RMB4,504.0 million as of December 31, 2014.
The decrease was primarily attributed to the decrease in inventories for the
WTG raw materials and work-in-progress products, as well as photovoltaic
raw materials, work-in-progress and finished products.

Trade and bills receivables

Trade and bills receivables decreased by approximately RMB7,758.7
million, or 35.8%, from approximately RMB21,671.4 million as of December
31, 2014 to approximately RMB13,912.7 million as of December 31, 2015.
The decrease was mainly attributable to the increased efforts of the Group
in the collection of trade receivables, which caused a reduction in the
balance of trade receivables, and an increase in the allowance for bad
and doubtful debts.

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

The Group's deposits, prepayments and other receivables decreased by
approximately RMB963.5 million or 28.5%, from approximately RMB3,383.3
million as of December 31, 2014 to approximately RMB2,419.8 million
as of December 31, 2015. The decrease was primarily attributable to
decrease in inventory procurement for the Group’s wind power products
and services business and prepayments relating to construction contracts
for the Group’s environmental protection business.

Trade and bills payables

Trade and bills payables decreased by 28.3% from RMB18,165.6 million
as of December 31, 2014 to RMB13,021.7 million as of December 31,
2015, primarily due to the improvement in the Group’s collection of sales
amounts as compared to previous years, thus expediting the progress
of payment to suppliers, causing a reduction in the payables for raw
materials required for the production of WTG equipment.

(CONTINUED)
EEEMNWmESIT(E)
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEE T (8)

Indebtedness =221
The following table sets forth the Group’s borrowings as of December 31, T & &5 2015%2014F 12 A31 B A EEHE 5%
2015 and 2014 &5
As of As of
December December
31, 2015 31, 2014
R20155F12831H  720145F12H31H
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR¥EET) (AREH=ET)
Long-term interest bearing borrowings RETEEER
Bank loans: RITER
Secured B 928.3 1,387.4
Unsecured i 881.7 2,176.7
Other loans HAER 54.6 68.0
Private placement notes (unsecured) AAREEHHE LA (EIEKR) 996.9 -
Corporate bonds NRESH 2,838.5 4,055.6
Sub-total INEE 5,700.0 7,687.7
Less: Current portion of long-term borrowings /& : K& &I BNERER 5 (907.3) (2,601.0)
Total A&t 4,792.7 5,086.7
Short-term interest bearing borrowings EEEEMER
Bank loans: FITE -
Secured BHEM 553.0 311.1
Unsecured I 8,610.0 8,745.5
Other loans Hi Bz
Guodian (unsecured) B (£ ) 300.0 65.1
Related parties under Guodian: Bl T BT -
Secured HE - 300.0
Unsecured 4RI 15 379.4 60.0
Private placement notes (unsecured) ARSEHE TA(EER) - 1,373.4
Current portion of long-term borrowings REAMEFR A BN AR ER D 907.3 2,601.0
Total .. @\R____ 10749.7 .. 13,456.1
Total indebtedness BB 15,542.4 18,542.8
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As of December 31, 2015, the Group’s total indebtedness decreased
by approximately 16.2% from approximately RMB18,542.8 million as of
December 31, 2014 to approximately RMB15,542.4 million as of December
31, 2015. The decrease was mainly because the Group repaid corporate
bonds and private placement bonds issued in previous years in 2015,
totaling approximately RMB2,550.0 million. The proportion of short-term
indebtedness to overall indebtedness decreased from approximately
72.6% as of December 31, 2014 to approximately 69.2% as of December
31, 2015, which was mainly due to the fact that the Group the structure of
long-term borrowings and short-term borrowings according to the changes
in market interest rate.

All of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB.
The following table sets out the maturity status of long-term borrowings

(including current portion) as of December 31, 2015 and December 31,
2014:
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As of As of

December December

31, 2015 31,2014

#2015%12831H R2014912A31H

(RMB million) (RMB million)

(AR¥EET) (ANER¥EET)

Less than 1 year or on demand 1FRNIREKEE 907.3 2,601.0
More than 1 year but less than 2 years 1F LA HB2F AR 380.5 983.1
More than 2 years but less than 5 years 2F LA H1B5F AR 2,728.3 2,269.4
More than 5 years 5P 1,683.9 1,834.2
Total &% 5,700.0 7,687.7

The effective interest rate of the Group (determined by dividing total
interest expenses for 2015 by the average of the sums of outstanding
borrowings and other interest bearing payables as of January 1, 2015
and December 31, 2015) decreased from approximately 6.3% in 2014
to approximately 4.6% in 2015. The decrease in the Group’s effective
interest rate was primarily due to the central bank’s three successive
announcements of the lowering of interest rates this year to foster a
moderately loose monetary policy.

ANE B EEF R (LL2015F 4 5] 8 5 2 B A
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BB AT ()

Contingent Liabilities

The Group’s contingent liabilities increased from approximately
RMB1,595.2 million as of December 31, 2014 to approximately
RMB3,147.3 million as of December 31, 2015. The Group’s contingent
liabilities as of December 31, 2015 primarily consisted of bid and
performance guarantees.

Material investments

In 2015, the Group’s completed investments amounted to a total of
RMB431 million. Of which, technological reform investments amounted
to RMB289 million, and mainly technological upgrade and reform for
SO, and NO,_ emission reductions concession projects were carried out.
Acquisitions investments amounted to RMB142 million, whereby two
million KM NO_emission reduction devices were acquired from Guodian
Jianbi Power Plant for carrying out of concession operations.

Market Risk

The Group is exposed to various risks associated with its business
operations, including credit and counterparty risk, interest rate risk,
liquidity risk and exchange rate risk.

Credit and counterparty risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its bank deposit and
cash in-hand, trade and bills receivables, deposits, prepayments and
other receivables and other non-current assets. The Group has an internal
credit policy to monitor its exposure to its counterparty credit risk on an
ongoing basis.

A substantial part of all of the Group’s cash is deposited in state-owned
or state-controlled PRC banking institutions. Directors of the Company
consider counterparty risks with PRC banks insignificant.

The Group performed credit evaluations on all of its customers, and
monitors outstanding receivables due from such customers on an
ongoing basis. The Group’s credit evaluation focuses on a customer’s
payment history and its ability to pay and takes into account industry and
customer-specific considerations, as well as the general macroeconomic
climate. The Group generally requires its customers to settle progress
billings and other debts in accordance with agreed contract terms.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from long-term borrowings.
Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of fixed and
variable rate borrowings in order to manage its interest rate risks. During
the year, however, management of the Group did not consider it is
necessary to use interest rate swaps to hedge their exposure to interest.

Liquidity risk

The nature of the Group’s business gives rise to the irregularity in its
cash flow. The Group enforced regular settlement of receivables while
ensuring sound operations, thereby significantly increasing the Company’s
operating cash. Meanwhile, the Group proposed to improve its financing
structure and increase the proportion of long-term loans by issuing mid-
and long-term bonds and introducing financial leasing. Since December
31, 2015, it has issued a total of RMB1.4 billion private placement bonds.
The Group is committed to ensuring sufficient working capital to meet its
operating needs or having access to adequate bank credit to maintain
uninterrupted operations. The Group’s cash flow position is essential for its
continuous development and expansion.

Exchange rate risk

The continued development and expansion of the Group’s international
operations is expected to result in increased exposure to exchange
rate risk, arising primarily through export sales which would typically be
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group expects that its future
export sales will principally be denominated in either United States dollars,
Euros or Hong Kong dollars. In 2015, the Group recorded an exchange
loss of approximately RMB15.5 million, mainly because the Company’s
subsidiary, Guodian Technology & Environment Group (Hong Kong) Co.,
Ltd. imported parts of the pitch systems by means of prepayment, which
were priced in Euros and Euros depreciated significantly. The Group
has made adjustments in order to address risks in association with the
fluctuation of Euro exchange rates. Directors of the Company consider
the Group’s exchange rate risk to be insignificant. The Group does not
currently hedge against its exchange rate risk.

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the PRC government may
at its discretion restrict access to foreign currencies for current account
transactions in the future. Changes in such foreign exchange controls
may adversely affect the Group’s international operations and sales, and
may prevent the Group from satisfying its foreign exchange denominated
obligations. In addition, the Group may be restricted from paying
dividends on its listed H-shares to shareholders by any such changes in
regulations.
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I\/IANAGEI\/IENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEmEDN (&)

Business prospects for 2016

Going forward, the Group shall face both opportunities and challenges in
2016. On the one hand, China is implementing the strategy of “One Belt,
One Road”, deepening the reform of state-owned enterprises, promoting
the structural reform of the supply side and deepening the reform of
the electric power system, which have brought new opportunities for
the Company’s transformation and development. Ultra-low emissions
of coal-fired power plants and the implementation of new standards for
energy consumption, has provided a relatively big market space for the
energy saving and environmental protection industry during the “Thirteenth
Five-Year” plan period. It is expected that in 2016 the China Guodian
Corporation will commence and complete the transformation to ultra-low
emissions of 38.71 million KW and 25.41 million kW ultra-low respectively,
the investment therein is estimated to be about RMB6.7 billion yuan.
Equipment, raw material prices are expected to be low in general, and
the situation where capital in the market is tight and costly is expected to
be eased, which is advantageous to enterprises in respect of controlling
operating costs and enhancing the level of quality benefit.

On the other hand, with the launch of a new round of coal linkage, the
price of thermal power has been lowered by RMBS3 cents, and the prices
of new onshore wind power and photovoltaic power generation have also
been lowered. The policy adjustments have resulted in lower profitability
of power enterprises and imposed more stringent requirement on power
enterprises’ accounts payable, the performance and quality of equipment
as well as the development, cost and standard of construction projects.
The energy saving business, environmental protection business and new
energy business are faced with shrinking market capacity in different
degrees, loss of leading advantage in technology stock and increasingly
intensive competition.

To leverage on the favourable policies of the Chinese government, the
Group intends to implement the following work in 2016 for its continuous
development:

Optimizing the asset structure

The Group plans to adjust its asset structure and withdraw from industries
and projects in which the Group does not have competitive advantage.
On one hand, the Group seeks to dispose of unprofitable projects and
businesses and concentrates on enhancing its core businesses. On the
other hand, the Group intends to accelerate the development progress
of quality wind power projects, and the preparation works of operational
projects for coal-fired power stations and enlarge the scale of its general
contracting for green power stations and EMC businesses.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Strengthening technology development

The Group intends to accelerate the industrial application of new
technologies to improve its capability of utilizing the technological
innovation to meet the demands of the Group’s development. The
Group intends to put together its high-quality resources and enhance its
technological potential to achieve the breakthrough in its core businesses.
Meanwhile, the Group expects to offer incentives for scientific and
technological innovations, and motivates the technical personnel of the
Group by connecting the remunerations of the technical personnel to the
profits of science and technology projects.

Strengthen market positioning

New energy combined with Internet technology is the future trend. Explore
the Internet technology and operation management system to adapt to
the new energy development, combined with the Company’s technologies
such as new energy power generation equipment manufacturing, energy
storage, energy management systems, will speed up to promote the
Company’s new energy industry to form the core competitive advantage.
Therefore, the Company’s product positioning can be summarized as:
integration of energy conservation and environmental protection high-tech
products (technology), provide innovative “one-stop” energy conservation
and environmental protection full-mode service. Combined with the
Internet and new energy technology, building smart new energy industry.

Expanding Market

The Group divides the market into “the market within the group, the power
market outside of the group, the non-electric power market outside of the
group and the overseas market”. The Group will analyze the capacity and
business logic of each market, focusing on efficiency and profitability,
make diversified marketing strategies, seize every market change,
integrate its market resources and enhance its market competitiveness
comprehensively.

Strengthening centralized management and control

The Group insists on further increasing its efficiency by improving its
centralized management. The Group will focus on the financial indicators,
emphasize on meeting targets and strengthen its management in 2016.
The Group expects to further improve the internal control system by
means of, among others, strengthening centralized purchasing of goods,
enhancing budget management, optimizing designs and production and
improving financial management.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
55 EFKkeAEEAR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company currently consists of 11 Directors, including
three executive Directors, four non-executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors. The Board of the Company’s
function and responsibility include: convening general meetings; reporting
its work to the general meeting; implementing resolutions approved
by general meetings; ascertaining the Company’s business plans and
investment plans; preparing the Company’s annual budget and final
accounts, preparing the Company’s profit distribution plans and proposals
for the increase in or reduction of the registered capital; and exercising
other powers, functions and responsibilities as set out in the “Articles of
Association” of the Company. The Company has entered into a service
contract or appointment letter with each of Directors.

The following table sets out certain information relating to Directors of
the Company. The members of the second session of the Board were re-
elected and appointed at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on May 16, 2014. The current term for all the Directors will expire on May
15, 2017.

Exg

ARBNMEFEHMIBERMAN  3SRHITESE -
ARFFRTEERABBIUIFNITES - ARFAE
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201455 A 16 B RITHRFBFAEG LETHEZ
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Name Age Position

Date of Joining

Date of Appointment/
Re-appointment

A FiR

B

oA B

ZE/ERAH

Mr. YANG Guang 51

B kit

Mr. CHEN Dongging 50
RESRE

Mr. TANG Chaoxiong 48
FEBIE ST A

Mr. WANG Zhongqu 54
FARREE

Mr. ZHANG Wenjian 52
R REAE

Mr. FENG Shuchen 52
R AL
Mr. YAN Andrew Y. 58

Mgk

Executive Director and Chairman
of the Board
PITESHEER

Executive Director

WITES

Executive Director

HITES

Non-executive Director

FNTES

Non-executive Director

FRTES

Non-executive Director

FMTES

Non-executive Director

FMTES

January 6, 2005

200551 H6H

March 29, 2016
201643 H29H

March 29, 2016
201643 H29H

May 16, 2014
2014F5H16H

May 16, 2014
2014457168

September 28, 2004
2004F9 A 28H
June 8, 2012

201256 H8H

Re-appointed on
May 16, 2014
201455 H16 B EEE

Appointed on March 29, 2016
201653 A29REZ (T

Appointed on March 29, 2016
201653 A29 R EZ (T

Appointed on May 16, 2014
201455 16 HEZ(E

Appointed on May 16, 2014
201455 16 AEZ(E

Re-appointed on
May 16, 2014
201455 16 A EEE

Re-appointed on
May 16, 2014
201455 16 A EEE
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

B BEENER

EEBAB(E)

Name Age
s FiR

Position Date of Joining

Bz oA B E

Date of Appointment/
Re-appointment

ZE/ERAM

Mr. SHEN Xiaoliu 65
BRI E

Independent Non-executive Director March 29, 2016
BYFERTES 20164F3529H

Appointed on March 29, 2016
201653 H29BH B ZE(E

Mr. QU Jiuhui 58 Independent Non-executive Director May 16, 2014 Appointed on May 16, 2014
Eh A B & BYFNTES 2014F5H16H 201455 16 HEZ(E
Mr. XIE Qiuye 56 Independent Non-executive Director May 16, 2014 Appointed on May 16, 2014
KT 4 BIYFENTES 20145H 16H 20145 Q16 AEZE
Mr. FAN Ren Da 55 Independent Non-executive Director November 28, 2011 Re-appointed on

Anthony May 16, 2014
SBlCELE BYFERITES 2011411 A28H 20144F5 A 16 A E R

Mr. FEI Zhi resigned as the executive Director and the general manager
of the Company on November 17, 2015 due to personal needs on career
development.

Ms WANG Hongyan resigned as the executive Director and the chief
accountant of the Company on October 27, 2015 due to changes in personal
working arrangement.

Ms. ZHANG Xiaolu resigned as the independent non-executive Director
of the Company on January 11, 2016 due to changes in personal working
arrangement.

Mr. YANG Guang, is an executive Director and the chairman of the Board
of the Company. Mr. YANG joined the Group on January 6, 2005. Mr.
YANG previously served successively as designing chief engineer, deputy
director and director of engineering division of South West Electric Power
Design Institute; deputy chief engineer and director of project division of
South West Electric Power Design Institute; deputy director and director of
economic and trade division of international department of the State Power
Corporation; deputy head of engineering and construction department,
head of international cooperation department, head of international
cooperation and overseas business department, and head of science-
technology and comprehensive business department of Guodian Group.
Mr. YANG received a bachelor’s degree in power plant hydraulic power
from Chongaing University in July 1985. Mr. YANG is a Senior Engineer.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

B BEEMEREEARE)

Mr. CHEN Dongqing is an executive director and the President of the
Company. Mr. Chen joined the Group on February 4, 2016. Mr. Chen
served as the deputy director of the Quality and Technology Office
of the Thermal Power Construction Department and the New Energy
Development Office of the Power Construction Department of State
Power Corporation; director of the General Office of the Engineering
& Construction Department and deputy head of the Engineering &
Construction Department of China Guodian Corporation; vice general
manager of the Southern Branch of Guodian; vice general manager of
Guodian Guangdong Power Co., Ltd.; Party Secretary and vice general
manager of Guodian Fujian Power Co. Ltd. and other positions. Mr. Chen
received a master degree in Power Plant Engineering from Northeast
China Institute of Electric Power Engineering. Mr. Chen is a senior
engineer.

Mr. TANG Chaoxiong is an executive director, the vice general manager
and chief accountant of the Company. Mr. Tang concurrently serves as
the chairman of Longyuan Technology. Mr. Tang jointed the Group on
October 12, 2015. Mr. Tang served as the deputy director of financial
department of Sichuan Electric Power Corporation; deputy director of the
financial department of State Power Corporation; director of the financing
and accounting division of the financial property department of China
Guodian Corporation; vice general manager and a member of the Party
Committee of Guodian Finance Co., Ltd.; vice general manager and a
member of the Party Committee of China Guodian Capital Holdings Ltd.;
and vice chairman of Bank of Shizuishan Co. Ltd.. Mr. Tang received a
bachelor degree in finance and accounting from known as Changsha
Normal College of Water Resources and Electric Engineering (currently
known as Changsha University of Science & Technology) and a master
degree in accounting from Hunan University of Finance and Economics
(currently known as Hunan University). Mr. Tang is a senior accountant.

Mr. WANG Zhongqu, is a non-executive Director of the Company. Mr.
WANG also serves as the chief supervisor of the Work Safety and the head
of the Work Safety Office of Guodian Group. He joined the Group on May
16, 2014. He previously served successively as boiler engineer in Electric
Power Research Institute in Hebei Province; engineer and manager of
Production Planning of Electric Power Industry Bureau of Hebei Province;
assistant to manager of Electric Power plant of Xibaipo branch of Hebei
Power Grid; deputy manager of Hengshui Power plant of Hebei Province;
manager and deputy head of the Power Plant Preparatory Office of
Hanfeng Power plant of Hebei Power plant; deputy head of the Work
Safety Office of Guodian Group. Mr. WANG graduated from Shandong
Industry Institution and received a bachelor’'s degree in Thermal Power.
He also obtained a master’s degree in power engineering from Huabei
Electric Power University. Mr. WANG is a Senior Engineer.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. ZHANG Wenjian, is a non-executive Director of the Company and
also serves as the head of the Technology and General Industry Office
of Guodian Group. Mr. ZHANG joined the Group on May 16, 2014. He
previously served successively as deputy head of the Electric Usage
Office, head of the Electric Dispatch Office, manager of the Production
Planning, assistant of the director, deputy director of Hengshui Electric
Power Bureau; secretary of the party committee of Hanfeng Power plant;
director of Xingtai Power plant; deputy head and head of the marketing
department of Guodian Group. Mr. ZHANG graduated from Huabei
Electric Power College and obtained a bachelor’s degree from Power
plant and Electric Power System. He also received a master’'s degree
from Huabei Electric Power University in technology economy and
management. Mr. ZHANG is a Senior Engineer.

Mr. FENG Shuchen, is a non-executive Director of the Company and
serves concurrently as president of GD Power and the general manager
assistant of Guodian Group. Mr. FENG joined the Group on September
28, 2004. Mr. FENG previously served successively as chief manager
of Chaoyang Power Plant; deputy chief manager and chief manager of
Guodian Power Datong No. 2 Power Plant; vice president and president of
the Company; and head of the human resources department of Guodian
Group. Mr. FENG graduated from North China Electric Power University
and received a master's degree in control theory and control engineering.
Mr. FENG is a Senior Engineer.

Mr. YAN Andrew Y., is a non-executive Director of the Company and
serves concurrently as the founding managing partner of SAIF Partners.
Mr. YAN joined the Group on June 8, 2012. He also previously served
as lead engineer at Jianghuai Aviation Instrument Factory; economist
of Washington headquarter of the World Bank, researcher of Hudson
Institute in the US and director for strategic planning and business
development for the Asia Pacific region of Sprint International Corporation
successively; and managing director of Emerging Markets Partnership, the
management company of AlG Asia Infrastructure Fund, and head of Hong
Kong office of AlIG Asia Infrastructure Fund. Mr. YAN majored in airplane
design and obtained his bachelor’'s degree in engineering from Nanjing
Aeronautic Institute (now named as Nanjing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics). Mr. YAN also studied at a master’s program in sociology
at Peking. He has also obtained a master of arts in international political
economy from the Princeton University.
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Mr. SHEN Xiaoliu is an independent non-executive director of the
Company. Mr. Shen joined the Group on March 29, 2016. Mr. Shen is a
professor of the School of Control and Computer Engineering of North
China Electric Power University, and an expert of the State Key Laboratory
of Alternate Electric Power System with Renewable Energy Resources
and the Key Laboratory of Regional Energy and Environment, Ministry
of Education. He served as a technician in Shanxi Linfen Electric Power
Bureau; an engineer at the dispatching center of the Electric Power Bureau
of Shanxi Province; a teacher in the thermal power engineering teaching
and research section of the Graduate School of North China Electric
Power University; director of the information center of the Electric Power
Bureau of Shanxi Province; and deputy division director of the education
division of Shanxi Electric Power Company. Mr. Shen graduated from the
Department of Electrical Engineering of Taiyuan University of Technology
with a bachelor degree in Industrial Automation, and from the Beijing
Graduate School of North China Electric Power University with a master
degree of engineering in Electric Power System and Automation.

Mr. QU Jiuhui, is an independent non-executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Qu joined the Group on May 16, 2014. Mr. QU Jiuhui currently
serves as a researcher and the director of academic degree evaluation
committee of Research Center for Eco-environmental Sciences, Chinese
Academy of Sciences. Mr. QU serves concurrently as vice chairman
in All-China Environment Federation, vice chairman of Chinese Society
for Environmental Sciences, vice chairman of Chinese Society for
Sustainable Development, a member of the National Advisory Council on
Environment, and a member of Expert Committee for Project 863. Mr. QU
previously served as the deputy director and the director of Research
Center for Eco-environmental Sciences. The research field of Mr. QU is
focused on Science and Technology on water quality as well as Water
Pollution Control. Mr. QU has been nominated as an independent non-
executive director of Dongjiang Environmental Company Limited (00895.
HK; 002672.SZ). Mr. QU Jiuhui graduated from Harbin University of Civil
Engineering and Architecture with a PhD degree. Mr. QU was elected as
an academician of China Academy of Science in 2009.

Mr. XIE Qiuye, is an independent non-executive Director of the Company.
Mr. XIE joined the Group on May 16, 2014. He currently serves as
president, executive director, general manager of Electric Power Planning
& Engineering Institute. Mr. XIE served successively as deputy chief
engineer and vice president of Northwestern Electric Power Design
Institute, deputy president and chief engineer of China Power Construction
Engineering Consulting Corporation, manager of power generation branch
of China Power Engineering Consulting (Group) Corporation, president of
Central Southern China Electric Power Design Institute and vice president
of the Electric Power Planning and Engineering Institute. Mr. XIE Qiuye
graduated from Chongqging University with a bachelor degree in thermal
energy. Mr. XIE is a professor-level senior engineer and a national
investigation and design master.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony, is an independent non-executive Director of
the Company. Mr. FAN joined the Group on November 28, 2011. Mr. FAN
received his MBA degree from University of Dallas, USA. Mr. FAN serves
concurrently as chairman and managing director of AsiaLink Capital
Limited. Mr. FAN also serves as independent non-executive director in
the following companies listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange: Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (00220), Raymond Industrial
Limited (00229), Shanghai Industrial Urban Development Group Limited
(00563), China Development Bank International Investment Limited
(01062), Technovator International Limited (01206), Renhe Commercial
Holdings Company Limited (01387), Hong Kong Resources Holdings
Company Limited (02882), CITIC Resources Holdings Limited (01205), LT
Holdings Limited (00112) and Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings Company Limited
(06868).

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

The board of Supervisors of the Company consists of five members. Save
that employee representative Supervisors are elected by employees,
Supervisors are elected by the Shareholders of the Company. Supervisors
serve a term of three years after which they may be re-elected or re-
appointed. The responsibilities of the board of Supervisors include,
amongst others, reviewing and verifying the financial report, business
report and profit distribution plan prepared by the Board of Directors, and
(upon doubt, if any) appointing certified public accountants and certified
public auditors to re-examine the financial information of the Company;
supervising the financial activities of the Company; supervising the
performance of Directors, president and other senior management and
safeguarding against any breach of the law, administrative regulations
and provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company in the
course of discharging their duties; requiring Directors, president and
senior management to correct actions that may harm the interests of the
Company and exercising other rights granted to them by the “Articles of
Association” of the Company.
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SUPERVISORS

The following table sets out certain information relating to the Supervisors
of the Company. The members of the second session of the board
of Supervisors were re-elected and appointed on the annual general
meeting of the Company held on May 16, 2014. The current term for all the
Supervisors will expire on May 15, 2017.

=

TRINTEBARRESNETES - XAFARK
20145516 B BRMAFREARE LETHEZ
EEEEXNEMNERREZMT - ARRANEMAEE
EHTEIE N 201758158 & ©

Date of Appointment/

Name Age Position Date of Joining Election/Re-appointment

e Fie B A B Z=E R EEAY

Mr. SHAO Guoyong 49 Chairman of the Board May 16, 2014 Appointed on May 16, 2014
of Supervisors

e e EESTE 201465H16H 201455 16 HEE (£

Mr. XU Xingzhou 54 Supervisor May 16, 2011 Re-appointed on May 16,

2014

FFEM E=x 201145H16H 201455 B 16 HE=E

Mr. CHEN Jingdong 51 Supervisor May 16, 2014 Appointed on May 16, 2014

RERLLE E=E 2014558168 201455 16 HEE

Ms. HE Lili 40 Employee Representative March 18, 2014 Elected on May 16, 2014
Supervisor

EEL L BITARES 201443 R 188 201455 A 16 A&

Mr. LI Wei 42 Employee Representative March 10, 2008 Re-appointed on May 16,
Supervisor 2014

F BRE BITHRKRES 2008435 10H 201455 F 16 HEE=E

Mr. SHAO Guoyong, is the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors of
the Company. Mr. SHAO joined the Group in May 16, 2014. Mr. SHAO
previously served successively as financial director of Shenzhen Branch
of the North East Electric Power Design Institute; financial director of
Singapore Tech-Winoverseas and Malaysia Desheng Engineering; chief
accountant and head of financial department of North China Electric
Power Design Institute; deputy manager of the financial department of
Datang International Power Generation Co., Ltd.; deputy finance manager
and finance manager of GD Power; chief of the funds settlement center of
the department of finance and property rights of Guodian Group; president
and the chairman of the board of the Guodian Finance Corporation Ltd;
president of the China Guodian Capital Holdings Ltd.; chairman of the
board of Old Mutual-Custodian Life Insurance Co. Ltd. and the president
of Changjiang Property & Casualty Insurance Co., Ltd. Mr. Shao has
obtained bachelor degree of financial accounting from Renmin University
of China. He also obtained a MBA degree from Tsinghua University of
China. Mr. SHAQ is a Certified Accountant.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. XU Xingzhou, is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr. XU joined the
Group on May 16, 2011. He serves concurrently as head of the human
resource department of Guodian Group. Mr. XU previously served
successively as deputy director and director of the Salary and Insurance
Division of human resource department of State Power Corporation; deputy
head of the human resource department of Guodian Group; chairman
of the Board of Supervisors of Guodian Sugian Company and Guodian
Kaiyuan Company; and head of the Social Insurance Center of Guodian
Group. Mr. XU received a bachelor's degree in management engineering
from Jilin University in July 1983. Mr. XU is a Senior Economist.

Mr. CHEN Jingdong, is a Supervisor of the Company. Mr. CHEN joined
the Group on May 16, 2014. He currently serves as the head of the
capital management and property management department of Guodian
Group. Mr. CHEN previously served as assistant engineer in the Power
Application Sector, Department of Power Generation, Ministry of Water
and Electricity, engineer in the Power Application Sector, Department of
Power, Ministry of Energy, assistant to the general manager of Longyuan
Electric of China Longyuan Power Group Corporation; the deputy director
of the power application sector of safety operation division of the electric
power department; deputy director of the urban power network renovation
group of security division of the electric power department; director of
the transmission and transformation division of the safety transmission
department of State Grid Corporation of China; deputy general manager
and secretary of the board of directors of GD Power. Mr. CHEN received
his master degree in electric power system and automation from Beijing
Graduate School of North China Electric Power University and a master
degree in business administration from The University of Texas at Arlington
College of Business. Mr. CHEN is a senior engineer.

Ms. HE Lili, is the employee representative Supervisor of the Company.
Ms. He joined the Company on March 18, 2014. She currently serves as
the leader of the disciplinary team and the chairman of the labor union of
the Company. Ms. He previously served as a technician of rubber plant
production division of Sinopec Beijing Yanshan Company, deputy head of
politics and work department and head of human resources department of
Guodian Group. Ms. He received a MBA degree from Beijing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics. Ms. He is a senior administration engineer
and a senior economist.

Mr. LI Wei, is an employee representative Supervisor of the Company.
Mr. Li joined the Group on March 10, 2008. He serves concurrently as
manager of the audit department of the Company. Mr. Li previously
served successively as deputy director of the audit department and vice
president of the financial department of China National Electronic Materials
Corporation; deputy chief accountant of United Power; and vice president
of supervision and audit department and president of supervision
department (Disciplinary Office) of the Company. Mr. Li received a
bachelor degree in economics from Hangzhou Institute of Electronics
Engineering and a MBA degree from Beijing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics. Mr. Li is a senior accountant.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The following table sets out certain information relating to the senior
management of the Company.

BREEAE

TREJNBEBEARARRERABNETER -

Name Age Position Date of Joining
HE Fie BEBNQ A B

Mr. CHEN Dongging 50 President February 4, 2016
REEELE FGhes ] 201652 H4H
Mr. TANG Chaoxiong 48 Vice President and Chief Accountant October 12, 2015
A EECESEINE - il 2015%10A128
Mr. ZHANG Xiaodong 40 Vice President November 1, 2010
SREER T4 Blaasg 2010511 H1H
Mr. YANG Dong 43 Vice President January 18, 2001
B RELE B4R 200141 A3 18H
Mr. CAl Zhaowen 47 Vice President March 18, 2014
B EE Bl4aaae 2014437 18H
Mr. TANG Jian 45 Vice President October 12, 2015
BORS%4E ElErcs 2015 10A12H

Mr. CHEN Dongqing - Please see details under the heading “Board of
Directors” above.

Mr. TANG Chaoxiong — Please see details under the heading “Board of
Directors” above

Mr. ZHANG Xiaodong, is vice president of the Company. Mr. ZHANG
serves concurrently also as chairman of the board of directors of Beijing
Guodian Zhishen Control Technology Co., Ltd. (“Guodian Zhishen”) and
Huadian Tianren (“Huadian Tianren”). Mr. ZHANG joined the Group on
November 1, 2010. Mr. ZHANG previously served as project principal
of Energy Conservation Information Dissemination Center and project
principal of project construction division of Information Center of the
State Economic and Trade Commission; deputy director of research and
consulting division of the SASAC’s Information Center and director of
application and development division of the SASAC’s Information Center.
Mr. ZHANG majored in electric technology and received a bachelor’s
degree from Taiyuan Heavy Machinery Institute. Mr. ZHANG also received
a MBA degree from Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics. Mr.
ZHANG is a Senior Engineer.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. YANG Dong, is vice president of the Company. Mr. YANG also serves
as the chairman of Beijing Lucency Environment and Technology Co, Ltd.
(“Lucency”) and the chairman of Beijing Longyuan Cooling Technology
Ltd.. Mr. YANG joined the Group on January 18, 2001. Mr. YANG
previously served as thermal mechanical engineer of North China Electric
Power Design Institute; project engineer of ABB Beijing Representative
Office; manager of engineering department of Longyuan Environmental;
president of Beijing Longyuan Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd; and
assistant to president and manager of the department of technology
management, and chief engineer of the Company. Mr. YANG received his
bachelor's degree in thermal power engineering from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University and a MBA degree from Renmin University of China. Mr. YANG is
a Professor-level Senior Engineer.

Mr. CAl Zhaowen, is vice president of the Company. Mr. CAl also serves
as the chairman of United Power. Mr. CAl joined the Group on March 18,
2014. Mr. CAl previously served successively as executive vice president
of Yinchun Xinganling Wind Power Co., Ltd., Yilan Longyuan Wind Power
Co., Ltd. and Yenan Longyuan Wind Power Co., Ltd.; director of planning
and development department of Longyuan Power and general manager
assistant and director of planning and development department of
Longyuan Power. Mr. CAl graduated from Tsinghua University, where he
received a bachelor’s degree in hydraulic structure and environmental
engineering, and a master’s degree in business management. Mr. CAl is a
senior engineer.

Mr. TANG Jian, is vice president of the Company. Mr. Tang concurrently
serves as the chairman, president and vice secretary of the Party
Committee of Longyuan Environmental. Mr. Tang joined the Group on
October 12, 2015. Mr. Tang served as the vice director of the power
generation department of the Yangzhou No. 2 Power Plant in Jiangsu,
the vice director of preparation for production department, director of
the operation depart and the director of the operational department of
Guodian Changzhou Power Generation Co., Ltd., a member of the Party
Committee and the vice general manager of Guodian Bengbu Power
Generation Co., Ltd., the deputy head of the Coal-fired Power Office, the
head of the Coal-fired Power Office and the head of the General Office of
the Engineering & Construction Department of China Guodian Corporation.
Mr. Tang graduated from China University of Mining and Technology with
a bachelor degree specializing in Power Plant Thermal Energy and Power
Engineering. Mr. Tang is a senior engineer.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. WONG Ki Yan Davhen, is the company secretary of the Company.
Mr. WONG joined the Group in November 2011. Mr. WONG is a fellow
member of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants Approved Supervisor to train
its prospective members, a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. WONG served as
senior company secretary, senior company accountant and authorized
representative of CCID Consulting Co., Ltd (08235) (2006-2011). Mr.
WONG received a bachelor’'s degree in International Business with
his major in China trade from City University of Hong Kong in 1993.
Afterwards, he obtained postgraduate accounting diploma at University
of Lethbridge, Canada. He received a bachelor’s degree with honours in
accounting from Oxford Brooks University in 2006 and a joint International
Master of Business Administration degree from Tsinghua University and
Massachusetts Institute of Technology, USA in 2009.
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The Board of the Company hereby presents to Shareholders this Annual
Report and the audited financial statements as of, and for the year ended
December 31, 2015 (the “Financial Statements”).

SHARE CAPITAL

As of December 31, 2015, the total issued share capital of the Company
was RMB6,063,770,000, divided into 6,063,770,000 shares of RMB1.0
each, including 4,754,000,000 domestic shares and 1,309,770,000 H
shares. Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 35 to the Financial Statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
December 31, 2015.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

According to the “Articles of Association” of the Company or the PRC law,
there are no provisions for pre-emptive rights requiring the Company to
offer new shares to the existing shareholders of the Company in proportion
to their shareholdings.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company is principally engaged in (1) environmental protection and
energy conservation solutions, and (2) renewable energy equipment
manufacturing and solutions. The Company offers diversified products
and services and uses various business models in its business operation.
Details of subsidiaries and associates of the Company are set out in the
Note 18 and 19 to the Financial Statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
December 31, 2015 and the financial position of the Company and its
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 are set out in the audited Financial
Statements of this Annual Report.

A discussion and analysis of the Group performance during the year and
material factors underlying its results and financial position are set out in
the Management'’s Discussion and Analysis section of this Annual Report.
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DIVIDEND

The Board recommends not to distribute the dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2015.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Company and its subsidiaries during the year are set up in the Note 13 to
the Financial Statement.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Company during the year are
set out in the Note 35(a) to the Financial Statements, among which, details
of reserves available for distribution to the shareholders as of December
31, 2015 are set out in the Note 35(e) to the Financial Statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and its
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 are set out in the Note 28 to the
Financial Statements.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain information concerning the Directors,
supervisors and senior management of the Company as of the date of this

E=gRE(E)

B ESASREEAS

TRINBEAEREGAPIAATES - 2
FNEREEABHETEHR -

report.
Directors
=

Date of Appointment/
Name Position in the Company Re-appointment/Resignation
®E b NN A A EEERBERY
Mr. YANG Guang Executive Director and Chairman of the Board Re-appointed on May 16, 2014
[ v WITESRESR 20145516 HEE®
Mr. CHEN Dongging Executive Director Appointed on March 29, 2016
REBLRE MITER 201653 A29H EZ T
Mr. Tang Chaoxiong Executive Director Appointed on March 29, 2016
R A HITE=R 20163 A29R KL T
Mr. WANG Zhongqu Non-executive Director Appointed on May 16, 2014
FARREE FNTER 20145416 BEZ
Mr. ZHANG Wen-jian Non-executive Director Appointed on May 16, 2014
SR REE FMITES 201455 A 16 HEZ T
Mr. FENG Shuchen Non-executive Director Re-appointed on May 16, 2014
SRRk E FRTER 201455 A 16 B EEE
Mr. YAN Andrew Y. Non-executive Director Re-appointed on May 16, 2014
M kL HFMITES 2014F5 A16 AEEE
Mr. FEI Zhi Executive Director Resigned on November 17, 2015
g B4 HITES 201511 A17HEHE
Ms. WANG Hongyan Executive Director Resigned on October 27, 2015
FRlt WITES 2015610 A27 HEHE
Ms. ZHANG Xiaolu Independent Non-executive Di-rector Resigned on January 11, 2016
REBZ LT B FRTES 20161 A11 HEH T
Mr. SHEN Xiaoliu Independent Non-executive Director Appointed on March 29, 2016
Sl e BIYIEMITES 20163 A29 A BT
Mr. QU Jiuhui Independent Non-executive Director Appointed on May 16, 2014
fh A BT A BIFNTESR 201455 416 B EEE
Mr. XIE Qiuye Independent Non-executive Director Appointed on May 16, 2014
HIKEF S 4 BYIFERTEE 2014F5 A 16 HEER T

Mr. FAN Renda
BoELRE

Independent Non-executive Director
BYIFEHITER

Re-appointed on May 16, 2014
201455 16 &S
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Supervisors

E=x

Date of Appointment/
Name Position in the Company Re-appointment/Resignation
®E NN 2 A =T ERERAH

Mr. SHAO Guoyong
AREI B S A

Mr. XU Xingzhou
FT N ST A

Mr. CHEN Jing-dong
RERELE

Ms. HE Lili
MBEL L

Mr. LI Wei
= BEhAE

Chairman of the Board of Supervisors
EEgTE

Supervisor

EF

Supervisor

E=x

Employee Representative Supervisor

BIRRE=S

Employee Representative Supervisor

BTRERESE

Appointed on May 16, 2014
2014F5 B 16 A EZ T

Re-appointed on May 16, 2014
2014516 HEEE

Appointed on May 16, 2014
2014F5 16 HEZ AT

Elected on May 16, 2014
2014F5 316 H &%

Re-appointed on May 16, 2014
2014F5 16 HEEE

Senior Management

BEREEAR

Name Position in the Company Date of Joining
HE AN B AL A B

Mr. CHEN Dongaing President February 4, 2016
RES A GRS 20162 H4H

Mr. TANG Chaoxiong Vice President and Chief Accountant October 12, 2015
B ST A BIAEACIE - ARG ETAD 20159 10A12H
Mr. ZHANG Xiaodong Vice President November 1, 2010
SREER T4 Bliases® 2010611 A1H
Mr. YANG Dong Vice President January 18, 2001
5 REE ElEECS 200141 A 18H
Mr. CAl Zhaowen Vice President March 18, 2014
IR Bl4ansie 2014437 18H
Mr. TANG Jian Vice President October 12, 2015
BOREL ElRESE 20159 10A12H

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior management are
set out in the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of this Annual
Report.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

Each of the executive Directors and Supervisors of the Company has
entered into a service contract with the Company, and each of the
non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company, on May 16, 2014 (or
June 8, 2012, in the case of Mr. YAN Andrew Y.; or March 29, 2016 in the
case of the “re-appointment” of Mr. FENG Shuchen, Mr. CHEN Dongqing,
Mr. TANG Chaoxiong, Mr. SHEN Xiaoliu and Mr. Fan Ren Da Anthony).
Each service contract is preliminarily for a term of three years commencing
from May 16, 2014. Each letter of appointment is for a term of three years
commencing from May 16, 2014 (or June 8, 2012, in the case of Mr. YAN
Andrew Y.; or March 29, 2016, in the case of “re-appointment” of Mr.
FENG Shuchen, Mr. CHEN Dongging, Mr. TANG Chaoxiong, Mr. SHEN
Xiaoliu and Mr. Fan Ren Da Anthony) with a one-year automatic renewal
clause.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or Supervisors has entered
into a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and Supervisors of the
Company are set out in the Note 9 to the Financial Statements.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS IN
CONTRACTS

At any time during the year of 2015, there was no contract of significance
related to the Group’s business in which the Company and its subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director or supervisor had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, subsisted during the year or at the end of the
year.

E=gRE(E)
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EEgWER)

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year of 2015, save as disclosed below, none of the Directors
and their associates had any competing interests in any business which
competed, or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group:

EERNHEEBNES

R2015FERN BRI XAHTEEN  MEESK
HE e APMER EA L EESEEKREBKE
SO AR R SN ER P EA TR e R

Name of Directors
MR

Position in the Company
AN BB

Other Interests
HibfEz

Mr. WANG Zhongqu Non-executive Director

TREREE FNTES

Mr. ZHANG Wenijian Non-executive Director

SRIEELE FNITES

Mr. FENG Shuchen Non-executive Director

ISl e FRTES

Safety production supervisor of Guodian Group,
and the head of Work Safety Division
BEET I HAERERT I EESNEE

Head of Technology and General Industry
Division of Guodian Group
B ELER R EGEEEEE

President of GD Power and general manager
assistant of Guodian Group
BlEE 404D 3 B B AR B A A TR BB

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As of December 31, 2015, Mr. YAN Andrew Y., a non-executive Director
of the Company, was interested in 288,200,000 shares of the Company.
Please refer to “~ Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares” for more
information. Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, supervisors
and senior management of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be registered in
the register referred to therein, or which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE(E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES

On December 31, 2015, as far as the Director’s knowledge, the persons
below (except the Directors, Supervisors and senior management) have
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which are required to be disclosed pursuant to Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO:

FERRRB M 2

R2015F 12 A31H » LESEFA » TIAL(CKR
NAESR - EERSREEABRINNRARFR
1k AERARR 15 B R B AR IRCFE 5 R ERE & B )XV
HE 2R3N EBARADNTHRE Z ERIKA

Number of Shares/  Percentage in the Percentage

Underlying Relevant Class in the Total

Name of Shareholders Class of Share  Capacity Shares Held  of Share Capital® Share Capital®

BERS, EEBEREER ERABE 2

RREEEH R 5 54 HERO#E 2B BALO

(Share) % %

(i) % %

Guodian Group Domestic shares  Interests of beneficial owner and 4,754,000,0001 100.00 78.40
HEEE NEK controlled corporation (Long position)
B ARREAT % (#8)

GD Power Domestic shares  Interests of beneficial owner 2,376,500,000@) 49.99 39.19
HEE NEMK BRBBAER (Long position)
(178)

Mr. YAN Andrew Y. H shares Interests of beneficial owner and 288,200,0001) 22.00 4.75
AEE Hik controlled corporation (Long position)
ERMBARZEDRZER (#7%8)

SAIF IV GP Capital Ltd. H shares Interests of beneficial owner and 288,200,000@ 22.00 475
HI controlled corporation (Long position)
ERMBARTEDRZER (#%8)

SAIF IV GP LP H shares Interests of beneficial owner and 288,200,000® 22.00 4.75
Hil% controlled corporation (Long position)
EalBARTEDRZ ER (18)

SAIF Partners IV L.P. H shares Interests of beneficial owner 288,200,000®) 22.00 4.75
HA BRBAAER (Long position)
(178)

State Grid International H shares Interests of beneficial owner 89,505,000 6.83 1.48
Development Limited HER BERBAAER (Long position)
ARENERERERAR (178)

National Council for Social H shares Interests of beneficial owner 77,310,000 5.90 1.27
Security Fund of the PRC H BRAAZER (Long position)
2EMEREESESEY (178)
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Notes:

(1)  This percentage is calculated on the basis of the number of underlying
shares/total shares that had been issued by the Company as of December
31, 2015.

(2)  Guodian Group holds, directly or indirectly, 100% of the domestic shares of
the Company via GD Power. As of December 31, 2015, Guodian Group has
46.00% of the interests in the total shares of GD Power and GD Power has
49.99% of the domestic shares of the Company. Therefore, Guodian Group
is deemed to have the interests in the domestic shares of the Company
possessed by GD Power.

(3) Mr. YAN Andrew Y. holds 22.00% of the H shares indirectly via SAIF Partners
IV L. P. through SAIF IV GP Capital Ltd. and SAIF IV GP LP. He is the
controlling shareholder of SAIF IV GP Capital Ltd., SAIF IV GP LP, and SAIF
Partners IV L. P. SAIF IV GP Capital Ltd. is the controlling shareholder of SAIF
IV GP LP. SAIF IV GP LP is the controlling shareholder of SAIF Partners IV
L.P. SAIF Partners IV L.P. has 22.00% of the H shares. Therefore, Mr. YAN
Andrew Y., SAIF IV GP Capital Ltd., and SAIF IV GP LP are deemed to have
the interests in the H shares held by SAIF Partners IV L. P.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company did not enter into any contract in respect of the management
or administration of the entire or any significant part of the business of the
Company nor such contract subsisted at any time during 2015.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into certain contracts with its connected
persons (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules). These
transactions were monitored and managed by the Company in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

Non-exempt connected transactions of the Group during 2015 are as
follows:

(1) Non-exempt One-off Connected Transaction

On December 30, 2015, United Power, a 70% owned subsidiary
of the Company, and Guodian Shandong Wind Power Energy
Company Limited (B EIUEE HEEFEER A7) (“Guodian
Shandong Wind Power”) entered into an equity transfer agreement
(the “Equity Transfer Agreement”). Pursuant to the Equity Transfer
Agreement, United Power will transfer its entire 60% equity interests
in Guodian United Power Technology (Weifang) Company Limited ([
BHA B RIMTOEYT) AR A F]) (“Weifang”) to Guodian Shandong
Wind Power (the “Transaction”). The consideration of the equity
interests to be transferred is RMB8,442,000.
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The consideration is determined on arm’s length basis between
United Power and Guodian Shandong Wind Power with reference
to the Target’s net appraised value of RMB14,069,900 as stated in
the valuation report, dated September 30, 2015, prepared on the
basis of asset-based approach by Asia (Beijing) Assets Appraisal
Co., Ltd. (ZM(IER)EETEBRAR]), an independent third-party
appraiser. The consideration is equivalent to the appraised value of
60% of the Target's net assets as at September 30, 2015.

Guodian Group is a controlling shareholder of the Company as
defined under the Listing Rules and thus a connected person of
the Company. Guodian Shandong Wind Power is a subsidiary
of Guodian Group, and is therefore a connected person of the
Company. The transfer of interest in the Target constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The terms of the Equity Transfer Agreement were negotiated on an
arm’s length basis between United Power and Guodian Shandong
Wind Power. Having made due and reasonable enquiries, the
Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors
but excluding Mr. Wang Zhongqu, Mr. Zhang Wenjian and Mr.
Feng Shuchen) considered that the basis for determining the
consideration of the disposal of 60% of equity interests in the Target
is fair and reasonable, the terms of the Equity Transfer Agreement
are on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable and are in
the interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole. The
non-executive Directors Mr. Wang Zhongqu, Mr. Zhang Wenjian and
Mr. Feng Shuchen, being Directors connected with Guodian Group
or its subsidiaries, have abstained from voting in relation to this
matter at the Company’s board meeting. Save as disclosed above,
none of the Directors has any material interest in the Transaction.

For details, please refer to the announcement dated December 30,
2015.

Note: As completion of the transaction took place after 31 December 2015,
Weifang has still been accounted for as a subsidiary of the Group in
this Annual Report.

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transaction

The Group has entered into certain non-exempt continuing
connected transactions during 2015.

For the continuing connected transactions item numbered one, two,
three, and seven, the Company has obtained approval from the
independent shareholders on the annual caps for the year 2015. For
the continuing connected transaction items numbered four, five, six
and eight, the Company has obtained approval from the Board and
has published announcements on the annual caps for the year 2015.
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The table below has set out the annual caps and the actual
transaction amounts of such continuing connected transactions.

TRENFELREZEHEMERFINE

Connected Party

Transaction Type

Actual
Transaction

Cap for 2015 Amount for 2015

20155 2015FFE
BES Lkt FELR ERXSEH
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(ANE¥EZT) (AREEZET)
1 Guodian Group Provision of products and services 28,600.0 12,154.9
EEEE by the Group to Guodian Group and
its subsidiaries
BAEEREEEEREMMBEAR
TR m RS
2 Guodian Group Provision of products and services 3,500.0 1,193.4
HEEE by Guodian Group and its subsidiaries
to the Group
HEEEERAMBEA T mASE
TR o RS
3 United Power Provision of products and services 1,313.0 737.5
BaE by the Group to United Power and
its subsidiaries
BASERBEB HREMBAT
TROLEE o R TS
4 United Power Lease of properties by the Group to 30.0 241
BaE United Power and its subsidiaries
HAEE AT H KEWNE QR HEYE
5 Longyuan Technology Provision of products and services 12.0 6.8
BEREL by the Group to Longyuan Technology
and its subsidiaries
RS B M BE R S EL B R
R m MRS
6 Longyuan Technology Provision of products and services 86.0 10.2
BEREL by Longyuan Technology and
its subsidiaries to the Group
HERR BT R AW B A R AEE
R m R RS
7 Guodian Finance Provision of deposit services by 2,000.00M 1,387.9
B9 5 B 7 Guodian Finance and its subsidiaries
to the Group
HEENEREWBARRAEE
REEFFRS
8 Guodian New Energy Lease of properties by Guodian New Energy 35.0 33.9

Technology Research
Institute

EHRE R BT TThT

Technology Research Institute to the Group

mEEM R AARE L EYE
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These numbers represent the maximum daily balance of the deposit
placed with Guodian Finance by the Group.

Provision of products and services by the Group to
Guodian Group and its subsidiaries (other than the
Group)

The Company entered into a master agreement in good
faith and at arm’s length on the mutual supply of products
and services with Guodian Group on November 23, 2011,
amended by a supplemental agreement, and a second, a
third and a fourth supplemental agreement on May 7, 2012,
August 28, 2012, November 11, 2013 and August 22, 2014,
respectively (the “Guodian Master Agreement”).

Material terms and conditions of the Guodian Master
Agreement are set out as follows:

Pursuant to the master agreement, the goods and services
to be provided by the Group to Guodian Group and its
subsidiaries (other than the Group) include:

° Environmental protection and energy conservation
solutions services segment: (i) environmental
protection products (including, among others, ash
removal, water treatment and denitrification catalyst);
(ii) energy conservation products (including, among
others, plasma-assisted coal combustion equipment);
(iii) environmental protection services (including,
among others, desulfurization concession service,
denitrification concession service, desulfurization EPC
service, denitrification EPC service, water treatment
BOT service); and (iv) energy conservation services
(including, among others, steam turbine flow passage
improvement service and EMC); and

° Renewable energy equipment manufacturing and
integrated solutions services segment: (i) WTGs and
their parts and components; (ii) solar power products
(discontinued operations); (iii) wind power services
including wind farm EPC services; and (iv) solar power
services (discontinued operations) (including, among
others, solar station EPC services).

If the terms and conditions of similar products and services
offered by an independent third party are no better than
those offered by one party, the other party shall give priority
in sourcing the requisite products and services from the first
party.
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The Group and Guodian Group and its subsidiaries (other than
the Group) will enter into separate agreements which shall set
out the specific scope of products and services, terms and
conditions of providing such products and services according
to the principles laid down by the master agreement.

The term of Guodian Master Agreement will expire on
December 31, 2017. Either party may terminate the master
agreement upon giving the other party at least three months’
written notice.

The products to be provided under the master agreement will
be based on the following pricing policy:

(1) government-prescribed price (including any price
prescribed by any relevant local government, if
applicable);

(2) where there is no government-prescribed price
but there is a government-guidance price, then the
government-guidance price;

(38)  where there is neither a government-prescribed price nor
a government-guidance price, the market price, which is
defined as the price at which the same type of products
and/or services are provided by the independent third
parties in the ordinary course of business; or

(4) where none of the above is applicable or where it is
not practical to apply the above pricing policies, then
the price agreed between the relevant parties shall
be based on arm’s length negotiation and shall be the
reasonable costs incurred in providing the products plus
reasonable profits.

The above pricing mechanism is hereinafter referred to as the
“Applicable Standard Products Pricing Policy”.

The services to be provided under this agreement will be
based on the following pricing policy:

(1)  the bidding price where the bidding process is required,
or

(2)  where no bidding process is involved, the market price.

The above pricing mechanism is hereinafter referred to as the
“Applicable Standard Services Pricing Policy”.
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The Group would be accorded priority by Guodian Group and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) in the provision of the
relevant products and services, provided that the terms and
conditions offered by an independent third party to Guodian
Group and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) are no
more favorable than those offered by the Group for the same
products or services, and on the other hand, under the same
terms and conditions, the Group has undertaken to Guodian
Group and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) that it shall
not provide products and services which are less favorable
than those offered by the Group to independent third parties.

Guodian Group is the controlling shareholder of the Company
and is, together with its subsidiaries, a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction for
2015 was RMB28,600.0 million and the actual transaction
amount during the reporting year was RMB12,154.9 million.

Provision of products and services by Guodian Group
and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) to the Group

The Company entered into the Guodian Master Agreement
in good faith and at arm’s length on the mutual supply of
products and services with Guodian Group on November 23,
2011, amended by a supplemental agreement and a second,
a third and a fourth supplemental agreement on May 7, 2012,
August 28, 2012, November 11, 2013 and August 22, 2014
respectively.

Please refer to relevant disclosure under “-~ 1. Provision of
products and services by the Group to Guodian Group and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group)” for material terms and
conditions of the master agreement.

Goods and services to be provided by Guodian Group and
its subsidiaries (other than the Group) to the Group include:
desulfurization equipment, denitrification equipment and water
supply, electricity supply, gas supply and consulting services.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction
for 2015 was RMB3,500.0 million and the actual transaction
amount during the reporting year was RMB1,193.4 million.
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Provision of products by the Group to United Power
and its subsidiaries

The Company entered into a master agreement with United
Power in good faith and at arm’s length for provision of
products to United Power and its subsidiaries by the Group on
November 23, 2011 amended by a supplemental agreement
with United Power on November 11, 2013 (the “United Power
Master Agreement”).

Pursuant to this agreement, the products to be provided to
United Power and its subsidiaries by our Group are parts and
components of WTGs.

Material terms and conditions of the United Power Master
Agreement are set out as follows:

Subsidiaries of both parties will enter into separate agreements
which shall set out the specific terms and conditions for the
provision of such products according to the principles laid
down by the agreement.

The products to be provided under the agreement will be
based on the Applicable Standard Products Pricing Policy.

The agreement is for a term of three years ending on
December 31, 2016. Either party may terminate the agreement
upon giving the other party at least three months’ written
notice.

The Company owns 70%, while Longyuan Power owns 30%,
of equity interest in United Power. As Longyuan Power is a
58.44% owned subsidiary of Guodian Group, the Company’s
controlling shareholder, United Power is therefore an associate
of Guodian Group. Therefore, United Power is the connected
person of the Company under Rule 14A.11(4) and Rule
14A.11(5) of the Listing Rules. The subsidiaries of United
Power are the Company’s connected persons under Rule
14A.11(4) and Rule 14A.11(6) of the Listing Rules. The result
of the transactions between United Power and its subsidiaries
and the Company will be eliminated in consolidation because
United Power is the Company’s connected person as well as
its subsidiary.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction
for 2015 was RMB1,313.0 million and the actual transaction
amount during the reporting year was RMB737.5 million.
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Lease of properties by the Group to United Power and
its subsidiaries

The Company entered into a supplement agreement with
United Power in good faith and at arm’s length on November
11, 2013 which amended the master leasing agreement (the
“Leasing Agreement”) with United Power dated November
23, 2011.

Material terms and conditions of the Leasing Agreement are
set out as follows:

The Company agreed to lease land and buildings to United
Power and its subsidiaries as offices, production facilities,
workshops and staff quarters;

United Power and its subsidiaries are not entitled to sub-lease
or transfer any of the leases to another party without prior
written consent from the Company;

The Leasing Agreement shall expire on December 31, 2016,
as extended by the supplemental agreement, and is subject
to compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules by us,
renewable upon mutual agreement of the parties;

During the term of the leases for the properties, the parties to
each lease will bear their own taxes in accordance with the
applicable laws and regulations;

United Power has warranted that it and its subsidiaries will
pay the rents specified for each of the properties in a timely
manner and that United Power and its subsidiaries shall use
the properties in accordance with the leases and not do or
allow any damage to the value of the properties;

The rights and obligations of the parties under the master
leasing agreement are not transferable; and

The rent for each of the leases has been determined for
the three year period with reference to similar properties
in locations as specified in each of the leases and (where
applicable) will be adjusted in accordance with the terms of
the lease by mutual agreement or by the appointment of an
in-dependent valuer acceptable to both parties. However,
any such increment in rent has to be reasonable and no
higher than the rent that would otherwise be payable by
an independent third party paying market rent for similar
properties.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction for
2015 was RMB30.0 million and the actual transaction amount
during the reporting year was RMB24.1 million.
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Provision of products and services by the Group to
Longyuan Technology and its subsidiaries

The Company entered into a master agreement in good
faith and at arm’s length on the mutual supply of products
and services with Longyuan Technology on November 23,
2011, amended by the supplemental agreement, second
supplemental agreement and third supplemental agreement
dated July 31, 2012, November 11, 2013, and August 22,
2014, respectively (the “Longyuan Technology Master
Agreement”).

Material terms and conditions of the Longyuan Technology
Master Agreement are set out as follows:

Pursuant to the Longyuan Technology Master Agreement, the
products and services to be provided to Longyuan Technology
and its subsidiaries by the Group include distributed control
system (DCS) and accessories, and on-site assembling and
test.

If the conditions of similar products and services and the fees
payable thereof offered by an independent third party are
not better than those offered by one of the parties, the other
party shall give priority in sourcing the requisite products and
services from the first party.

The Group and Longyuan Technology and its subsidiaries will
enter into separate agreements which shall set out the specific
scope of products and services, and the terms and conditions
for the provision of such products according to the principles
laid down by the agreement.

This agreement will expire on December 31, 2016. Either party
may terminate the master agreement upon giving the other
party not less than three months’ written notice.

The products to be provided under this agreement will be
based on the Applicable Standard Products Pricing Policy; the
services to be provided under this agreement will be based on
the Applicable Standard Services Pricing Policy.
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Longyuan Technology is the Company’s 23.25% owned
subsidiary. As of the latest practicable date, Hero Asia (BVI)
Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Longyuan
Power, owns approximately 18.75% of equity interest in
Longyuan Technology. Given that Longyuan Power is a
subsidiary of Guodian Group, Longyuan Technology is a
connected person of the Company under Rule 14A.11(5) of the
Listing Rules. The subsidiaries of Longyuan Technology are
the connected persons of the Company under Rule 14A.11(6)
of the Listing Rules. The result of the transactions between
Longyuan Technology and its subsidiaries and the Group will
be eliminated in consolidation because Longyuan Technology
is the Company’s connected person as well as its subsidiary.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction for
2015 was RMB12.0 million and the actual transaction amount
during the reporting year was RMB6.8 million.

Provision of products and services by Longyuan
Technology and its subsidiaries to the Group

The Company entered into the Longyuan Technology Master
Agreement in good faith and at arm’s length on the mutual
supply of products and services with Longyuan Technology
on November 23, 2011, amended by the supplemental
agreement, second supplemental agreement and third
supplemental agreement dated July 31, 2012, November 11,
2013, and August 22, 2014, respectively.

Disclosures regarding the material terms and conditions of the
Longyuan Technology Master Agreement are set out above
under “5. Provision of products and services by the Group to
Longyuan Technology and its subsidiaries”.

The products and services to be provided to the Group by
Longyuan Technology and its subsidiaries include plasma
ignition and stable combustion equipment, and other products
and services for environmental protection and energy
conservation, including low NO, combustion products and
solutions and waste heat recovery products and services.

The annual cap of this continuing connected transaction for
2015 was RMB86.0 million and the actual transaction amount
during the reporting year was RMB10.2 million.
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Provision of deposit services by Guodian Finance to
the Group

The Company entered into a finance services framework
agreement with Guodian Finance in good faith and at arm’s
length on the provision of financial services by Guodian
Finance to the Group on July 31, 2012, amended by a
supplemental agreement on December 10, 2013 and a
second financial services supplemental agreement on August
22, 2014 (the “Financial Services Framework Agreement”).

Material terms and conditions of the Financial Services
Framework Agreement are set out as follows:

Pursuant to the Financial Services Framework Agreement,
the services to be provided by Guodian Finance and its
subsidiaries to the Group include (i) deposit services; (ii) loan
services; and (iii) other financial services.

Under the agreement, Guodian Finance has promised that the
standard of financial services provided to the Company will
not be less favorable than those offered to other members of
Guodian Group network, or the standard of financial services
or other similar services provided by commercial banks to the
Company.

The Company and its subsidiaries shall utilize the
financial services of Guodian Finance on a voluntary and
non-compulsory basis and are not obliged to engage Guodian
Finance for any particular service.

Guodian Finance and its subsidiaries may, from time to time,
enter into separate individual financial service agreements with
the Company and its subsidiaries for the provision of specific
financial services by it to the Company and its subsidiaries,
subject to the terms of the agreement.

The duration of the agreement is for a term of three years, with
retroactive effect commencing on January 1, 2012 and with an
expiration date on December 31, 2014.
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The services to be provided by Guodian Finance and its
subsidiaries under the agreement will be based on the
following pricing policy:

(1)

Deposit services: interest rates for deposit services shall
not be lower than any of the following: (i) the benchmark
deposit interest rates published by the People’s Bank
of China (“PBOC”) from time to time for the same
category of deposits; (ii) the interest rates offered to
other members of its network by Guodian Finance for
the same category of deposits; and (iii) the interest rates
offered to the Company and its subsidiaries by any
commercial bank for the same category of deposits.

Loan services: interest rates shall be no higher than
any of the following: (i) interest rates 10% lower than
the interest rates published by the PBOC from time
to time for the same category of loans; (ii) the interest
rates offered to other members of its network by
Guodian Finance for the same category of loans; and
(iii) the interest rates offered to the Company and its
subsidiaries by commercial banks for the same category
of loans.

Other financial services: the interest rates or service
fees charged for other financial services (i) shall comply
with the standard rates as promulgated by the PBOC or
China Banking Regulatory Commission (“CBRC”) from
time to time (if applicable); (ii) shall be no higher than
or equal to the interest rates or service fees charged
by commercial banks or other financial institution for
comparable services; and (iii) shall not be higher than
the interest rates or service fees charged by Guodian
Finance for comparable services to other members of its
network.

The term of the Finance Service Framework Agreement will
expire on December 31, 2017.

Guodian Group is controlling shareholder of the Company as
defined under the Listing Rules and thus a connected person
of the Company. Guodian Finance is a subsidiary of Guodian
Group, and is therefore a connected person of the Company.

The maximum daily deposit balance placed by the Group with
Guodian Finance and its subsidiaries (including any interest
accrued thereon) for 2015 was RMB2,000.0 million and the
actual maximum daily balance during the reporting year was
RMB1,387.9 million.
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Property Lease from Guodian New Energy Technology
Research Institute to the Group

On September 15, 2015, each of the following subsidiaries of
the Company (being (i) Longyuan Environmental, (ii) Longyuan
Technology, (iii) United Power, (iv) Guodian Zhishen, (v)
Huadian Tianren, (vi) Lucency and (vii) Guodian Solar (each of
them, a “Tenant’, and collectively, the “Tenants”) enters into a
property lease agreement (“Property Lease Agreement”) with
Guodian New Energy Technology Research Institute (“New
Energy”) respectively in order to lease certain premises from
New Energy as offices and research sites. The premises of the
Leases are situated at North Two Street, Beijing Future Science
Park, Changping District, Beijing, with an accumulative
gross floor area of the Leases is 46,293.72 square meters.
The property lease agreement should have been expired on
December 31, 2015, considering that the Group will continue
to rent certain properties from New Energy, on December 28,
2015, the Company entered into a property lease framework
agreement (“Property Lease Framework Agreement”) with
New Energy. According to the Property Lease Framework
Agreement, New Energy agreed to lease certain properties to
the Company and its subsidiaries for a term of one year, which
is from January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016.

The rent will be calculated according to the construction area
of the premises and shall not exceed RMB7.2 per square
meter per day (exclusive of the property management fee and
the water and electricity fees). The rent may be adjusted by
mutual agreement or by the appointment of an independent
valuer acceptable to both parties. However, such adjustment
shall be reasonable and not higher than the rent that would
otherwise be market rent payable by an independent third
party for similar properties.

The annual cap to lease the properties under the Property
Lease Framework Agreement for the year ending December
31, 2016 is RMB38,000,000.00.

The rent will be determined based on the condition of each
premise with reference to the fair and reasonable market
price and rents of comparable properties in similar locations.
The annual cap is calculated after taking into account the
demand of the Group for leasing the property from New
Energy and the historical figure. The aggregate rent under the
existing Property Lease Agreements was RMB34,998,051.00
as disclosed in the announcement dated September 15,
2015. For details, please refer to the announcements dated
September 15, 2015 and December 28, 2015.
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During the reporting year, the 2015 annual cap of the
connected transaction amounted to RMB35.0 million, and the
actual amount was RMB33.9 million.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed each of the abovementioned continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that the transactions have been
conducted:

(1)  inthe usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better, or, if there are no
comparable transactions to determine whether they are on
normal commercial terms or better, from the perspective of the
Group, on terms no less favorable than the terms available to
or from independent third parties; and

(3) in accordance with relevant agreement governing the relevant
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Chapter 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor was engaged by the Board of the Company to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Based on the work performed, the auditor of the
Company confirmed to the Board of Directors of the Company that
the aforesaid continuing connected transactions:

(1) have been approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company;

(2) involving the provision of goods and services by the Group
were priced in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group stipulated under the relevant agreements governing
such transactions;

(3) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions; and

(4) have not exceeded the relevant annual cap as disclosed in the
relevant announcements of the Company.
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The auditor has issued his letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group on pages 68 to 81 of this Annual Report
in accordance with rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no related party transaction set out in
the Notes to the Financial Statements falls into the category of
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions under
the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions in 2015 disclosed in Note 39(a) to the
Financial Statements in accordance with International Accounting
Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures” that also fall under the definitions
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as the
case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been disclosed in
the section headed “Connected Transactions”. Note 39(a) to the Financial
Statements also includes related party transactions that do not fall under
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” or are otherwise fully exempt from all disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

TRUST DEPOSIT

On December 31, 2015, the Company and its subsidiaries have not
placed any trust deposit at domestic or overseas financial institutions, and
had no unrecovered deposit which had passed their maturity dates.

DONATION

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries donated RMB11,000
(2014: RMB466,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended December 31, 2015, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed, sold or canceled any of the
listed securities of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association of the Company, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION
AGREEMENT

The Company entered into the non-competition agreement with
Guodian Group and GD Power respectively on November 23, 2011
(“Non-Competition Agreement”).

Pursuant to the agreement, Guodian Group and GD Power provided
certain non-competition undertakings to the Company and granted the
options and pre-emptive rights to acquire the retained business and any
new business opportunities of Guodian Group or GD Power (as the case
may be) to the Company. Pursuant to the agreement, the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company are responsible for reviewing and
considering whether or not to exercise such options and pre-emptive rights
and are entitled, on behalf of the Company, to re-view the implementation
of the undertakings under the agreement on an annual basis.

During the year, the independent non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the implementation of the Non-Competition Agreement
and confirm Guodian Group and GD Power has been in full compliance
with the agreement and there was no breach by Guodian Group and GD
Power.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the purchase from the Group’s
five largest suppliers in aggregate contributed 23% of the Group’s total
purchase for the year, among which, the total purchase from the largest
supplier contributed 12% of the Group’s total purchase for the year.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the sales to the Group’s five
largest customers in aggregate contributed 51.7% of the Group’s total
sales for the year, among which, the sales to the largest customer
contributed 46.6% of the Group’s total sales for the year.

Guodian Group’s subsidiaries as the Group’s customers mainly include
GD Power and Longyuan Power which are all the Group’s connected
person. Save as disclosed above, during the year, so far as the
Directors are aware, none of the Directors, associates of Directors or any
shareholders of the Company (who to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company'’s issued share capital) had any interest in
the Company’s five largest suppliers or customers during the year.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEES BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement and employees benefit scheme are set
out in the Note 7(a) to the Financial Statements.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

In 2015, the Company has complied with relevant code provisions as set
out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Please refer to the Corporate
Governance Report of this Annual Report for details.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and so far as
the Directors are aware, not less than 21.6% of the issued share capital
of the Company was held by the public as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this Annual Report, which was in compliance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules.

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

International Arbitration. A subsidiary of the Group was named as a
respondent in an arbitration case at the Singapore International Arbitration
Centre for a contractual dispute arising from a joint effort in certain
research and development matters. As stated in the notice of arbitration
dated July 16, 2013 and the statement of claim dated November 25,
2013, the applicant asked for a compensation of approximately RMB324.0
million plus interest, expected earnings and cost from the subsidiary for its
alleged breach of contractual obligations. The subsidiary responded and
denied all of the allegations and submitted its defense and counterclaims
to the Singapore International Arbitration Centre, alleging the other party’s
defaults, requesting termination of the contract and raising a counterclaim
of approximately RMB78.7 million. The case was heard by the tribunal at
the Singapore International Arbitration Centre from December 16 to 19,
2014. On December 18, 2015, the company owned by the Group received
final award from the Singapore Court of Appeal to pay the remaining
technical service fees, technical service fees for extension of working
hours and relevant interest as agreed in the contract to the plaintiff of an
amount equivalent to approximately RMB4.6 million, and the plaintiffs’
other claims were dismissed.

Save as disclosed above, for the year ended December 31, 2015, the
Company was not involved in any material litigation or arbitration.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

According to the Listing Rules, the Group has established the audit
committee (“Audit Committee”), the responsibilities of which including
providing suggestions to the appointment, re-appointment and dismissal
of external independent auditors, and monitor their works. The Audit
Committee should comprise three independent non-executive Directors,
i.e. Mr. FAN Renda Anthony (independent non-executive Director), Mr.
QU Jiuhui (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. ZHANG Wenijian
(independent non-executive Director). On March 29, 2016, the member
Mr. QU Jiuhui was changed to Mr. SHEN Xiaoliu. The 2015 annual results
of the Group and the Financial Statements as of, and for the year ended,
December 31, 2015 prepared in accordance with the Inter-national
Financial Reporting Standards have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee of the Company.

AUDITORS

KPMG and Union Power Certified Public Accountants (Special General
Partnership) were appointed as the Company’s international and PRC
auditors, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2015. The
financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015
of the Company prepared in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards have been audited by KPMG. KPMG has been
appointed by the Company since the date of preparation of its listing.
An ordinary resolution will be proposed at the Company’s 2015 AGM
to re-appoint KPMG and Union Power Certified Public Accountants
(Special General Partnership) as the international and PRC auditors of the
Company, respectively.

By order of the Board

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited
Chairman of the Board

Mr. YANG Guang

Beijing, China, March 29, 2016
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In 2015, to protect the interests of shareholders and the Company, and
in compliance with relevant laws and regulations and the “Articles of
Association” of the Company, the Board of Supervisors of the Company
(the “Board of Supervisors”) had effectively exercised its supervision
authority over the meeting-convening and decision-making procedures of
the Board of Directors for compliance with relevant laws, regulations and
the “Articles of Association” of the Company. During this reporting year,
the main work of the Board of Supervisors is as follows

1. Meetings the Board of Supervisors Convened
The Board of Supervisors convened two meetings in 2015:

(1) The first meeting in 2015 of the second session of the Board
of Supervisors was held on March 27, 2015, at which the
resolutions regarding the 2014 annual report (the review draft),
2014 profit distribution plan and the report of the Board of
Supervisors were considered and approved.

(2) The second meeting in 2015 of the second session of the
Board of Supervisors was held on August 28, 2015, at which
the resolutions regarding the 2015 interim report (the review
draft), the announcement of interim results for 2015 (the review
draft), 2015 interim financial statements and the 2015 interim
profit distribution plan were considered and approved.

2. Work Undertaken by the Board of Supervisors

In 2015, the Board of Supervisors mainly undertook the following
work:

During the reporting year, the Board of Supervisors duly reviewed
the Company’s operation and development plan and proposed
reasonable suggestions and advice to the Board of Directors.
The Board of Supervisors actively and effectively performed
its supervision duties over significant decisions and detailed
implementations by the Company’s senior management to
ensure compliance with the laws, regulations, and the “Articles of
Association” of the Company, in order to protect the interests of
shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS (CONTINUED)

The Board of Supervisors carefully reviewed and approved the
Directors’ Report and reviewed the financial report’ the dividend
distribution plan which are to be presented at 2015 general
meeting, and is of the opinion that the members of the Board of
Directors, President and other senior management of the Company
strictly complied with the principles of integrity, performed their
duties diligently, exercised their powers in the best interests of the
Company, and discharged their responsibilities in accordance
with the “Articles of Association” of the Company. Meanwhile,
the Company’s operations have been further standardized and
its internal control system has been improved. The Company’s
connected transactions were in the interest of the Company’s
shareholders as a whole and were on fair and reasonable terms. The
Board of Supervisors has not discovered that any of the Directors or
senior management had abused their power or any of their actions
were prejudicial to the interests of the Company or shareholders of
the Company, or violated the laws, regulations and the Articles of the
Association of the Company.

The Board of Supervisors is satisfied with the financial status
and operational results of the Company in 2015. The Board of
Supervisors is confident in the prospect of the Group.

By Order of the Board of Supervisors

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Company Limited*
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors

Mr. SHAO Guoyong

Beijing, China, March 29, 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Board of the Company hereby presents to the Shareholders the
corporate governance report for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Corporate governance framework of the Company is set out as follows:
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Corporate Governance Practices

Since its establishment, the Company has been committed to improving
its corporate governance, which is considered an ingredient essential to
the creation of values for Shareholders. The Company has established
a modern corporate governance structure, which comprises a number
of independently-operated and effectively-balanced bodies, including
Shareholders meeting, the Board of Directors, the Board of Supervisors
and senior management, by referring to the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
The Company has adopted the Code as its own corporate governance
practices. During 2015, the Company had complied with the principles
and provisions of the Code, and in some circumstances adopted the best
practices recommended by the Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (C

Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

The Company is dedicated to maintaining a high level of corporate
governance. The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has
adopted various corporate policies and standards for application of
proper governance principles in our usual business operations. In the
course of our usual business operations, we comply with the applicable
laws, rules and regulations of different countries and regions as part of
our vigorous efforts to ensure a healthy and safe working environment for
our employees, devote our utmost endeavor to safeguarding the interests
of shareholders as a whole and place key focus on the sustainable
development of the Company. For the year ended December 31, 2015,
the Company has adopted the principles under the Corporate Governance
Code (“CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and
complied with all the code provisions thereunder, except for the following
deviations.

Mr. Fei Zhi, the chief executive officer and executive director of the
Company, resigned on November 17, 2015, and as a result, during the
period from November 18, 2015 to December 31, 2015, Mr. Yang Guang
was the only executive director of the Company and served as the
chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) to lead the Board and acted as
the chief executive officer. The Board believes that since the duties of the
chief executive officer are performed by the members of the Board and
senior management instead of merely the Chairman, this arrangement will
not prejudice the balance of power and functions between the Chairman
and the chief executive officer.

The Board is of the view that as the Company is currently at the
development stage, the existing organizational structure will allow the
Company to achieve its overall business targets in a more effective and
efficient manner. The Board believes that this arrangement will not upset
the balance of the power and duties between the Chairman and the chief
executive officer and that the higher ratio of non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors will enable the Board to
make impartial judgement more effectively as a whole.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TRERRE (B

Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

Corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
summarized below:

1. The Board

The Board exercises its powers and functions in accordance with the
provisions as set out in the “Articles of Association” of the Company.
In the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders, the Board
reports to the general meetings, implements the resolutions passed
thereon and is accountable to the general meetings.

1.1 Composition of the Board

As at the date of the annual report, the Board consisted of
11 Directors, including three executive Directors, four non-
executive Directors and four independent non-executive
Directors.

The biographical details of the Directors as of this Annual
Report are set out in the section headed Director, Supervisor
and Senior Management of this Annual Report. There are
no relationships (including financial, business, family or
other material or relevant relationship) among members of
the Board. The structure of the Board is well balanced with
each Director having sound knowledge, experience and
expertise on the business operation and development of the
Group. All Directors are well aware of their joint and several
responsibilities to the Shareholders.

Since the listing of the Company, the Board has been in
compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules
regarding the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors; the Board has also been in compliance
with 3.10A of the Listing Rules to appoint independent non-
executive Directors representing at least one-third of the
board. Furthermore, the qualifications of all four independent
non-executive Directors of the Company are in full compliance
with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the
Listing Rules. In addition, the Company has received annual
confirmations from all independent non-executive Directors
as to their respective independence in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company therefore considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be in compliance with
the independence requirements as set out in the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (C

Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

1.  The Board (continued)

1.1

Composition of the Board (continued)

The Board of the Company’s function and responsibility
include: convening general meetings; reporting its work to
the general meeting; implementing resolutions approved at
general meetings; deciding on the Company’s business plans
and investment plans; formulating the Company’s annual
financial budget and final accounts; formulating the Company’s
profit distribution plans and proposals for the increase in
or reduction of the registered capital; and exercising other
powers, functions and responsibilities as set out in the “Articles
of Association” of the Company. The Company has entered
into a service contract or letter of appointment with each of the
Directors.

The Company firmly believes that the increasing diversity
at the board level is one of essential elements in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development, therefore, the Company formulated Board
Diversity Policy. While determining the composition of the
Board, the Company shall consider the diversity of the Board
from various perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experiences, skills, knowledge and service tenure, and final
decisions are made based on the value of candidates and
contributions they can bring to the Board. The appointment
of the members of the Board shall be orientated by the need
of skills and experiences of the Board for its good operation
overall, and based on the principle of selecting talented
people, while fully considering the abovementioned diversity
goal and requirements of the diversity. The Nomination
Committee will report the composition of the Board with
respect to its diversity level in the annual report each year,
supervise the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy.
The Nomination Committee will discuss any amendments to
the Board Diversity Policy when necessary and propose such
amendments to the Board for the approval of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

eEERRE(E)

Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

1. The Board (continued)

1.1

Composition of the Board (continued)

Certain information concerning the incumbent Directors of the
Company is set out in the table below. The current term of all

TEERER(E)
EEE(H)

—
.

1.1 EEZWAMK (&)

TREMBEARAREEENET
Bf - ARBIMAESENAEERH

the Directors of the Company will expire on May 15, 2017. 2017658158 [Eim ©

Date of Appointment/
Name Age Position Re-appointment
#E Fik B ZE/ERAH
Mr. YANG Guang 51 Executive Director and Chairman of the Board ~ Re-appointed on May 16, 2014
B ks WIEERESRR 20145 516 RS2
Mr. CHEN Dongging 50 Executive Director Appointed on March 29, 2016
REEELE HITESR 20163 A29 R LT
Mr. TANG Chaoxiong 48 Executive Director Appointed on March 29, 2016
B HiTES 201653 A29 AL T
Mr. WANG Zhongqu 54 Non-executive Director Appointed on May 16, 2014
FRRELE FRTES 2014F5 R 16 HEZ AT
Mr. ZHANG Wenjian 52 Non-executive Director Appointed on May 16, 2014
RXERE FiTEE 20145516 HEZE
Mr. FENG Shuchen 52 Non-executive Director Re-appointed on May 16, 2014
I A FHTES 201455 A 16 A EE
Mr. YAN Andrew Y. 58 Non-executive Director Re-appointed on May 16, 2014
A s FTES 2014516 B =R
Mr. SHEN Xiaoliu 65 Independent Non-executive Director Appointed on March 29, 2016
R L BUFNTES 20163 A29HEZE
Mr. QU Jiuhui 58 Independent Non-executive Director Appointed on May 16, 2014
AL BUFNTES 201465 16 AR Z
Mr. XIE Qiuye 56 Independent Non-executive Director Appointed on May 16, 2014
HTNE BUFNTES 2014F5 A16 HEZR T

Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony 55
SBERE

Independent Non-executive Director

BIUFNTES

Re-appointed on May 16, 2014
20145516 HE=E
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TEERHE(E)
Corporate Governance Practices (continued) TEERFR(E)
1.  The Board (continued) 1. EEg(#E)
1.2 Director’s Continuous Training and Development 1.2 EEWHEFEESIIREE

In compliance with Rule A6.5 of the Code and to ensure that
the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant, during the reporting year, the Company arranged
and funded suitable training for all Directors such as holding
special training sessions covering topics including notifiable
transactions under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules, connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the
issuer’s continuing obligations under Chapter 13 of the Listing
Rules.

Besides the trainings provided by the Company, Directors
have also developed their professional skills through various
ways, including attending forums, seminars and public
lectures.

As of December 31, 2015, all Directors of the Company,
namely, Mr. YANG Guang, Mr. FEI Zhi, Ms. WANG Hongyan.
Mr. WANG Zhongqu, Mr. ZHANG Wenijian, Mr. FENG Shuchen,
Mr. YAN Andrew Y., Ms. ZHANG Xiaolu, Mr. QU Jiuhui, Mr.
XIE Qiuye, and Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony, had participated
in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills as required by “Rule” A6.5
of the Code, in order to ensure the Directors’ contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant,. According to the
record provided by the Board and the board of supervisors,
the summary of the trainings received by Directors and
supervisors for period from January 1, 2015 to December 31,
2015 is as follows:
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

eEERRE(E)

Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

The Board (continued)

1.2  Director’s Continuous Training and Development (continued)

TEERER(E)
EEE(H)

—
.

12 EFENFHAEIRZE(H)

Types of continuous
professional development

Name programmes
L BHEEXRRTEER
Executive Directors

HiTES

Mr. YANG Guang (Chairman) A-B
B trs (/%)

Mr. FEI Zhi (Resigned on November 17, 2015) A-B
g Bi4t (2015811 A17 B BHT)

Ms. WANG Hongyan (Resigned on October 27, 2015) A-B
TRt (FA20155F 10 A 27 B &#T)

Mr. CHEN Dongging (President) (Appointed on March 29, 2016) A-B
RREEE (#8457 ) (52201653 A29 B EAT)

Mr. TANG Chaoxiong (Appointed on March 29, 2016)) A-B
RS A (FA2016F3 A29 A BHT)

Non-executive Directors

FETES

Mr. WANG Zhongqu A-B
FTARREE

Mr. ZHANG Wenjian A
RX 2t

Mr. FENG Shuchen A
SR B e A

Mr. YAN Andrew Y. A
B s

Independent Non-executive Directors

BAFHITES

Ms. ZHANG Xiaolu (Resigned on January 11, 2016) A-B
RESLL (FA20165F1 B 11 AEE)

Mr. SHEN Xiaoliu (Appointed on March 29, 2016) A
BT SR (PA20165F3 A29 A FF)

Mr. QU Jiuhui A-B
fh A SRS A

Mr. XIE Qiuye A
HIKEF 5 A4

Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony A

SBIERE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (C

Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

1.  The Board (continued)

1.2

1.3

Director’s Continuous Training and Development (continued)

Supervisors

NTINUED)
rRERHRE(E)
TEERERA)
1. EERE)
12 BEHRESIIERE )

E=x

Mr. SHAO Guoyong A
PR B A

Mr. XU Xingzhou A
FFELMN ST A

Mr. CHEN Jingdong A
PRERLAE

Ms. HE Lili A-B
fAEELZ T

Mr. LI Wei A-B
T BEAE

A Perusing latest materials for seminars and updates in relation to A: MEEALMRAREMERES

the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements

B: Chairman attending the briefing and/or seminars
Board Meetings

Pursuant to the “Articles of Association” of the Company, the
Board is required to hold at least four Board meetings each
year, which shall be convened by the Chairman of the Board.
A notice of at least 14 days shall be given for a regular board
meeting. The notice shall state the time, venue and means by
which the board meeting will be convened.

Except for the Board'’s consideration of matters in relation
to connected transactions as set forth in the “Articles of
Association” of the Company, the quorum for a board meeting
is the majority of all the Directors. A Director may attend the
board meeting in person, or appoint another Director in writing
as his proxy to attend the Board meeting. The secretary to
the Board of the Company is responsible for preparing and
keeping the minutes of board meetings and ensuring that such
minutes are available for inspection by any Director.

1.3
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

s

ES

BamE(E)

Corporate Governance Practices (continued) TEERER(E)
1.  The Board (continued) 1. ESBE(HE)
1.3 Board Meetings (continued) 1.3 EFE22Z(4E)

During 2015, the Board held seven meetings in total. Presence
of Directors at board meetings is as follows:

The Second Session of the Board

R20155FE  ESEHBITTHLAE
EOERNFES

SERERAT

E_ERESE

Number of Meetings Attendance
Name Position in the Company Attended/Held Rate%
e A TWAL HEBITERRE HEE%
Mr.YANG Guang Executive Director and Chairman of the Board 7/7 100
5 k4t HITEERESK
Mr.FEI Zhi Executive Director @ 5/7 70
B OBEE HiTEEO
Mr. CHEN Dongging Executive Director® 0/7 0
LB EE HITES @
Ms. WANG Hongyan Executive Director™ 5/7 70
ECE (Regun WITEE O
Mr. TANG Chaoxiong Executive Director ® 0/7 0
EBE e WITEE ©
Mr. WANG Zhongqu Non-executive Director 7/7 100
ITRREE FMITES
Mr. ZHANG Wenjian Non-executive Director 77 100
SRR E A FMITES
Mr. FENG Shuchen Non-executive Director 7/7 100
ISR A FMITES
Mr. YAN Andrew Y. Non-executive Director 7/7 100
Loy FMITES
Ms. ZHANG Xiaolu Independent Non-executive Director® 77 100
KRBLLT B IEITESR ©
Mr. SHEN Xiaoliu Independent Non-executive Director® 0/7 0
B S BIEHITEE ©
Mr. QU Jiuhui Independent Non-executive Director 7/7 100
A S BAUENTES
Mr. XIE Qiuye Independent Non-executive Director 77 100
INEF S A BIIEMITES
Mr. FAN Ren Da Anthony Independent Non-executive Director 77 100
BLERE BIIEMITES
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CO

Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

1. The Board (continued)

1.3 Board Meetings (continued)

(1)

Ms. WANG Hongyan resigned on October 27, 2015.

Mr. FEI Zhi resigned on November 17, 2015.
Ms. ZHANG Xiaolu resigned on January 11, 2016.

Mr. CHEN Dongging was appointed as the general manager
of the Company on the Board meeting convened on February
4, 2016, and was appointed as an executive Director and
a member of the Strategic Committee on the 2016 first
extraordinary general meeting covened on March 29, 2016.
For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated February 4, 2016 and March 29, 2016.

Mr. TANG Chaoxiong was appointed as the chief accountant
of the Company on the Board meeting convened on October
12, 2015, and was appointed as an executive Director and
a member of the Nomination Committee on the 2016 first
extraordinary general meeting of the Company convened on
March 29, 2016. For details, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated October 27, 2015 and March 29, 2016.

Mr. SHEN Xiaoliu was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director and a member of each of the Strategic
Committee and the Audit Committee on the 2016 first
extraordinary general meeting of the Company convened on
March 29, 2016. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated March 29, 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TRERRE (B

Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

1.  The Board (continued)

1.4 Powers Exercised by the Board and the Management

The powers and duties of the Board and the management
have been clearly defined in the “Articles of Association” of the
Company so as to ensure that adequate check-and-balance
is in place for the purpose of maintaining effective corporate

governance and internal control.

The Board is responsible for deciding on the Company’s
business and investment plans, determining the establishment
of the Company'’s internal management structure, issuing the
Company’s essential administration regulations, resolving and
approving other material business and administrative matters
of the Company and supervising the performance of the

management.

Led by the President (and also an executive Director), the
management of the Company is responsible for implementing
the resolutions passed by the Board and managing the

Company’s day-to-day operations.

1.5 Chairman and President

The posts of the Chairman of the Board and the President
of the Company (i.e. chief executive officer pursuant to
the relevant Listing Rules) are separated and held by
different persons in order to ensure the independence of
their respective responsibilities, and the balance of power
and authority between them. Mr. YANG Guang acts as the
Chairman of the Board and Mr. CHEN Dongging acts as the
President. The Rules and Procedures of the Board Meeting
and the Terms of Reference of the Senior Management of the
Company, as considered and approved by the Board, clearly
define the division of duties between the Chairman and the

President.

Mr. YANG Guang, the Chairman of the Board, is responsible
for leading the Board in determining the overall development
strategies of the Company and ensuring that the Board
effectively performs its duties and discusses significant and
appropriate matters in a timely manner that the Company
establishes effective corporate governance practices and
procedures and that the Board acts in the best interest of
the Company and its Shareholders. Mr. CHEN Donggqing,
the President of the Company, is mainly responsible for the
Company’s day-to-day operations, including implementing

Board resolutions and making day-to-day decisions.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (C

Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

1.  The Board (continued)

1.6

1.7

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Pursuant to the “Articles of Association” of the Company,
Directors including the non-executive Directors shall be
elected at general meetings with a term of office for no more
than three years and may be re-appointed. The Company has
established a set of procedures for appointing new Directors.
Nomination of new Directors shall be first considered by the
Nomination Committee, whose recommendations will then be
presented to the Board for consideration. All newly nominated
Directors are subject to election and approval at general
meetings.

Each of the executive Directors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company on May 16, 2014 and
each of the non-executive Directors has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company, in compliance with relevant
laws and regulations, and the “Articles of Association” of the
Company. Each of the independent non-executive Directors
has entered into a three-year-term letter of appointment with
the Company. Each service contract is for a term of three years
commenced from May 16, 2014. Each letter of appointment
commenced from May 16, 2014, (or June 8, 2012, in the
case of the letter of appointment of Mr. YAN Andrew Y.; or
March 29, 2016, in the case of the re-appointment of Mr.
FENG Shuchen, Mr. CHEN Dongging, Mr. TANG Chaoxiong,
Mr. SHEN Xiaoliu and the re-appointment of Mr. FAN Ren Da
Anthony), with a one-year automatic extension clause.

Directors’ Remuneration

The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee makes
recommendations about Directors’ remuneration by taking
into consideration factors such as educational background
and work experience. The Board determines the Directors’
remuneration by considering Directors’ experiences, work
performances, positions and market conditions and subject to
approval of the general meeting of Shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
rEERRE (B

Corporate Governance Practices (continued) TEERERE)
2. Board Committees EEgTEZEY

There are four Board committees, namely the Audit Committee,
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee, Nomination Committee and
Strategic Committee.

On May 16, 2014, the chairman and members of the second session
of Board committees were appointed on the first Board meeting of
the second session of the Board. On March 29, 2016, members of
the Board committees were supplemented and replaced.

2.1 Audit Committee

During the reporting period, the audit committee of the
Company consisted of three Directors: Mr. FAN Ren Da
Anthony (independent non-executive Director), Mr. QU Jiuhui
(independent non-executive Director) and Mr. ZHANG Wenijian
(independent non-executive Director). On March 29, 2016, Mr.
QU Jiuhui was replaced by Mr. SHEN Xiaoliu. Mr. Fan Ren Da
Anthony served as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The
primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review
and supervise the Company’s financial reporting procedures,
including:

o Making proposals in respect of the appointment, re-
appointment or change of the external auditors to
the Board, approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of external auditors, and handling any
issues related to the resignation or dismissal of external
auditors;

° Evaluating and examining the independence and
objectivity of the external auditors and the effectiveness
of the auditing procedures in accordance with
applicable standards;

o Monitoring completeness, accuracy and impartiality
of the financial statements of the Company and the
Company’s accounts, annual reports and interim reports
and reviewing significant financial reporting opinions
contained in them;

o Reviewing the Company’s financial control, internal
control and risk management systems; and

o Taking necessary measures to ensure that employees
have a channel to raise concerns in an anonymous
manner any possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (C

Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

2. Board Committees (continued)

2.1

Audit Committee (continued)

During the reporting year, the Audit Committee held four
meetings, details of which are as follows:

° On February 25, 2015, the first meeting of the Audit
Committee of the second session of the Board for 2015
was held, at which the resolution regarding change in
accounting estimates of depreciation of fixed assets and
accounting recognition methods.

° On March 13, 2015, the second meeting of the Audit
Committee second session of the Board for 2015
was held, at which (1) the resolution regarding the
Company’s 2014 announcement of the annual results
(the review draft) and the annual report (the review draft)
was considered and approved; and (2) the resolution
regarding the appointment of PRC and international
auditors for 2015 was considered and approved.

° On June 25, 2015, the third meeting of the Audit
Committee second session of the Board for 2015 was
held, at which the resolution regarding the formulation
of the Basic System of Internal Control (trial) of the
Company was considered and approved.

o On August 21, 2015, the fourth meeting of the Audit
Committee second session of the Board for 2015
was held, at which the resolution regarding the
Company’s 2015 interim report (the review draft) and the
announcement of interim results (the review draft) was
considered and approved.

All the members of the Audit Committee attended the above
meetings, except for the absence of Mr. QU Jiuhui on the
fourth meeting of the Audit Committee of the second session
of the Board for 2015.
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Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

2.

Board Committees (continued)

2.2

Remuneration and Appraisal Committee

The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee of the Company
consists of three Directors: Mr. QU Jiuhui (chairman), Mr. XIE
Qiuye and Mr. WANG Zhongqu. Mr. QU Jiuhui serves as the
chairman of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee. The
primary responsibilities of the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee are to formulate the standards concerning the
assessment of Directors and senior management, assess the
performance of Directors and senior management, and decide
on and review remuneration policies and plans concerning
Directors and senior management, including:

o Approving and overseeing the total remuneration of
Directors and senior management; assessing the
performance of senior management and deciding on
and approving the remuneration to be paid to senior
management;

o Reviewing the remuneration of Directors and making
corresponding recommendations to the Board of
Directors; and

° Reviewing the remuneration policies, strategies and
principles of Directors and senior management and
making recommendations about it to the Board of
Directors.

During the reporting year, the Remuneration and Appraisal
Committee held one meeting on March 13, 2015, at which
resolution regarding the remuneration of Directors, Supervisors
and senior management for 2015 was considered and
approved.

All the members of the Remuneration and Appraisal Committee
attended the above meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (C

Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

2. Board Committees (continued)

2.3

Nomination Committee

The Company’s Nomination Committee consists of three
Directors: Mr. XIE Qiuye, Mr. QU Jiuhui and Mr. TANG
Chaoxiong (executive Director, effective from March 29, 2016)
were appointed as members of the Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr. XIE Qiuye is currently the chairman of
the Nomination Committee. The primary responsibilities of
the Company’s Nomination Committee are to formulate the
procedures and standards for nominating candidates for
Directors and senior management, and conduct preliminary
review of the qualifications and other credentials of the
candidates for Directors and senior management. In addition,
Nomination Committee is in charge of supervising execution
of the Director Diversity Policy (the “Poliey”) according to the
Policy. Nomination Committee will also discuss any possible
amendments to the Policy and propose to the Board for its the
review and approval, to ensure the effectiveness of the Policy.
Nomination Committee considers the constitution of Directors
during the reporting period satisfied the requirements of the
Policy.

During the reporting year, the Nomination Committee held two
meetings, details of which are as follows:

On March 4, 2015, the first meeting of the Nomination
Committee of the second session of the Board in 2015 was
held, at which the resolutions regarding the formulation of the
Board Diversity Policy was considered and approved.

The second meeting of the Nomination Committee second
session of the Board in 2015 was held on October 9, 2015,
at which resolutions regarding the (1) the appointment and
dismissal of the chief account of the Company; and (2) the
appointment and dismissal of the deputy general manager of
the Company were considered and approved.

All the members of the Nomination Committee attended the
above meetings.
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Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

2. Board Committees (continued)

2.4 Strategic Committee

The Company'’s Strategic Committee consists of five Directors:
Mr. YANG Guang (executive Director and chairman), Mr.
XIE Qiuye (independent non-executive Director), Mr. FENG
Shuchen (non-executive Director), Mr. YAN Andrew Y. (non-
executive Director) and Mr. FEI Zhi (executive Director).
On March 29, 2016, Mr. XIE Qiuye was replaced by Mr.
SHEN Xiaoliu and Mr. FEI Zhi was replaced by Mr. CHEN
Dongging. Mr. YANG Guang serves as the chairman of
the Strategic Committee. The primary responsibilities of
the Strategic Committee are to formulate the Company’s
overall development plans and investment decision-making
procedures, including:

o Reviewing the Company’s long-term development
strategies;

o Reviewing the Company’s strategic plans and
implementation reports;

° Reviewing significant capital expenditure, investment
and financing projects that require approval of the
Board; and

o Authorizing the President’s office to formulate specific
plans, negotiate and implement relevant review and
approval procedures, execute contracts and relevant
documents, and handle relevant procedures for the
above matters.

During the reporting year, the Strategic Committee held five
meetings, details of which are as follows:

The first meeting of the Strategic Committee of the second
session of the Board in 2015 was held on March 13, 2015,
at which the resolution regarding the issuance of non-public
placement debt financing Instruments in the PRC.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (C

Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

2. Board Committees (continued)

2.4

Strategic Committee (continued)

The second meeting of the Strategic Committee of the second
session of the Board in 2015 was held on June 24, 2015,
at which the resolutions regarding (1) the formulation of the
Plan of Investment Management System of the Company;
(2) the amendments to the Administrative Methods of
Developing Strategies and Plans of the Company; and (3) the
implementation of direct lending business under domestic
guarantee were considered and approved.

The third meeting of the Strategic Committee of the second
session of the Board in 2015 was held on July 16, 2015,
at which the resolution regarding the transfer of equity in
Longyuan Cooling of the Company was considered and
approved.

The fourth meeting of the Strategic Committee of the second
session of the Board in 2015 was held on November 17, 2015,
at which the resolution of discontinue the business of Guodian
Solar was considered and approved.

The fifth meeting of the Strategic Committee of the second
session of the Board in 2015 was held on December 23, 2015,
at which the resolution regarding the acquisition of equity
interest of Guodian Boxing Power Plant (2x1,000 MW) Project
was considered and approved.

All the members of the Strategic Committee attended the
above meetings.
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Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

3.

Director’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2015.

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear and understandable
assessment report in respect of the financial statements for 2015
and other issues required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules and other supervisory provisions. Management has provided
such explanations and information to the Board as necessary to
enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
information and position of the Group which is to be reviewed and
approved by the Board.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

In addition, appropriate insurance coverage for Directors’ liabilities
has been arranged against potential legal proceedings to be taken
against the Directors.

Compliance with the Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct and
rules governing dealings by all Directors and Supervisors in the
securities of the Company. After specific enquiries were made by
the Company to them, all Directors and Supervisors have confirmed
that they have strictly complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code for the year ended December 31, 2015.

To ensure the compliance with relevant requirements under the
Listing Rules and to protect Shareholders’ interests, the Board will
examine the corporate governance practices and the operations of
the Company from time to time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (C

Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

5.

Internal Control

The Company places prime importance to internal control. An
internal control system has been established to protect Shareholders’
and the Company’s interests.

The Company has set up a set of internal control rules, including
“Rules and Procedures of the General Meeting”, “Rules and
Procedures of the Board Meeting”, “Rules and Procedures of
the Supervisor Meeting”, “Terms of References for the Strategic
Committee of the Board”, “Terms of References for the Audit
Committee of the Board”, “Terms of References for the Nomination
Committee of the Board”, “Terms of References for the Remuneration
and Appraisal Committee of the Board”, “Provisions on Information
Disclosure”, “Administrative Measures on Connected Transactions”,
and “Internal Control Principle Policy.”

In order to monitor and regulate potential insider trading activities,
and to ensure the confidentiality of insider information, the Company
has established a set of “Management Rules on the Conduct of
Insider Trading of Guodian Technology & Environment Group
Corporation Limited” in accordance with “the Company Law of the
PRC”, “Securities and Futures Ordinance”, “Listing Rules” and other
relevant laws and regulations and the “Articles of Association” of the
Company.

The Company has also established the Finance and Property
Department, the Audit Department and the Supervision Department
and has sufficient personnel in each department in charge of
financial operations, risk management, internal auditing and anti-
corruption work. Besides, the Company has provided regular
training at its own expenses to the Group’s employees whose duties
relate to finance, risk management and internal auditing so as to
ensure that they are well qualified and experienced.
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Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

5.

Internal Control (continued)

Each department of the Company is able to smoothly submit to the
Board information required. Being the most senior point of contact
for each department of the Company, the President has the duty to
effectively report to the Board in relation to the operations of each
department, and to coordinate and mobilize the demands of each
department to promote reasonable decision-making within the
Company.

During the reporting year, the Board assessed the internal
control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries and was not
aware of any material weaknesses nor any material defaults in
respect of financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management. The Board believes that the current monitoring system
of the Company is effective and considers that the resources,
qualifications and experiences of the staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting functions, its training programs
and budgets thereof are adequate.

Auditors and Remuneration

KPMG and Union Power Certified Public Accountants (Special
General Partnership) (“Union Power”) were appointed as
auditors for the financial statements prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises of PRC for the year ended
December 31, 2015, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the fees payable to KPMG
and Union Power Certified Public Accountants (Special General
Partnership) for audit services were RMB10.16 million and RMB3.325
million, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the fee payable to KPMG
for non-audited services related to the review of the Company’s
interim financial report was RMB4.56 million. Union Power did not
provide any non-audited services for the year ended December 31,
2015.

KMPG, the Company’s external auditor’s responsibilities for the
financial statements are set out on pages 125 to 126 of this Annual
Report.

The Company plans to present the proposal of re-appointing KPMG
and Union Power as the auditors of the Company at the annual
general meeting to be convened.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (C

Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

7.

Communications with Shareholders

The Company highly appreciates Shareholders’ opinions and
advice, actively organizes various investor relations-related activities
to maintain communication with Shareholders and timely responds
to reasonable requests of Shareholders.

7.1

Convening Extraordinary General Meetings by Shareholders

According to the Articles of Association of the Company, two
or more Shareholders holding in aggregate more than 10%
of the shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting sought
to be held may sign one or more counterpart requisitions
requiring the Board to convene an extraordinary general
meeting and stating the objectives of the meeting. The Board
shall, in accordance with the requirements of laws and
regulations and the “Articles of Association” of the Company,
furnish a written reply stating its agreement or disagreement
to convene the extraordinary general meeting within ten
days upon receipt of such requisition. If the Board agrees
to convene the extraordinary general meeting, a notice for
convening the extraordinary general meeting shall be issued
within five days upon adoption of the resolution by the Board.

If the Board does not agree to convene the extraordinary
general meeting, or if it fails to give its feedback in writing
within ten days upon receipt of such requisition, Shareholders
individually or jointly holding an aggregate of more than 10%
of the shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting sought to
be held shall be entitled to propose to the board of Supervisors
to convene an extraordinary general meeting, and shall submit
its proposal in writing to the board of Supervisors. If the board
of Supervisors agrees to convene the extraordinary general
meeting, a notice for convening such meeting shall be issued
within five days upon receipt of such requisition.

If the board of Supervisors fails to issue a notice for such
meeting within the prescribed period, the board of Supervisors
shall be deemed not to convene and preside at the meeting,
and Shareholders individually or jointly holding an aggregate
of more than 10% of the shares of the Company for more than
90 consecutive days themselves may convene and preside at
the meeting at their own discretion.

If the Board does not issue a notice of meeting within 30
days upon receipt of the aforesaid written requisition, the
requisitioning Shareholders themselves may convene such a
meeting according to procedures as similar as possible to that
in which general meeting are to be convened by the Board
within four months from the date of receipt of the requisition by
the Board.
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Corporate Governance Practices (continued)
7. Communications with Shareholders (continued) 7.
7.2 ERRAERHES

7.2 Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

REARBARAER)  RAEBHK
RRE  BERHAAFHERFI%N

According to the “Articles of Association” of the Company,
when the Company convenes an annual general meeting,

7.3

Shareholders individually or jointly holding more than 3% of
the shares of the Company shall have the right to propose
motions. Shareholders holding more than 3% of the shares
of the Company shall have the right to propose ad hoc
motions in writing, and the Company shall include matters
in the proposed ad hoc motions within the scope of duties
and responsibilities of the general meetings on the agenda, if
the criteria as specified in the “Articles of Association” of the
Company are met.

Investor Relations Activities

The Group received visiting investors, analysts and press
thoughtfully and answered their related questions efficiently
and accurately; the Group paid close attention to developing
trends in the market, and always communicated with the
public in a realistic, objective and compliant way.

7.3.1 Results Roadshows

In 2015, the Company did not organize results roadshow
events.

7.3.2 Investors’ Routine Visits

7.3
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During the reporting period, the Company received 32 WMERA - AR ﬂL‘A—%‘J—ﬁ
groups of investors and analysts by way of one-to-one/ #MACE BESEFN
group/telephone meetings, totaling 41 people. BEFREE $ﬁEﬂ532Ttt/A :

7.3.3 Investment Summits

During the reporting period, the Company attended
an investment summit organized by world-famous
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investment banks, and fully communicated with investors CRB-YH—eR N Eg
through one-to-one/group meetings. mﬁ’j??‘tﬁi&é%zﬁ ITRD
B o

2015 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (C

Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

7. Communications with Shareholders (continued)

7.4

7.5

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

According to the “Articles of Association” of the Company, all
Directors shall attend general meetings. Shareholders may
present enquiries to the Board at such general meetings. If
Shareholders need to contact the Board for enquiries, they
are also welcome to send enquiries directly to the Company,
contact details of which are as follows:

Attention: Board Office

Address: Suite 1225, Building No. 1
Block No. 16
Xi Si Huan Zhong Road
Haidian District
Beijing, PRC

Postal code: 100039

Telephone: 010-5765 7777

Fax: 010-5765 9705

Email: board@kh.cgdc.com.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit
and send the original duly signed written enquiry or
correspondence of any type to the above address, and
provide his or her full name, contact details and proof of
identification in order to give effect thereto.

Disseminating Information through the Internet

In order to promote good corporate governance and increase
transparency, the Group set up a website (www.01296.hk) as
a medium to disseminate information. The Group implements
procedures to vet information which is to be put on its website
and also monitors its website to ensure that all published
information is up-to-date and accurate.
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Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

7.

10.

Communications with Shareholders (continued)
7.6 Overseas Regulatory Announcement

As Longyuan Technology, a subsidiary of the Company, is a
public company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, the
Group has complied with the requirements regarding overseas
regulatory announcements in accordance with Rule 13.10(B)
of the Listing Rules.

Furthermore, as the corporate bonds of the Company are
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, the Group has
complied with the requirements regarding overseas regulatory
announcements in accordance with Rule 13.10(B) of the
Listing Rules in this regard.

Company Secretary

Mr. WONG Ki Yan Davhen is the internal company secretary of
the Company. Please refer to the Section headed “Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management — Company Secretary” for
further information.

The Company’s company secretary had complied with Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules during 2015.

Amendments to the “Articles of Association”

There was no material change in the “Articles of Association” of the
Company during 2015.

Management of Inside Information

In order to promote fairness, transparency, accountability and
responsibility, which are the core principles of good corporate
governance, the Group notifies the Exchange and discloses to
Shareholders and other holders of its listed securities of the Group’s
inside information pursuant to the Listing Rules and Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (“SFO”).
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Corporate Governance Practices (continued)

11.

12.

Connected Transaction Management

In order to strengthen the Company’s management of connected
transactions, the Company has established the “Management Rules
on the Conduct of Connected Transactions of Guodian Technology
& Environment Group Corporation Limited” and has designated the
Office of the Board for the management of connected transactions
with the assistance from the Securities and Finance Division and
Financial Property Division. In order to ensure that the Company’s
connected transactions are carried out in accordance with
applicable rules and regulations and that the aggregate transaction
amounts do not exceed the annual caps, the Group has notified
all subsidiaries and divisions regarding the applicable continuing
connected transaction caps, allocated monitoring obligations to
specific subsidiaries and divisions and required such subsidiaries
or divisions to report to the senior management regarding the
connected transactions. The Company has provided regular training
to the Company’s internal staff in relation to connected transactions
from time to time, and has designated specialized personnel in an
effort to ensure full compliance with the relevant Listing Rules.

Insider Trading Management

In order to monitor and regulate potential insider trading activities
and ensure the confidentiality of inside information, the Company
has established a set of “Management Rules on Inside Information
of Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited”
in accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Listing Rules and other relevant laws and
regulations and the “Articles of Association” of the Company.
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As at December 31, 2015, the Group had a total of 9,274 staff, of which
6,847 or 73.8% were male while 2,427 or 26.2% were female. The staff

structure is as follows:

Table 1: Analysis of the Group’s staff by academic qualification

SUMMARY OF HUMAN RESOURCES

R2015F 128318 - AEBHKBFET9,274% -

HEpF5BET6,847 A + (H73.8% + B T 2427

A v {h26.2% - ABIEKERIT ¢

R— AEEREREINETION

Number of Staff Percentage

Academic Qualification BF AH 4]
%

Postgraduate or above R ERIALE 981 10.6
Undergraduate REARE 3,233 34.9
College diploma REER 2,236 241
Technical secondary school or below ~ FEKEIAT 2,824 30.4
Total At 9,274 100.0

10.6%

Postgraduate or above
ARAERIA £
B Undergraduate
RERF
34.9%

W College diploma
REBHR}

B Technical secondary school or below

RERAT

24.1%

Table 2: Analysis of the Group’s staff by age

R AEEEFRETNETIAN

Number of Staff Percentage

Age FiR A LBl
%

56 years old and above 565% A £ 151 1.6
46-55 years old 46-5573% 1,009 10.9
36-45 years old 36-4573% 1,993 215
35 years old and below 35EEMIAT 6,121 66.0
Total ast 9,274 100.0

1.6%

66.0%
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SUMMARY OF HUMAN RESOURCES (CONTINUED)
ANERBR (&)

As at December 31, 2015, the Company had a total of 114 staff. The staff
structure is as follows:

Table 3: Analysis of the Company’s staff by academic qualification

M2015F12A318  RREIEXBET 1144 - A
BRABERNAT

R AQRREBREEINETI N

Number of Staff Percentage

Academic Qualification BF AB Ll
%

Postgraduate or above A A £ 47 41.2
Undergraduate RERE 55 48.2
College diploma RNEEHR 6 5.3
Technical secondary school or below ~ AERLAT 6 53
Total CEll 114 100.0

| Postgraduate or above
FHFRERIA £

B Undergraduate
RERE}

M College diploma
REHER}

Bl Technical secondary school or below
RERAT

48.2%

Table 4: Analysis of the Company’s staff by age

RN AATRFRESNET SN

Number of Staff Percentage
Age FiR A¥ 2]
%
56 years old and above 56mA 4 35
46-55 years old 46-555% 20 17.6
36-45 years old 36-455% 39 34.2
35 years old and below 35 LA 51 44.7
Total At 114 100.0
3.5%
17.6%
| 56 years and above
5657 L
44.7%
M 46-55 years
46-555%
W 36-45 years
36-45%%
M 35 years and below
30.0% 35ERIAT
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SUMMARY OF HUMAN RESOURCES (CONTINUED)

ANE R (E)

Staff Performance Appraisal

Guodian Tech diligently implements the “155 Strategy” of Guodian Group
by promoting the transition and upgrade of the Company, strengthening
the development of its core capacity and the establishment of a
marketization mechanism. The Company faces its challenges directly with
proactive exploration and intensified management and control in order to
strengthen its services. In order to ensure the objectiveness and fairness
of the performance evaluation and the comparability of the evaluation
results, the Company introduced the departmental evaluation process
where the management of the Company evaluates middle management
and departments, and in turn the department managers evaluate their
employees, ensuring that the missions of the Company are effectively
conveyed.

Staff Training

The Group has duly implemented the strategy of strengthening the
enterprise by attracting talent to continuously enhance the systematic
education and training of the Group as well as strengthen and improve
the employee training system catering to the Group’s future development
and the need for talent. Training tailored for the Company’s personnel of
different professions at different levels were carried out according to their
needs.

To improve staff quality was considered as an important aspect in the
talent development strategy in the 2015 education training. The Group
strived to improve the training system and curriculum planning to meet the
requirements of the development of the Group, actively explored to build
a “3+1” employee training system comprising of leadership, competence,
execution, and professional skills; orientated by ability and quality, the
Group organized 107 relevant trainings, and the number of training
personnel in attendance reached 4,640.

The Company has laid a solid foundation for building the platform of talent
training and appraisal of occupational skills through the establishment of
“the Lecture Hall of Guodian Tech”. Through continuous development of
various training courses, the Group has increasingly improved staff quality,
reinforced the modern management concept among its management and
enhanced its overall management efficiency.

Employee Remuneration Policy

In 2015, in order to continually optimize and improve the position and
performance salary payment system, the Company has conducted the
position design, position analysis and position evaluation scientifically
and reasonably by considering practice and real situations to establish
the internal income allocation method centering on position value and
performance contribution. And the diverse position and performance
salary payment mechanism with hierarchical classification has been
gradually formed. The employee remuneration of the Group comprises
of basic salary, performance payment and bonus payment. Performance
payment is made with reference to the Company’s financial results and the
performance appraisal on the individual employee. The bonus payment is
made with reference to the status of completion of the Company’s annual
major tasks.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STRATEGY AND MANAGEMENT

Social Responsibility Strategy and Management

The Company has made substantial efforts since its establishment to fulfill
its corporate social responsibilities by promoting the Group’s performance
and sustainable growth of the society. The Company emphasizes the
importance of energy conservation and environmental protection as part of
its corporate culture, and incorporates such concept into its daily business
operation.

At present, the prospects of recovery of global economy remain bleak
and while China is still at the essential stage of strategic opportunities, it
is also faced with various challenges such as superimposed conflicts and
a mounting number of hidden risks. Amidst excess production capacity
in the energy and power industry, green and low carbon have become
an emerging trend for the development of energy. In the face of such
challenges, in a bid to adapt to the rapidly-changing market environment,
the Group will place key emphasis for its corporate social responsibilities
on (1) fostering technological innovations and development; (2) promoting
the development of new energy, energy conservation and environmental
protection as well as low-carbon technologies; (3) proactively taking
part in activities for a good cause; and (4) devoting greater efforts to
anti-corruption and advocating the notion of corruption-free business
operations.

Environmental Protection

The core business of the Group is providing the solutions to and services
of the smoke-gas treatment such as denitrification and desulfurization for
thermal power plants, sewage treatment resolutions and services, energy
conservation of facilities resolutions and services as well as manufacturing
new energy (i.e. green energy) equipment, new energy power generation
and etc. In 2015, the Group continued to exert its advantages in the
environmental protection industry and has made outstanding contributions
to the causes of global environmental protection, energy conservation and
emission reduction.

As at the end of December 2015, the cumulative installed capacity of the
company-owned concession desulfurization project was 36,610.0 MW,
and the cumulative installed capacity of the company-owned concession
denitrification project was 7,100.0 MW. Annual emission reduction of
sulfur dioxide reached 1.2249 million tons, while the number of reduction
for nitrogen oxide was 14,800 tons. Newly installed EPC desulfurization
capacity within the year was about 22,980.0 MW, while newly installed EPC
denitrification capacity is approximately 9,720.0 MW, and accumulated
capacity reached 179,055.0 MW and 123,403 MW over the years.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STRATEGY AND MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

e EEKEERE (&)

In the field of low-nitrogen modification, the Company currently possesses
over 480 boilers equipped with low nitrogen combustion technologies,
with a market share of 36%, taking a leading position within the
industry. Double-scale low nitrogen combustion technology has made a
breakthrough on low-quality and fire-retardant coals such as lean coals
and mixed coals, and the nitrogen-reducing indicator has reached a
leading level in the PRC. The technology of low nitrogen modification
realized the extension to boilers of special types, successfully implemented
the low-nitrogen modification and flue gas denitrification projects to a
group of fluidised bed boiler and small boiler. In 2015, the Group also
entered into new low-NOx combustion contracts and completed the low-
NOx transformation for more than 80 units. With consistent upgrading in
technology, the development of the Company’s low-NOx technologies will
further go wider and deeper.

The water treated by the sewage treatment plants of Lucency (a subsidiary
of the Group) is sorted as follows: (1) discharged if the water reaches the
discharge standard after the treatment, or (2) runs back to the industrial
enterprises (e.g. power plant) after the reusing treatment. Industrial
sewage and household sewage discharged by sewage treatment plants
are contained in the sewage treatment system and would not be released
to the outside and cause environmental pollution. Through the operation
of water utilities, the Group has disposed of 237,318,600 tons of sewage
(including recycled water) and the emission reduction of COD has
accumulated 91,500 tons.

Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction

In addition to the contributions made by the Group with the advantages in
environment protection industry, the Group is also committed to contract
energy management, plasma ignition, micro oil ignition, heat pump
manufacture and boilers general reconstruction. The Group values the
fundamental function of the technological progress in energy conservation
and emission reduction and fully uses the advantages in technology
industry and management.

In respect of contract energy management, the Group mainly relies on
energy conservation technologies including turbine flow reconstruction,
steam sealing reconstruction, air preheater seal reconstruction, residual
heat and pressure usage, motor system energy saving and combustion
optimization. The Group has completed nearly 112 contract energy
management reconstruction projects, and conserves over 850,000 tons of
standard coal annually. Among them, 16 were completed in 2014, saving
more than 250,000 tons of standard coal; and 15 in 2015, saving more
than 200,000 tons of standard coal.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STRATEGY AND MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

In respect of oil-saving ignition, the Company currently has approximately
760 boilers with plasma ignition performance, accounting for 85% of the
market share, continuing its absolute leading position in the industry. With
having 40 no-fuel power stations which was built by applying plasma
ignition technology and 40 boilers of oil-saving ignition products with
international performance, the Company is the only enterprise having
plasma ignition performance in the industry. In respect of residual heat
usage, the demonstration project of residual heat advanced usage in
Guodian Jinneng Power Plant completed the verification test by a third
party with obtaining a pass in technology indicators, among which the
coal consumption in power generation reduced by 3.09g/kWh, having a
significant comprehensive efficiency in energy saving and environmental
protection. Under this foundation, the project of Research on Technologies
for Recovering Residual Heat and Water from Smoke Emission of Power
Station Furnace which was supported by national technology has passed
the inspection and acceptance of the department of technology smoothly.
In respect of boiler general reconstruction, the Company has succeeded
in implementing the projects for boiler general reconstruction including
Changyuan Yifa, Mengdong Duoye, Chizhou Jiuhua. The capability in
the boiler general reconstruction business and market influence of the
Company are significantly enhancing.

Wind Turbine Manufacture and Emission Reduction

United Power Technology Company Limited is a subsidiary of the
Group that specializes in the production of wind generator sets and
sold 1,276 high-quality wind turbines throughout the year with a total
capacity of 2,257.5 MW, which is a great contribution to the green energy
development.

In the production of wind turbines, the sewage produced by the production
bases in Jiangsu, Inner mongolia, and Hebei provinces is released into
the local municipal sewage treatment plants through the city net-pipes
and is treated until it reaches the standard then discharged. Solid waste
pollutant is handled by delegated third parties and recycled. Activated
carbon treatment equipment is installed in ventilation systems where the
air pollutants are produced so that the environment would not be harmed.
All other waste is sold to metal recycle companies for recycling purposes.

Wind Power Generation Business Promoting
Emission Reduction

Chifeng Wind Company is a subsidiary of the Group that focuses on the
wind power and photovoltaic power generation business, and which has
generated 255,890,000 KWh electricity in aggregate throughout the year,
which is equal to 242,000 tons’ GHG emissions reduction.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STRATEGY AND MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
HEREBEREER(E)

Continuously Enhancing Environmental Protection
during Construction, Operation and Production

During the construction of desulfurization and denitrification projects,
Longyuan Environmental, a subsidiary of the Group, has strictly
adhered to the environmental protection requirements for the projects
and the “Three Simultaneity” provisions that stipulate the facilities for
environmental protection must be designed, constructed and put into
operation simultaneously with the main part of a construction project. The
concession desulfurization and denitrification items have met the emission
standards.

The sewage treatment plants of Lucency, a subsidiary of the Group,
treated organic pollutants from exhaust pollutant with oxidative
decomposition, and released them after meeting the required standard.
With respect to solid waste, residual sludge is normally buried or utilized
as fertilization in farmland after treatment, and other solid waste such as
sediment and grit are shipped to refuse landfills to be buried.

Workplace Safety and Employee Health

The Company has always insisted on the implementation of PRC laws and
regulations and standards on safe production and occupational hazard,
and has continuously promoted and improved the work environment
management and the occupational health and safety management system.
The Company has created for its employees a working environment and
conditions that meets the PRC occupational safety and sanitary standard
and requirements. By providing qualified labor protection products,
preventing, controlling and eliminating occupational hazards, the
Company has safeguarded its employees’ health and relevant rights.

In order to strengthen the occupational health supervision and
management in each of the Group’s work sites, the Company has
established safety, occupational health assurance system. Each front-line
operational unit has taken the following measures:

1. Compiling the hazard causations list and the major hazard
causations list, and implementing tailored measures and
management plans for each hazard causation, especially major
hazard causations;

2. Regularly organizing for employees to attend training on
occupational health and occupational hazard prevention, and
promoting employees’ self-protection awareness;

3. Continuously improving the work environment of the work site;

4. Organizing for employees to take physical examinations on a regular
basis according to supervision and management measures; and

5. Proactively cooperating with relevant government authorities to work
on the prevention of contagious diseases.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STRATEGY AND I\/IANAGEI\/IENT (CONTINUED)

The Group and its subsidiaries have conducted safety examinations, drills
for emergency accidents and safety education activities in various forms.
The overall safety status for the year is stable. No catastrophic safety
accidents or casualties have occurred.

Contribution to Social Welfare and Participation in the
Development of Local Economy

The Company is also devoted to promoting the well-being and
development of the society, pushing forward sustainable development
of the Group, the Chinese society and the environment. While striving to
develop its own business, the Company along with its subsidiaries and
associates also proactively participate in local social activities within their
capacities, such as joint development with local enterprises, construction
of spiritual civilization, promotion in courses of science, education,
culture and health, community building, donations to schools and local
education, poverty alleviation and etc., which has facilitated the local
economic development and society harmony. Through participating in
social activities, the Company has promoted corporate culture, fostered a
good corporate image and has formed harmonious and stable community
relationships. In 2015, Guodian Tech and its subsidiaries put more efforts
into supporting the local infrastructure development and undertook nearly
40 or more events such as donation to the charity schools for the children
of the migrant workers and children from poor families, performing elderly
care services, and showing solicitude for veterans. The Company also
organized volunteering tree planting, blood donation, voluntary labor for
community service, landscaping, environmental advocacy, and a public
long-distance running event. Longyuan Environmental, a subsidiary of
the Company, started the favorable trend of welfare through activities of
“delivering love by giving out books in welfare”, through which over 200
volumes of excellent books including textbooks of primary and middle
schools, extracurricular reading materials, and social science books had
been given to poor schools. Guodian Zhishen carried out education aid
with love, together with customers, with the accumulative donation to poor
schools of materials including clothes, laptops and school supplies, the
value of which exceeded RMB28,000. Chifeng also carried out education
aid with love, namely “Dream Fulfilment with You in the Golden Autumn”.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STRATEGY AND MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

teETEEETIE(E)

To advocate the concept of reading and learning among all staff,
Guodian Tech proactively guided its subsidiaries to conduct activities
of improving learning through reading. Up to now, 13 book houses have
been established in the system of Guodian Tech, and over 150 activities of
reading online and offline, and book donation. The accumulated number
of donated books in total exceeds 10,000 volumes and the number of
participants has reached around 8,000. The Company established the
mechanism of support by the labour union, reached out to impoverished
staff on a regular basis, and continued to deepen the project of conveying
warmth. In 2015, on the basis of improving original various interest
associations, the basketball association and soccer association were
newly established. Through conducting activities in various forms, the
capability and quality of staff were further enhanced. Through concerted
efforts to create a favourable atmosphere of family culture, Guodian
Zhishen, the subsidiary, was awarded as “National Model Employee
Family”, by the All-China Federation of Trade Unions.

In 2015, “Ribbon of Green”, the youth voluntary service organization,
proactively carried out welfare activities to promote the message of
environmental protection. “Romantic Guodian”, the dating platform, paid
attention to the problems of the youth in real life and carried out over 30
activities in total, which aroused wide concern in the community.

As a high-tech enterprise of electricity power, Guodian Tech made full use
of the exhibition hall at Floor 1, as a supporter of the activity of “Enterprise
Open Day”, resulting in presenting various industry features including
saving energy and environmental protection, new energy equipment
manufacturing and electronic informatization of electricity power, and
promoting the message of environmental protection to the society in a
positive manner. On December 16, 2015, Guodian Tech organized the
reception of teachers and students from thermal energy department of
Tsinghua University, which strengthened the awareness of Tsinghua
students of enterprises of saving energy and protecting the environment,
and presented a favourable social image of Guodian Tech to the society.
In 2015, Guodian Tech received over 800 persons in total, from various
levels of government departments, welfare organization, other companies
and schools for 42 times, in the exhibition hall.

In addition, the Company organized a series of regularly held internal
lectures named “Guodian Tech Forum” to promote the concept of good
corporate governance and corporate culture and to assist the staff to
understand new governmental policies. It became a cultural brand of the
Company. “Guodian Tech Forum” promoted in-depth communications
and interactions among the employees, whose active participation in
developing and promoting the Company’s company culture became a
strong factor in the steady development of the Company.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STRATEGY AND I\/IANAGEI\/IENT (CONTINUED)

Stressing upon anti-corruption and upholding honesty
and integrity in business operations

In 2015, by utilizing the commencement of “the year of deepening
discipline inspection” event as a lever, the Company constantly promoted
the establishment of the “Two Responsibilities” system, resulting in new
progress in the establishment of probity atmosphere and work of anti-
corruption of the Company.

The first is to deepen integrity education. By utilizing the “Nine Integrity”
education activities, namely “integrity delivering, integrity promoting,
integrity inspection, integrity sense, integrity awareness, integrity
enhancement, integrity understanding, integrity undertaking and
integrity establishment”, the Company constantly established a clean
and upright atmosphere. For integrity “delivering” of new media, the
Company published 12 volumes of mobile news on integrity of technology
and environment. With regard to the educational months for integrity
“promoting”, the Company took September and October as educational
months for anti-corruption and commenced 7 educational activity
projects for the nature, rules and disciplines of the Party which educated
approximately 3,000 people. With regard to the integrity tests for integrity
“inspection”, 1,144 Party cadres and personnel with substantial positions
participated collective test for integrity. Regarding the experts and
academicians for integrity “sense”, Party School of the Central Committee,
Beijing Municipal Commission for Discipline Inspection and professor
of Procuratorate of Haidian District were invited for integrity project
tutoring and lecturing. With regard to the regular interviews for integrity
“awareness”, each level of discipline committee carried out integrity
interview with 211 people whereas 270 Party cadres conducted work
reports and integrity reports. With regard to uncovering predeveloped
and small-scale corruption for integrity “enhancement”, the Company
timely carried out integrity interview with the responsible person involving
in the problems discovered in superior inspection and daily operation.
With regard to integrity “understanding” during important festivals, i.e.
on the eves of traditional festivals such as New Year's Day and Lunar
New Year’'s Day, the Company especially issued the Notice on Festival
Celebration with Integrity which required the Party cadres to comply
with the “five prohibition”. With regard to the integrity “undertaking” of
personnel with substantial position, the Party cadre, middle management
and personnel with substantial positions signed 7, 24 and 15 integrity
operation declarations respectively. With regard to the reporting in the files
for integrity establishment, organization leaders and middle management
personnel reported in the Integrity Operation File and all units of secretary
to the party committee and secretary to the disciplinary committee
respectively reviewed and signed for the circumstance reported by the
corresponding personnel.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STRATEGY AND MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
e EEKEER (&)

The second is to establish a “three in one” pre-service integrity education
system for Party cadres. Adhering to strict pre-service integrity review, the
Company conducted integrity reviews on 19 potential leader candidates.
The Company developed integrity tests as approved by the Party and
organized pre-service integrity regulation examination for leaders and
middle cadres. All examination results were outstanding. The Company
established pre-service integrity interview, requiring them to be a
“knowledge possessor of politics, an economically guiltless person, an
involver in integrity and a leader at work”, and signed and endorsed
thereon. According to the management jurisdiction of cadres, the
discipline inspection leader conducted collective integrity interview with
21 new cadres of Party management in three batches whereas all units of
secretary to the disciplinary committee conducted pre-service interviews
with a total of 170 new middle cadres of this unit.

The third is to deepen the promotion and implementation of two
ordinances. The Company timely prepared and published learning
materials for the Code on Integrity and Self-discipline and Discipline and
the Penalty Ordinance which were organized to be studied at the Party
meetings and discipline inspection meetings. Through Party Committee,
internal publications and videos in office area, the basic-level unit, the
Company carried out promotion and implementation in a timely manner.
On 27 November, the Company particularly invited Zhang Xixian, the
principal of the Party School of the Central Committee, to conduct a
tutorial report on the two ordinances at the head office of the Company. All
members of the Party group, person in charge of each of the departments
of the head office and basic units of the Company, totaling 158 people,
listened to the report.
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Feror OF AMEENNEEFENBENT. ACEIMER

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited

(a joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with
limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Guodian
Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 127 to 260,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR (CONTINUED)
B 2R E ()

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and of
the Group’s financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 March 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)
B Z2015F12A31HIEFE(UAARBIITR)

2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Htst AR¥FT ARETFT
(Restated)
(&Zut)
Continuing operations BEREER
Revenue WA 4 19,970,161 22,686,197
Cost of sales $HE KA (16,163,992) (18,588,232)
Gross profit EF 3,806,169 4,097,965
Other revenue E Uz A 5 325,460 303,834
Other net income/(losses) E sk (E5i8) ;%58 5 29,307 (22,536)
Selling and distribution expenses HE MY HEAX (1,136,449) (1,101,375)
Administrative expenses TR (2,113,537) (1,301,271)
Profit from operations BEFH 910,950 1,976,617
Finance costs BTG R AR 6 (576,125) (834,176)
Share of profits less losses of associates  JE{f B 4 /A B F B RS 18 (140,661) 21,312
Profit before taxation from REFESEEB 2B AFIE 7 194,164 1,163,753
continuing operations
Income tax Frigt 8 (139,872) (197,029)
Profit for the year from AERBIFELEEBL 2B 54,292 966,724
continuing operations
Discontinued operation EEJIS 373
Loss for the year from discontinued RER B DRI S 7 2EFEER 11 (4,744,011) (1,103,231)
operation
Loss for the year EEEE (4,689,719) (136,507)
Attributable to: BER
Equity shareholders of the Company RN AR R (4,639,616) (393,374)
Non-controlling interests Eaaliigi (50,103) 256,867
Loss for the year KEEHE (4,689,719) (136,507)
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per SREAR#HE(ER) ZF 12
share (Expressed in RMB) (AARBEZIR)
— Continuing and discontinued — B EEBMB R (0.765) (0.065)
operations LT
— Continuing operations — BB ETS (0.006) 0.110
- Discontinued operation — BRI EER (0.759) (0.175)
The notes on page 137 to 260 form part of these financial statements. 137E260B KM FE AU EM MR — 305 o
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AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
8 R E MRS W&

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)
EZ2015F12A31HIEFE(UAARBFIR)

2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB000
et ARBTFT AREFT
Loss for the year REEIE (4,689,719) (136,507)
Other comprehensive income for the  AFH4RES WS (BB RER
year (after tax and reclassification DHEAEE)
adjustments)
ltems that may be reclassified HBBESEFT ABRMWIER -
subsequently to profit or loss:
—Exchange differences on translation of —#a&Erh#E A B HHE 2,175 97
financial statements of operations ([FHER ) IBINEFS BT 75
outside the People’s Republic of WEREEMIER =5
China (the “PRC’)
Other comprehensive income REHMEZRE WS 2,175 97
for the year
Total comprehensive income REGEWNFATE (4,687,544) (136,410)
for the year
Attributable to: BEN
Equity shareholders of the Company A RER R R (4,637,441) (393,277)
Non-controlling interests IEFE IR i = (50,103) 256,867
Total comprehensive income RELFEWNFREE (4,687,544) (136,410)
for the year
The notes on page 137 to 260 form part of these financial statements. 1372260 B MM AL SIS IRET M — 50D -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
& BRI R

As at 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)
720155128318 (AAREFIR)

2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
bzt AR¥FT ARETFIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE KGR 13 9,522,930 11,808,852
Investment properties REMEE 14 246,228 357,109
Lease prepayments TNt ER 15 696,123 899,309
Intangible assets mpAE 16 1,302,097 1,392,627
Goodwill EES 17 57,591 57,591
Interests in associates HEE N RIHIRE 19 315,546 386,867
Other equity investments HEfERIRE 20 162,187 162,187
Other non-current assets HihIEmeEE 21 4,854,414 4,654,776
Deferred tax assets EERIBE E 31(b) 459,730 451,557
Total non-current assets FRBEEALE 17,616,846 20,170,875
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 22 3,492,380 4,503,967
Gross amounts due from customers for  FERGEIEA RIR P HIEEE 23 2,204,619 3,486,111
contract work
Trade and bills receivables YR N =g 24 13,912,696 21,671,373
Deposits, prepayments and other &~ FENRERE M EEIE 25 2,419,841 3,383,322
receivables
Tax recoverable EEEE 31(a) 60,509 83,704
Restricted deposits SR EITERR 26 176,014 504,890
Cash at bank and in hand RITERNEFRE 27 3,069,769 3,124,807
Total current assets REEEHARE 25,335,828 36,758,174
Current liabilities REBEE
Borrowings & 28(b) 10,749,717 13,456,136
Trade and bills payables FER BRI IR 29 13,021,717 18,165,570
Other payables Hofth JEA FIR 30 3,765,053 4,737,154
Gross amounts due to customers for M EEARE P RIEMARE 23 975,449 1,273,039
contract work
Income tax payable FE TSR 31(a) 63,600 101,435
Provision for warranty HIRE B 32 111,389 108,260
Total current liabilities REEEEE 28,686,925 37,841,594
Net current liabilities REEEFHE (3,351,097) (1,083,420)
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBER 14,265,749 19,087,455

The notes on page 137 to 260 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
Bt BRRE (8)

As at 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)
2015412 A318 (AAREFIR)

2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AR#EFT ARMTFT
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Borrowings & 28(a) 4,792,674 5,086,734
Deferred income EEUW 33 499,453 503,131
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEBE 31(b) 174,305 136,397
Provision for warranty BIREBAE 32 675,667 563,951
Other non-current liabilities HibIEmEhasE 34 220,697 56,858
Total non-current liabilities FEREEBERE 6,362,796 6,347,071
NET ASSETS EEFHE 7,902,953 12,740,384
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital i 35(c) 6,063,770 6,063,770
Reserves {5 (1,457,306) 3,180,135
Total equity attributable to equity ] NG b F i 4,606,464 9,243,905
shareholders of the Company B
Non-controlling interests FEiEIR R 3,296,489 3,496,479
TOTAL EQUITY e 7,902,953 12,740,384

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March

2016.

Mr. YANG Guang 5 54
Executive Directors #77& %

The notes on page 137 to 260 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EFS

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)

HZE2015F12A31B IFFE(UAAREIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

BRADGRERR
Non-
Share Capital PRCstatutory ~ Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests equity
Bx HEEE EX FER i
s fife N F B BERE Nt & a%
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ABEFE  ARBTR  AREFT  AREFR  ARETR  AREFT AREFL  ARETR
Note 35(c) ~ Note 35(a)i) ~ Note 35(c)(ii)  Note 35(a)ii)
Hitsse)  WEssa))  Watsso)n)  WEEso)i)
Balance at 1 January 2014 M14F1A1RER 6,063,770 1,062,980 99,586 (1,258) 2,515,188 9,740,266 3141976 12882242
Changes in equity for 2014: WUERRE:
Loss for the year TEER - - - - (393.374) (393,374) 256,867 (136,507)
Other comprehensive income EfsalE - - - 97 - 97 - 97
Total comprehensive income RlGEE - - - 97 (393,374) (393,277) 256,867 (136,410)
Dividend approved in respect of SLEENENRE - - - - (103084  (103084) - (103,084)
the previous year (nate 35(b)(i) (W)
Capital contributions EENYIN - - - - - - 132,487 132,487
Appropriation A - - 29746 - (29.746) - - -
Acquisition of control over figEe - - - - - - 80,114 80,114
an assoclate NAEE
Dividends paid by subsidiariesto ~ HEARMIEARER - - - - - - (114965)  (114965)
non-controlling equiy owners fEERS
Balance at 31 December 2014 014F12A31 ALE 6,063,770 1,062,980 129,332 (1,161) 1,988,984 9,243 905 3496479 12,740,384

The notes on page 137 to 260 form part of these financial statements.
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aftEREPR(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)

HZE2015F12A31B IEFE(UAARETR)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

BEALIRERR
Retained
profits/ Non-
Share Capital PRCstatutory ~ Exchange (accumulated controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve loss) Sub-total interests equity
U hEEE EX  EHAE/ FER i
e fite N F B (ZREB) it i L
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ABEFE  ARBTR  AREFT  AREFR  ARETR  AREFT AREFL  ARETR
Note 35(c) ~ Note 35(a)(i) ~ Note 35(c)(ii)  Note 35(a)ii)
Witsee) s WEsse)) M)
Balance at 1 January 2015 01551 A1R &R 6,063,770 1,062,980 129,332 (1,161) 1,988,984 9,243,905 3,496,479 12,740,384
Changes in equity for 2015: W55 EHE
Loss for the year rEEE - - - - (4639,616)  (4,639,616) (50,103)  (4,689,719)
Qther comprehensive income Al - - - 2,175 - 2,175 - 2,175
Total comprehensive income eYeratd - - - 2175 (4639,616)  (4,637,441) (50,103)  (4,687,544)
Capital contributions BImER - - - - - - 26,959 26,959
Disposal of a subsidiary RENBAF - - - - - - (#1,746) (41,746)
Dividends paid by subsiclariesto A AIFIHARES - - - - - - (135,100 (135,100)
non-controlling equiy owners fEERS
Balance at 31 December 2015 2015512A31 ALE 6,063,770 1,062,980 129,332 1,014 (2650,632) 4,606,464 3,296,489 7,902,953

The notes on page 137 to 260 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

attiRE

MER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)
B Z2015F12A31HIEFE(UAARBIITR)

2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mitat ARETFT ARBTFIT
Cash flows from operating activities REHELETENRER
(Loss)/profit before taxation TRaT(E18), FE (4,469,095) 59,135
— Continuing operations —EEREETE 194,164 1,163,753
— Discontinued operation —BRIHEEER (4,663,259) (1,104,618)
Adjustments for: TR
Depreciation e 7(b) 989,682 1,040,560
Amortisation B 7(b) 101,986 89,502
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BEKEE 5 33,528 99,083
and equipment and intangible assets mEAERIBFEE
Impairment loss on trade and other JEURBR X & E A 7(b) 2,499,014 100,113
receivables WRIB R B 1B
Write down of gross amounts due WSS RE P 7(b) 146,545 -
from customers for contract work SRIBABFEMOR
Impairment loss on property, plant Y% - BE LR EREESE 7(b) 1,544,241 524,866
and equipment
Impairment loss on lease prepayments &t T+ EZHE 7(b) 154,835 -
Impairment loss on intangible assets mEERE 7(b) 17,992 -
Write down of other non-current assets ~ E i IER Eh & E#UR 221,680 -
Write down of inventories FEMOR 22(b) 68,849 29,181
Finance costs U IR 6 901,304 1,178,236
Interest income LB YA 5 (131,040) (136,963)
Government grants AT #58h 33 (34,204) (23,628)
Dividend income from unquoted FELETRERBZLFHR WA 5 (13,739) (20,233)
equity securities
Net gain on acquisition of control over BBt & N B ) pE M s F BE 5 - (19,397)
an associate
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries T A AU F R 5 - (1,279)
Share of profits less losses of associates  JE{hHE 4 A 7 F 8 R E5 18 140,661 (21,312)

The notes on page 137 to 260 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
afReRER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)
EZ2015F12A31HIEFE(UAARBFIR)

2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
et ARMFIT AREFT
Cash flows from operating activities ~~ RERXEIBHHESR(E)
(continued)
Changes in working capital: EEBESMEML -
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL () 743,109 (465,665)
Decrease/(increase) in gross amounts FEUYGEIEERE P RIA 1,169,040 (779,882)
due from customers for contract work BERRD, ()
Decrease/(increase) in trade and FEMR AR TR R R AR A (38 A0) 5,705,328 (2,032,035)
bills receivables
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, Be - AAREMEAmE 927,973 (448,594)
prepayments and other receivables WRIB R (38 0)
Increase in other non-current assets HanIEmsh & Eaigm (397,456) (183,476)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and FERRRREZEA R ), N (4,763,019) 1,920,904
bills payables
(Decrease)/increase in other payables HiEARERNCRD) (263,186) 1,631,277
(Decrease)/increase in gross amounts ERREEREPRIE (297,590) 514,217
due to customers for contract work BRI O, /10
Increase in provision for warranty HIR G BB AL N 114,845 17,828
Cash generated from operations REPELNES 5,111,283 2,972,438
Income tax paid EASFTIEH 31(a) (205,529) (266,809)
Net cash generated from operating RETBELENFRS 4,905,754 2,705,629

activities

The notes on page 137 to 260 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
= ﬁfﬁi//lb5%<“

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)
B Z2015F12A31HIEFE(UAARBIITR)

The notes on page 137 to 260 form part of these financial statements.

2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
et ARETFT AEETT
Cash flows from investing activities RETEBELENRESR
Payments for purchase of property, HEEME - BB R - BN (535,329) (1,228,684)
plant and equipment, lease THHERREFEEST L
prepayments and intangible assets
Disposal of subsidiaries, HEWNBRRMEE 2 RS FE 40 (22,019) 48,922
net of cash disposed of
Payments for advances to related parties 45 B 77 HYEA 0 (271,797) (113,928)
Payments for advances to third parties 45 = TR - (9,714)
Increase in deposits with banks SRITF A N (1,346,300) (724,900)
Withdrawal of deposits with banks ERITTF AT ER 1,270,700 523,200
Government grants received W B B8 T & B 30,526 96,642
Investment in an associate el /N (36,000) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BMEMRERETLE 66,224 14,220
plant and equipment and EFSHIA
intangible assets
Proceeds from repayment of AL T EIB B 2,356 59,000
advances by related parties
Proceeds from repayment of FE=FHEEER - 6,907
advances by third parties
Acquisition of control over an associate  BR{SH§ & A B4R & - 64,564
Dividends received =Rl ¢S] 26,283 60,562
Interest received EUHLE 58,098 38,895
Net cash used in investing activities BRETEHFEANERSE (757,258) (1,164,314)

1372260 B MMt Bt SIS IRET R —561D ©

2015 F3k

EEMBRREBRO AR A

135



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
arfHengxR(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)
EZ2015F12A31HIEFE(UAARBFIR)

2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
et AR®FT AREFT
Cash flows from financing activities BMETHELENBEESR
Capital contributions from WEARIEERERTEE 26,959 132,487
non-controlling equity BB AR
owners of subsidiaries
Proceeds from loans EREFE 18,835,396 16,538,929
Proceeds from issuing private BIILAREEBHETLR 991,000 1,345,950
placement notes FriS 308
Proceeds from advances from RARE T 8K 484,105 727,363
related parties
Decrease in restricted deposits ZRGIF AR 538,516 444,438
Repayment of advances to 1E3R RAHSE 77 BV AR (1,011,468) (500,000)
related parties
Repayment of loans EEEHR (20,248,837) (19,404,468)
Repayment of private placement notes ~ {EBFLAEEERRETA (1,350,000) -
Repayment of corporate bonds EEQRES (1,200,000) -
Dividends paid to equity BNV VNG EE ) i - (103,084)
shareholders of the Company
Dividends paid by subsidiaries BB A R mSEE R S A & (147,564) (99,799)
to non-controlling equity owners YRR
Interest paid EFE (980,684) (1,238,531)
Increase in restricted deposits IR HI7F S 1 00 (209,640) (561,621)
Net cash used in financing activities  BEZBEANERS:  (4272217) (2,718,336).
Net decrease in cash and HERBESEEYH (123,721) (1,177,021)
cash equivalents BRARE
Cash and cash equivalents ME1ENEESREESEEY 2,456,107 3,633,688
at 1 January
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 4N & 3= i1 i g7 28 (6,917) (560)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 M2AMENEESRESEEY 27 2,325,469 2,456,107

December

The notes on page 137 to 260 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Organisation

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited
(the “Company”) was formerly known as Guodian Technology &
Environment Group Limited Liability Company and was established
on 6 April 2001 as a state-owned enterprise with limited liability.
The Company was converted to a joint stock company with limited
liability in the PRC on 16 May 2011 (the “Conversion”). On 30
December 2011, the Company’s H shares were listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("HKSE”").

Significant accounting policies
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on HKSE. A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R BT ot (48 )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest
in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had net current liabilities
of RMB3,351,097,000 and made a loss of RMB4,689,719,000
for the year then ended. Since the Company had encountered
operating and financial challenges in the solar power products
and services segment, the directors of the Company decided
to discontinue the solar power products and services segment
businesses.

Notwithstanding of the above, the Group had unutilised
banking facilities of RMB19,837,962,000 as at 31 December
2015 for fulfilling its future capital commitments and other
financial requirements. In order to enhance the Group’s
liquidity and solvency position, subsequent to 31 December
2015 the Group have taken a series of measures, including
but not limited to (i) the Company completed the Company’s
private placement notes of RMB1,000,000,000 and
RMB400,000,000 for terms of three years on 24 February 2016
and 11 March 2016, respectively; and (ii) the Group entered
into transfer agreements with various subsidiaries of China
Guodian Corporation (“Guodian”) on 5 February 2016 to
transfer certain desulfurisation and denitrification assets with a
total consideration of approximately RMB3,390,887,000.

Based on the Group’s business plan and cash flow forecast,
the directors are satisfied that the Group will have necessary
liquid funds to finance its working capital and capital
expenditure requirements. Accordingly, the directors are of
the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs
that have significant effect on these financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note
3.

Changes in accounting policies
The IASB has issued the following amendments to IFRSs

that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company.

- Amendments to IAS 19, Employee benefits: Defined
benefit plans: Employee contributions

- Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

- Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

None of these developments have had a material effect on
how the Group’s results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

(e)

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”),
rounded to the nearest thousand, which is the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries established
in the PRC (“PRC Subsidiaries”) carrying on the principal
activities of the Group. The functional currencies of the
Company’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong and United States are
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) and United States dollars (“USD”)
respectively.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and other comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position in accordance with notes 2(q) or (r)
depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 2(h)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(m)).

(BRIESBHA - UARKETITR)

2 FEETEHRE)

(e)

M A R R RS ()

ISR FM ISR RS
HFIR M ER R R A R AR R BB A
R o JFERRETEAMEAR
SEMES  SRRZFENEDE
BN AR W R SR s
FAANEARRRGEBIR Z BT
Bt WEAHEBEERARAHERR
Hib At alamiR 25 - KA FFE
BEERAANBEREZEREA
WHEMEREE  FRFABHMN
B o WIRRRHEE2(q) (N & FHET 75
FRERF 2 HERAIE -

REBRMBARNERINELE
BRgERRAESE  AIZE
TRERZ ST AR - BIEHE
EA G EmAmERE IR ERS
B ARMEERERNES - B1
SRERELRTSRIEE -

EARBRK—FWERARZER
- AIRMEZME AR AE LS
AR MAAEENBERERRE
& o MEKIEBEE BRE R AR
BRARMEMERIIRAABER
R MZEEHEER—REREE
(REfFE2(h) IR FERE R A2 B E Sk
(@) —BHBERFRAE AT

ZIRE R IARER BV ©

EARBOFBARAKRD  HHEL
ANRERRRAREREER(R
FifEE2(m)) 1R AR ©

2015 F£ 3§
EERERREERAGERAR

141



142

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R BT ot (48 )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

®

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post-acquisition change
in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see notes 2(g)
and (m)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

®

()

Associates (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note
2(h)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in associates are stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(m)).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(iy  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to
each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating
units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note
2(m)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h)

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in
equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries and
associates, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value,
which is their transaction price unless it is determined that the
fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price
and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable markets. Cost
includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in equity securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include
any dividends or interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out in
note 2(w)(vi).

Investments in equity securities which do not fall into any of
the above categories are classified as available-for-sale equity
securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the fair value reserve. As an exception to this,
investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market for an identical instrument
and whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured
are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2(m)). Dividend income from
these investments is recognised in profit or loss in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2(w)(vi).

When these investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 2(m)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell
the investments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(M)

1)

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(1)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(m)). The
depreciation policy is the same as that of property, plant and
equipment (see note 2(j)). Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 2(w)(v).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note
2(m)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 2(y)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

- Land, buildings and structures 20-50 years
— Machinery and equipment 3-20 years
— Motor vehicles 3-10 years
— Furniture, fixtures and others 3-10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The Group recognises an intangible asset arising from a
service concession arrangement when it has a right to charge
for usage of the concession infrastructure. An intangible asset
received as consideration for providing construction services
in a service concession arrangement are measured at fair
value upon initial recognition by reference to the fair value
of the services provided. Subsequent to initial recognition
the intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(m)). If the
Group is paid for the construction services partly by an
intangible asset and partly by a financial asset (see note
2(p)), then each component of the consideration is accounted
for separately and is initially recognised at fair value of the
consideration.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs, where applicable (see note
2(y)). Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note
2(m)). Other development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see
note 2(m)). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and
brands is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

U}

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are available
for use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Concession assets 20-34 years
— Technical know-how 5-18 years
— Development costs 5-10 years
- Software and others 3-10 years

The estimated useful life of a concession asset in a service
concession arrangement is the period from when the Group is
able to charge for the use of the infrastructure to the end of the
concession period.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
alease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

U}

Leased assets (continued)

(V)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases except
for land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly
held under an operating lease. For these purposes,
the inception of the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the
previous lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are recognised
as property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is
provided at rates which write off the cost of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely
the Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of
the asset, as set out in note 2(j). Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in note 2(m). Finance charges implicit in the
lease payments are charged to profit or loss over the
period of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Leased assets (continued)

(iii) Operating lease charges

(m)

U]

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term.

Impairment of assets

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost or are classified as available-for-sale
securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

2015 ANNUAL REPORT

For investments in associates accounted for under
the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements (see note 2(f)), the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrying amount in
accordance with note 2(m)(ii). The impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note 2(m)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities
carried at cost are not reversed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR M sk (&)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESZEHA - UAREIITR)
2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FESHEK(E)
(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(m) EBEEREGE

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and () BRZEFREREMEWE
other receivables (continued) ZE ()

For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
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present value of estimated future cash flows, AREEMEEZRENE
discounted at the financial asset’s original W R (B s WIFE SR 3%
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate EEEFEL TR
computed at initial recognition of these assets), R)VETIE (MITR T &
where the effect of discounting is material. This BEX)MMEGFAKRS

assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not
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been individually assessed as impaired. Future KFER) B2 B AR
cash flows for financial assets which are assessed FEAERE - AlkEeE
for impairment collectively are based on historical 2l o EREEMARNRE

loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

- For available-for-sale equity securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised in
the fair value reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets
is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade and bills
receivables and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against the respective receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 15 e M et (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEREHRA - UARKETIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- investment properties;

- lease prepayments;

- intangible assets

- goodwill; and

- investment in subsidiaries and associates in the

Company’s statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and
intangible assets that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

2015 ANNUAL REPORT

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR M sk (&)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESZEHA - UAREIITR)
2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FESHEK(E)
(m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(m) EBEEREGE

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

(i) EmEE#EE)

-~ Reversals of impairment losses —  REEBEERD
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an MABINZEBEEME -
impairment loss is reversed if there has been fis F LA T E ] Uk [B] & BB A9

a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been

fEEH IR AR - AR
EEERERE - WEA
RS A AT -

RERBRNEEERRE
EEAEFEAL ERER
ERREBENER T

recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment [RpETEERVBRTE(E © BMAE
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in 18 &Y 8¢ (O] 7E T SR 1 Bl 1Y

which the reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on HKSE, the Group is required to prepare an interim
financial report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of
the financial year. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 2(m)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder of the annual
period, or in any other period subsequently, the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income and not
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n)

(o)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically negotiated
with a customer for the construction of an asset or a group
of assets, where the customer is able to specify the major
structural elements of the design. The accounting policy for
contract revenue is set out in note 2(w)(ii). When the outcome
of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract
costs are recognised as an expense by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract at the end of the reporting
period. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately. When the outcome of a construction
contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the reporting
period are recorded at the net amount of costs incurred plus
recognised profit less recognised losses and progress billings,
and are presented in the statement of financial position as
the “Gross amounts due from customers for contract work”
(as an asset) or the “Gross amounts due to customers for
contract work” (as a liability), as applicable. Progress billings
not yet paid by the customer are included under “Trade and
bills receivables”. Amounts received before the related work
is performed are presented as “Receipts in advance” under
“Other payables”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p)

(a)

(n

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(m)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

The Group recognises a financial asset arising from a service
concession arrangement when it has an unconditional
contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset
from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction
services provided. Such financial assets are accounted for as
trade and other receivables as described above.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 2(v)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(s) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(t) Employee benefits

(i)  Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

(ii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax
loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(w)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.

(v) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

U]

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (continued)

(V)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables. The
fair value of financial guarantees issued at the time of
issuance is determined by reference to fees charged
in an arm’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate differentials, by
comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when
the guarantee is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the guarantees
not been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 2(v)(ii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee; and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v)

(w)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (continued)

(ii)  Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(w) Revenue recognition (continued)

(V)

(ii)

(iii)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax (“VAT”) or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Contract revenue

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue from a fixed price contract is
recognised using the percentage of completion method,
measured by reference to the percentage of contract
costs incurred to date to estimated total contract costs
for the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will
be recoverable.

Service concession revenue

Revenue related to construction services under a service
concession arrangement is recognised based on the
stage of completion of the work performed consistent
with the Group’s accounting policy on recognising
revenue on construction contracts (see note 2(w)(ii)).
Operation or service revenue is recognised in the period
in which the services are provided by the Group. Interest
income on financial assets is recognised in accordance
with note 2(w)(vii). When the Group provides more than
one service in a service concession arrangement, the
consideration received is allocated by reference to the
relative fair value of the services delivered when the
amounts are separately identifiable.

2015 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

2

EFRGHBER(E)
o A e ()

(w)

@)

(i)

(i)

HERm

AmEHERARERmETE
ERPREGMATEFDEW
o R A A R A R A
WEFHER - WA BB R EN
- BASRERREMEE
B e

BELRRA

AREIE S Rl 2 45 R AT LA AT 52
wihEr - BEEEA R WA
SEATIADLIEER
SEREFEARILEE#HEZ
BRKAE G A RKAERE
BOtmEAE -

WMRBES R 2 SR BRI 5
et - AIENEEEARMK
Z AU Bl ) ER D HE B o

BRI FE WA

AR 7 e e s 1B N AV B e T
BB A - RBAKEER
ZEESRBA — BT
% (R 3F 2(w)(ii) ) 12 T2 572
THERER - EEIRBHEA
11 75 & B 1R 4R AR 7% 7 BA S P T
R SREEMFBUAIRR
M EE2(w)(vil) 3R TE TR © B A
EEERBE T EREIREN
REZH—18  BRGHERR
ARRQRBEED FIEER
A2 BATIR RIS MRS AR
EETREMEEETOR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(w) Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Rendering of services

Revenue from design and consultant services rendered
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in proportion to the stage of completion of the
transaction at the end of the reporting period.

Revenue from other services rendered is recognised
upon the delivery or performance of the services.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment
goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(w) Revenue recognition (continued)

(x)

(viii) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are initially recognised as deferred income
and are subsequently recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of operations which have a functional currency
other than RMB are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates
ruling the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

v)

()

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations

(i) Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and the asset (or
disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be
disposed of together as a group in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with those assets that
will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale
when the above criteria for classification as held for sale
are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a
non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(z) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations (continued)

(V)

(i)

Non-current assets held for sale (continued)

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought
up-to-date in accordance with the accounting policies
before the classification. Then, on initial classification
as held for sale and until disposal, the non-current
assets (except for certain assets as explained below),
or disposal groups, are recognised at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. The
principal exceptions to this measurement policy so
far as the financial statements of the Group and the
Company are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets
arising from employee benefits, financial assets (other
than investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures) and investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for
sale, and on subsequent remeasurement while held for
sale, are recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-
current asset is classified as held for sale, or is included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale, the
non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale (see (i) above), if earlier. It
also occurs if the operation is abandoned.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(z) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations (continued)

(i)

Discontinued operations (continued)

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented on the face of the statement
of profit or loss, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on
the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.

(aa) Related parties

(@)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R BT ot (48 )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(aa)

(bb)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(iv)

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi)

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Accounting judgement and estimates

The Group’s financial condition and results of operations are
sensitive to accounting methods, assumptions and estimates that
underlie the preparation of these financial statements. The Group
bases the assumptions and estimates on historical experience
and on various other assumptions that the Group believes to be
reasonable and which form the basis for making judgements about
matters that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from those estimates as facts, circumstances and
conditions change.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and
other uncertainties affecting application of those polices and
the sensitivity of reported results to changes in conditions and
assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing these
financial statements. The principal accounting policies are set
forth in note 2. The Group believes the following critical accounting
policies involve the most significant judgements and estimates used
in the preparation of these financial statements.

(@) Impairment losses for non-current assets

In considering the impairment losses that may be required for
certain of the Group’s assets which include property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, lease prepayments,
intangible assets, investments in associates and unquoted
equity investments, recoverable amount of the asset needs
to be determined. The recoverable amount is the greater
of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. It is
difficult to precisely estimate selling price because quoted
market prices for these assets may not be readily available. In
determining the value in use, expected cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value, which
requires significant judgement relating to items such as level
of sales volume, selling price and amount of operating costs.
The Group uses all readily available information in determining
an amount that is a reasonable approximation of recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of items such as
sales volume, selling price and amount of operating costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

3

Accounting judgement and estimates (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts

The Group estimates impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts resulting from the inability of the customers and other
debtors to make the required payments. The Group bases the
estimates on the ageing of the receivable balance, debtors’
credit-worthiness, and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of the customers and debtors were to
deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than estimated.

Construction contracts

As explained in accounting policies set out in notes 2(0) and
(w)(ii), revenue and profit recognition on an uncompleted
project is dependent on estimating the total outcome of the
construction contract, as well as the work done to date.
Based on the Group’s recent experience and the nature of
the construction activity undertaken by the Group, the Group
makes estimates of the point at which it considers the work
is sufficiently advanced such that the costs to complete and
revenue can be reliably estimated. As a result, until this point
is reached the amounts due from customers for contract work
as disclosed in note 23 will not include profit which the Group
may eventually realise from the work done to date. In addition,
actual outcomes in terms of total cost or revenue may be
higher or lower than estimated at the end of the reporting
period, which would affect the revenue and profit recognised
in future years as an adjustment to the amounts recorded to
date.

Provision for warranty

The Group provides warranties for its products for 2 to 5 years
for defects and/or 10 to 25 years for guaranteed performance
after sales have taken place. The Group estimates warranty
costs based on the Group’s historical cost data, industry data
and an assessment of the Group’s competitors’ accrual. The
warranty obligation of the Group will be affected not only by
the product failure rates, but also by costs incurred to repair or
replace failed products. If the actual product failure rates and
cost of replacement or repairing of failed products differ from
the estimates, the Group will need to prospectively revise the
provision for warranty costs which would affect profit or loss in
future years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

3 Accounting judgement and estimates (continued)

(e)

®

()

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses and tax
credit carried forward and deductible temporary differences
are recognised and measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of the reporting period. In determining the carrying amounts
of deferred assets, expected taxable profits are estimated
which involves a number of assumptions relating to the
operating environment of the Group and requires a significant
level of judgement exercised by the directors. Any change in
such assumptions and judgement would affect the carrying
amounts of deferred tax assets to be recognised and hence
the net profit in future years.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment and investment properties are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets, after taking into account the estimated
residual value. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of
the assets regularly. The useful lives are based on the Group’s
historical experience with similar assets and taking into
account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

Income tax

The Group files income taxes with numerous tax authorities.
Judgement is required in determining the provision for taxation
as there are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determinations are uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. For preferential tax treatments
available for approved High and New Technology Enterprises,
in determining the applicable tax rates for calculations of
current income tax and deferred income tax, after passed
the substantive approvals, the Group uses the expected
tax rates that are probably be approved by tax authorities
according to the tax rules and regulations enacted at the end
of the reporting period. Where the final tax outcomes of these
matters are different from the amounts originally recorded,
the differences may impact on the current income tax and
deferred income tax provisions in the periods in which the final
tax outcomes became available.

(BRIESBHA - UARKETITR)
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(e)

®

(C)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

3 Accounting judgement and estimates (continued)

(h)

(M)

Contingent liabilities

Management judgement is required in the area of contingent
liabilities particularly in assessing the outcome of possible
obligations arising from the transactions as detailed in note
38. Management reassesses the likelihood of the outcome of
these possible obligations at the end of the reporting period.
Where a change in the probability that an outflow of economic
resources will be required to settle the obligation, a provision
will be recognised in the period in which such determination is
made.

Write-down of inventories

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of inventories at
the end of the reporting period to determine whether the
inventories are carried at lower of cost and net realisable value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(n).
Management estimates the net realisable value based on all
available information, including the current market price of the
finished goods and raw materials, and historical costs. Any
change in the assumptions would increase or decrease the
amount of inventories write-down or the related reversals of
write-down and affect the Group’s profit.

4 Revenue and segment reporting

(a)

Revenue

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of
ignition equipment, wind turbines, solar cells and modules and
other related electric equipment for power plants, construction
engineering of desulphurisation, water treatment, solar energy
and other environmental protection and energy conservation
projects, rental of desulphurisation facilities and provision
of integrated services relating to environmental protection,
energy conservation and renewable energy businesses.

Revenue represents the sales value of goods supplied to
customers, net of VAT, revenues from construction contracts,
rendering of services, service concession arrangement and
rental income.

As disclosed in note 11, the revenue generated from solar
power products and services segment has been reclassified as
discontinued operation.

2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

4 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(BRIESBHA - UARKETITR)

4 WARDEHHRE(E)

(a) Revenue (continued) (a) WAGE)
The amount of each significant category of revenue from RERNERNSERERWANEEE
continuing operations recognised during the year is as follows: FIEINT
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total
BELERY BRILEEER @zt
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ABEFR  ARETT  ARETT  AREFr  AREFL  ARETI
Sales of goods (note (i) SHEBEM(ME() 10,011,501 11,513,060 468,260 1,678,250 10,479,761 13,191,310
Revenue from BEAREA 7,630,751 8,761,256 210,770 1,200,298 7,841,521 9,961,554
construction contracts
Rental income from SERENRERA 1,805,977 1,804,696 - - 1,805,977 1,804,696
operating leases (hrzi)
(note (ii))
Rendering of services AR 179,508 196,204 5,234 40,868 184,742 237,072
Service concession R HEREIA 342,424 410,981 - - 342,424 410981
arrangement (Hiit42)
revenue (note 42)
19,970,161 22,686,197 684,264 2919416 20654425 25605613
Notes: et -

Revenue from sale of goods amounting to RMB78,382,000
(2014: RMB417,770,000) is sale of wind turbines to contractors
who are engaged to construct wind farms for Guodian and
related parties under Guodian.

The amount mainly represents income related to service
arrangements entered into by the Group with power plants to
operate the desulphurisation and denitrification facilities for
the treatment of sulphur dioxide and nitrogen oxide generated
by power plants during their electricity generation. The Group
acquires or constructs the facilities and then maintains and
operates the facilities to provide pollutant treatment services to
power plants during the useful lives of power plants. The service
charge is based on the volume of electricity sold by the power
plant and a tariff determined by the National Development and
Reform Commission of the PRC. These arrangements are not
in the legal form of leases, but are deemed as operating leases
based on their terms and conditions.

(i) SHEMMmBA TR ARY78,382,000
JC (20144 « AR ™ 417,770,000
L) AREEREE B S E
EE N BB R EN SR N
S Tk c I

ZeRTEREAREHEMEL
BB B BT N DR RR e O E T TAE
NFEEERETRIEEMERN
SR RAY 2 RE LR
BEOWRA - REBEBERZER
i QEREERETHEEETR
T A R BRI 05 R Y B I AR TS o
RBEHEHNEBULBERER
PR B & I E R R BT ERER
RIEEM - thH P A RER
R EWNAE - BIREE G E K
GRS ERE -

(ii)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

4 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)
(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses through its subsidiaries,
which are organised by business lines (products and
services). In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following four reportable segments:

- Environmental protection segment: this segment
provides environmental protection products and
services which mainly consists of sulphur oxide control
technologies, nitrogen oxide control technologies,
rental of desulphurisation and denitrification facilities,
ash removal with filer bag, water treatment related
technologies and products.

- Energy conservation solutions segment: this segment
provides energy saving products and services which
mainly consists of plasma ignition and micro oil ignition
equipment and gas turbine improvement services and
construction of energy-efficient power plants.

- Wind power products and services segment: this
segment produces and sells wind turbine and its
components, provides related system solutions and
services to wind power operators.

- Solar power products and services segment: this
segment produces and sells solar cells, solar modules
and other solar products, constructs solar power stations
and provides related system solutions and services to
solar power operators. For the year ended 31 December
2015, the Group discontinued the operation of this
segment. Please refer to note 11 for further details.

2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

4 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)

The Group categorised other unreported business activities as

“All others”.

Revenue included in this category is mainly from

the wind and solar power generation and sale of other electric
power control system related products.

U]

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all assets with the exception
of interests in associates, other equity investments, tax
recoverable, deferred tax assets and other corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include all liabilities with the
exception of income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities
and other corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by those
segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
the gross profit. In addition to receiving segment
information concerning the gross profit, management
is also provided with segment information concerning
depreciation and amortisation, interest income, finance
costs, impairment and write-down of assets and
additions to segment non-current assets.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance for the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 is set out below:

(BRIESBHA - UARKETITR)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

4 Revenue and segment reporting (continued) 4 WARDIHmE(E)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) S EIRE(H)
(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (i) DEp¥E HEEREE(E)
2015
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BREEER BRLEEER
Energy  Wind power Solar power
Environmental conservation products and Al products and
protection solutions services others services Total
i RE NCE
BR BARE  ERREH it  ERREH st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB’000
ARETE  AREFL  ARETT  ARETZ  AREFT  ARETZ
Revenue from external customers M EFZ B 7,750,030 3,124,619 8,617,609 477,903 684,264 20,654,425
Inter-segment revenue DEERA 40,205 10,624 19,112 57,742 400 128,083
Reportable segment revenue TE2RHBUA 7,790,235 3,135,243 8,636,721 535,645 684,664 20,782,508
Reportable segment TEHRIYAE/(BE) 1,378,807 305,301 1,876,091 255,221 (181,109) 3,634,311
profit/loss) (£4/(28))
(gross profit/(loss))
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 518,409 20,200 204,037 77,104 249,520 1,069,270
Impairment of property, nE - BER - - 9,691 - 1,534,550 1,544,241
plant and equipment e
Impairment of lease prepayments B T EFHE - - - - 154,835 154,835
Impairment of intangible assets BIEERE - - - - 17,992 17,992
Inventory write-down FEH 4,426 - 3,060 - 61,363 68,849
Impairment of trade ERER R 587,356 37,613 35,669 3,038 1,835,338 2,499,014
and other receivables EihENEERE
Write down of gross amounts B RELRZE 146,545 - - - - 146,545
due from customers for HRBE
contract work
Interest income FlEMA 48,681 64,745 12,978 430 1,950 128,784
Finance costs BRI 297,877 5,638 239,151 51 325,179 867,896
Reportable segment assets 2RI BER 16,772,591 4,705,077 15,030,485 2,130,574 3,222,856 41,861,583
Additions to reportable ERRENZR 393,072 23,536 89,577 4,860 22,172 533,217
segment non-current NEEEEaE
assets during the year
Reportable segment liabilities BEELE 12,829,750 2,391,195 12,110,644 832,353 7,351,566 35,515,508
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BT ISR P o (A8
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEREHRA - UARKETIR)

4 Revenue and segment reporting (continued) 4 WARDEHRE (E)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) ZEwE(E)
(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (i) ZHEE ZEREE(HE)
2014
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
FEIREEK BRIERH
Energy  Wind power Solar power
Environmental  conservation  products and Al products and
protection solutions services others services Total
2 EE] R
B BAPE  EmREH FEEf  EnREE st
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ANREFT  AEEFT  AREFT  AREFT AREFT ARETR
Revenue from external customers SR EUA 9,134,665 3,689,308 9,453,987 408,237 2919416 25,605,613
Inter-segment revenue DEREMA 73,126 11,793 9,325 42,079 13,262 149,575
Reportable segment revenue BEELETON 9,207,791 3,701,101 9,463,312 450,316 2932668 25,755,188
Reportable segment TEHIBAE(ER) 1,615,254 382,443 1,910,464 190,420 191,559 4,290,140
profit (gross profit)
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH 484,624 24,391 202,611 73932 321,033 1,106,591
Impairment of property, % BELRRETE - - - - 524,866 524 866
plant and equipment
Inventory write-cown FEHE - - 6,000 - 23,181 9,181
Impairment/(reversal of BT LA YR 55,414 13,068 26,140 6,720 (1,229) 100,113
impairment) of trade iE/(BE)
and other receivables
Interest income FSHA 61,053 50,180 10,394 5550 7,358 134,535
Finance costs BRBAA 395,310 10,161 395,419 5,655 344060 1150605
Reportable segment assets T2HAPEE 19202025 4613692 19076991 2382734 9649508 54924950
Additions to reportable ERFENZR 501,772 46,082 168,394 26,751 23,265 766,264
segment non-current PEHFRBEE
assets during the year
Reportable segment liabilities EEEGEI-TS 14,636,517 2640807 16,429,907 735,647 9482561 43925439
2015 F3§
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

4 Revenue and segment reporting (continued) 4 WARDIHHRE(E)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEEHRE(E)
(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, (i) TEHZEBUA - FE - BE
profit, assets and liabilities HEEHE
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total
BELEER BAILEERHK st
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000
ABBFR ANRETT AREFT  ARETT  ARETr  ARETZ

Revenue KA

Reportable segment DG ON 20,097,844 22,822,520 684,664 2932668 20,782,508 25,755,188
revenue

Elimination of SR (127683)  (136,329) (400)  (13252)  (128,083)  (149575)

inter-segment revenue

Consolidated revenue VLN 19,970,161 22,686,197 684,264 2919416 20,654,425 25605613
Continuing operations  Discontinued operation Total
BELEER BRLEERH At

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMBOOO  RMB000  RMB000
ABBFL ANRETT AREFR ARETL ARETr ARETIL

Profit/(loss) B/ (B8

Reportable segment A2EPHHE/ (BB 3815420 4,098,581 (181,109) 191559 3,634,311 4,290,140
profit/(loss)

Elimination of inter- DEE () /BRIEE (9,251) (616) 161 (11,341) (9,090) (11,957)
segment (profit)/loss

Reportable segment profit/ BEBERNT2H 3,806,169  4,097965  (180,948) 180,218 3,625,221 4,278,183
(loss) derived from HATHE/ (E8)
Group's external customers

Other revenue A 325,460 303,834 8,077 15,769 333,537 319,603

Other net income/(losses) 2zt / (58) 58 29,307 (22,536) (5,676) (5,089) 23,631 (27,625)

Seling and distribution BEDAREY (1,136,449)  (1,101,375) (9542)  (31765) (1,145991) (1,133,140)
expenses

Administrative expenses Gk (2,113,537) (1,301,271) (4,149,991)  (919,691) (6,263,528) (2,220,962)

Finance costs BRI (576,125)  (834176)  (325179)  (344.060)  (901,304) (1,178,236

Share of profits less A AT ERER (140,661) 21,312 - - (140,661) 21,312
losses of associates

Consolidated profit/(loss) AHHAIFE/ (BE) 194,164 1,163,753  (4,663,259) (1,104,618) (4,469,095) 59,135
before taxation

180 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

4

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues,

(BRIESBHA - UARKETITR)

WA R 7 ERH S (&)

(b)

2R E ()

28D EURA - FE - BE

profit, assets and liabilities (continued) FIE ER580 (&)
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFIT ARMTFT
Asset EE
Reportable segment assets 2RO IEE 41,861,583 54,924,950
Inter-segment elimination "*BF'EJ}EEE (1,292,970) (597,605)
40,568,613 54,327,345
Interests in associates HEE RN RNIRE 315,546 386,867
Other equity investments st & 162,187 162,187
Tax recoverable Al B U Fi 1A 60,509 83,704
Deferred tax assets BETIEEE 459,730 451557
Unallocated head office and RAOBCAEER &% 1,386,089 1,517,389
corporate assets ITIEE
Consolidated total assets EHEERERE 42,952,674 56,929,049
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARMTFT
Liabilities E{E
Reportable segment liabilities 2RO IPBEIE 35,515,508 43,925,439
Inter-segment elimination ’\*BF'EJ}EEE (1,107,709) (581,488)
34,407,799 43,343,951
Income tax payable FERTETIS B 63,600 101,435
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 174,305 136,397
Unallocated head office and KAOBCAEER 404,017 606,882
corporate liabilities THERE
Consolidated total liabilities aptaEes 35,049,721 44,188,665
2015 F3§
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

4 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(iii) Geographical information
The Group did not have significant business operations
outside the PRC, therefore no geographic segment
information is presented.

(iv) Major customers
Revenues from Guodian and related parties under

Guodian amounted to RMB11,989,598,000 (2014:
RMB12,452,649,000).

5 Other revenue and other net income/(losses)

4 WARDERERE (F&)

(b) 2 ERIRE (B

(i) HEEE

AREBEYNERNHERIMNEER
BAEH At E2Ri0E

DEER °

(iv) FEEFF

REELEETENBEE S
BENKASEAARE
11,989,598,0007C (20144 = A
R#12,452,649,0007T) ©

5 HttARHEKE (818)%8E

Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total
HEREEY EEJIS 373 et
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB000

RMB’000

AREFT ARETT AREFT

RMB000  RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARMFT ARETTT

Other revenue Hab A
Government grants B i B 131,129 109,375 5,712 6,612 136,841 115,987
Interest income FEUA 129,090 129,605 1,950 7,358 131,040 136,963
Dividend income JEFThRER 13,739 20,233 - - 13,739 20,233
from unquoted AR B A
equity investments
Others Hib 51,502 44,621 415 1,799 51,917 46,420
325,460 303,834 8,077 15,769 333,537 319,603
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B ISR I (48)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEREHRA - UARKETIR)

Other revenue and other net income/(losses) 5 HtWAREMWKE (&EE)F
(continued) (&)
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total
BELEXY BRLEEER Azt
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000
ABBFR  ARETT ARBFR  ARETT AREFR  ARETZ

Other net incomel(losses) Hitlas/(BE) B8

Net gain/(loss) on sales EMEEENS/(BiR)3E 55,319 53,071 305 (4,983) 55,624 48,088
of raw materials
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME R AU FE - 10,102 - - - 10,102
Net gain on acquisition of e ANl i - 19,397 - - - 19,397
control over an associate
Net loss on disposal of HENE BER (33,528) (99,048) - (35) (33,528) (99,083)
property, plant and SEBRTENL)
equipment and
intangible assets (note)
Net foreign exchange losses EHEREE (9,945) (9,357) (5,543) (M) (15,488) (9,428)
Others Hit 17,461 3,299 (438) - 17,023 3,299
29,307 (22,536) (5,676) (5,089) 23,631 (27,625)
Note: Biat -
The amount for the year ended 31 December 2015 includes a net loss HZE2015F12A3MBELFENCELERE
of RMB32,327,000 (2014: RMB95,599,000) for the disposal of certain HERIRR PN ERETNL XM A FBEE
components installed in the Group’s desulphurisation and denitrification FRBEAEENGREPTENETES
facilities in the process of several technical upgrades as required by relevant EFE A M AR 32,327,00070 (20144 + AR
environment protection authorities. 95,599,0007T) ) F 518 ©
2015 F3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

6 Finance costs 6 BRI
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total
FRELEEYR BRIEREEY a5t
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB000  RMB’000 RMB000  RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT ARBTRT ARETT AREFT ARETT

Interest on bank and
other borrowings
Less: interest expenses
capitalised into
property, plant and
equipment, and
construction contracts

RITRE AT E, 621,616

W BMUEDE  BER (45,491)
R BVEERE
ERRTPHFIFX

884,827 325,179 344,060 946,795 1,228,887

(50,651) - (45,491) (50,651)

576,125

834,176 325,179 344,060 901,304 1,178,236

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 5.24% per

annum (2014: 5.71%).

Profit/(loss) before taxation

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BN A IZEFF E524% (2014 F ¢
5.71%)1EE AL °

7 BAIRE(EER)

BATFIE, (BB EME(GtA) :

(a) Staff costs* (a) BT
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total
FRREEY BRLEEER @t
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB000 ~ RMB’000 RMB000  RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBFT ARETFT ARMTR AREFT AREFT ARETFT
Salaries, wages and e IER 994,236 1,001,490 81,604 109,543 1,075,840 1,111,033
other benefits HAtrgF
Contributions to defined  SEE Mt FGRIRETEIA) 108,977 100,236 4,259 7,325 113,236 107,561
contribution retirement =k ()
plan (note)
1,103,213 1,101,726 85,863 116,868 1,189,076 1,218,594
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 165 e Y ot (R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEREHRA - UARKETIR)

7  Profit/(loss) before taxation (continued)

(@

Staff costs* (continued)
Note:

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Company and its PRC Subsidiaries participated in defined contribution
retirement schemes (the “PRC Schemes”) organised by the relevant
local government authorities for its employees. The Group is required
to make contributions to the PRC Schemes at 15% to 20% of basic
salaries of the employees. The local government authorities are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to retired
employees. In addition, certain subsidiaries and its staff participate
in a retirement plan managed by Guodian on a voluntary basis to
supplement the above-mentioned schemes and the Group is required
to make contributions at 5% to 10% of total salaries of the employees.
The Group has no other material obligation to make payments in
respect of pension benefits associated with these schemes and
supplementary retirement plan other than the annual contributions
described above.

7 BARDE(EE) (8)

(@

ST RAH ()
Kyt -

RIET EARRA S B AR AR - AR A RE
hEMBARAEEI2NT GBI K
R 4R 45 10 L SR REHEI (TR BT
Bl AEEEUFTREFEAMNETE
R4 8 15% 5 20% By 4 5% o & 1 BT
HEABEEIRENHERABRINEEZS -
PEoh - EFHB AR REBR I AT AESM
B & E AR ARG Bl{E A Y Eill st BIM
7 NEEBHME TEHEHN5%F10%
EOERR o B I AN - REER
BHMBRAEF ARG LTS HHTE
Kt BN HBENEREE -

2015 F3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

7

Profit/(loss) before taxation (continued) 7  FARE(E5E) (&)
(b) Other items (b) HAfEER
Continuing operations  Discontinued operation Total
BESEEY BRLEEER @t
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB000  RMB0O0 ~ RMB000  AMBO00O0  RMB000  RMB000
ABETR ANRETT AREFL AEEFT ARETT AREFT
Amortisation? gl
—lease prepayments -BRLRER 11,429 10,849 7,732 8,434 19,161 19,283
~intangible assets -BVEE 78,534 66,941 4,291 3278 82,825 70219
Depreciation* e
—investment properties -REENE 8,652 7,888 - 2,172 8,652 10,060
—property, plant and equipment 0% BERE 743,533 723,351 237,497 307,149 981,030 1,030,500
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) REFE/(FEED)
—property, plant and equipment -0%  BERK 9,691 - 1,534,550 524,866 1,544,241 524,866
—lease prepayments -BRtHHER - - 154835 - 154835 -
—intangible assets -BlEE - - 17,992 - 17,992 -
—trade and other receivables WSS REGENTE 663676 101342 1,835,338 (1,229) 2,499,014 100,113
\Write down of gross EUWREARZP 146,545 - - - 146,545 -
amounts due from SRR
customers for contract work
Auditors’ remuneration E: e
—annual audit services - EEEHRHB 13,485 13,785 - - 13,485 13,785
~interim review service - HEHRE 4,560 4,560 - - 4,560 4,560
Operating lease charges# HEHEER
—hire of plant and equipment -BRERXERE 30,375 24,536 101 567 30,476 25,103
—hire of properties S 56,366 25,078 6,356 447 62,722 25,525
Research and R K 213,948 184,647 10,287 74,358 224,235 259,005
development costs
Provision for warranty (note 32) EREBE W H32) 270,440 221,341 - 897 270,440 222,238
Rental receivable BB (38,642) (35,636) - - (38,642) (35,636)
from investment properties i
Direct outgoings of RBEMES 8,979 8,335 - 83 8,979 8,418
investment properties HEEY
Cost of inventoriest (note 22(b)) FEKAH1E22(b) 7,677,657 8,849,370 698,809 1685366 8,376,466 10,534,736
# Cost of inventories includes staff costs, depreciation and # FERABFEEIRA - ITEX

amortisation expenses and operating lease charges, which
amount is also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed separately above or in note 7(a) for each of these

types of expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR M sk (&)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESBHA - UARKETITR)

8 Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit 8 &HtEZRANATERH
or loss
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (a) AHHEZERNBIERS
represents:
Continuing operations  Discontinued operation Total
RERERK BRILREER &t
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000  RMB000  RMB’000  RMB000  RMB’000  RMB000
ARBTFT ANEETT AREFT AEETT ARMFT AEETT
Current tax REAFIEE
Provision for the year REERE 194,332 223,461 - 31 194,332 223,492
(Over)/under-provision A EERE (3,056) (6,368) (387) 467 (3,443) (5,901)
in respect of prior years (&R /TR

191,276 217,093 (387) 498 190,889 217,591
Deferred tax (note 31(b)) EERIE (H5231(b))
Origination and reversal of TR B A (51,404) (20,064) 81,139 (1,885) 29,735 (21,949)
temporary differences B4 REEE
139,872 197,029 80,752 (1,387) 220,624 195,642

The charge for PRC enterprise income tax for the Group’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC is calculated at the
statutory rate of 25% (2014: 25%) on the estimated assessable
profit of the period determined in accordance with relevant
enterprise income tax rules and regulations, except for certain
subsidiaries of the Group, which are tax exempted or taxed at
a preferential rate of 12.5% or 15% (2014: 12.5% or 15%) and
a subsidiary of the Group which is a small-scale enterprise
and is subject to enterprise income tax at 20% (2014: 20%).

A subsidiary of the Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax at 16.5% (2014: 16.5%). Taxation for other overseas
subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate rate of taxation
ruling in the relevant jurisdiction.

REBMPFABEKRIMMBARZ
FTSFi S KRR EATEH
SEIRIR T B EAR AT A R B IR
FERE25% (20144 : 25% )5t & -
REBEE TR KIE125%315%
(20144 : 12.5%815% ) (B =R R
MHMBAR  WE—KBR/NED
EA15720% (20144 : 20% ) U2
FTSTR M B A RIBR AN ©

REBEAB—XKMWBE R A E16.5%
(20145 : 16.5% ) BEEBFEH - &
b )G HNK 1 B)AR S5 AR B b 5 60 8 R
TR BUARTAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

SHHER RIS (&)

8 Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit 8
or loss (continued)

(b) Reconciliations between tax expense and accounting (b) HEMZESHFERBRERBRE
profit at applicable tax rates: SHE MR
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Profit/(loss) before taxation TR, (&E)
—Continuing operations — BB 194,164 1,163,753
— Discontinued operation —ERILCEER (4,663,259) (1,104,618)
(4,469,095) 59,135
Notional tax on profit before AR BR B BAE (1,117,274) 14,784
taxation at PRC statutory tax rate BRI ERNZERA
Effect on non-deductible expenses AR MR E 14,532 12,382
Effect of non-taxable income IR AR E (14,051) (22,512)
Effect of research and rEEF S st (10,921) (42,904)
development bonus deductions EilliN:z0)Z
Effect of share of profits FEAGES & 2 7R 35,165 (6,328)
less losses of associates REER T E
Effect of PRC tax concessions HERBEERNTE (163,342) (34,979)
Tax effect of unused tax *ﬁEwE’JinFFﬁRi‘%EﬁE& 1,342,590 312,434
losses and temporary RMHEENHIETE
differences not recognised
Tax effect of unused tax losses and REFE RSN ERANEFE (28,139) (32,242)
temporary differences not RIERBARFEARBERE
recognised in previous year but RERTEEZRENTIBLE
utilised or recognised in current year
Tax effect of unused tax losses and AEL P ERATFERERN 167,025 -
temporary differences recognised in ﬂi{iﬂ% HEEER
previous year but derecognised in RKIEZENTHIBALE
current year
Over-provision in respect of prior years — LAfF EEHEBF (3,443) (5,901)
Others A (1,518) (92)
Actual tax expense ERBIAERX 220,624 195,642
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 15 e M et (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEREHRA - UARKETIR)

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to
section 3 & 8(1) of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follow:

ESRESHNEHMH

RIBCEE R RIGDIDFEIED ~ F8(NETAK
(RB(HEEZMEER) R OIDFE 28R
ERENEENEEHFoOT

Salaries,
Directors’and  allowances Retirement
supervisors’  and benefits Discretionary scheme 2015
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
BZBR I ®R 20158
EzE  RENEA BERL  BARSHR fit
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTL  ARETT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFZ
Directors B2
Mr. Yang, Guang (Chairman) B REEEER) - 437 195 78 710
Mr. Fei, Zhi (Resigned in November 2015) £ BEE(0ISENAEE) - 397 - 1 468
Mr. Wang, Zhongau FREESE - - - - -
Mr. Zhang, Wenjian RUEEE - - - - -
Mr. Feng, Shuchen BHELE - - - - -
Ms. Wang, Hongyan (Resigned in October 2015) T4+ (2015510 A5H) - 349 119 59 527
Mr. Yan Andrew Y. B okt - - - - -
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Ms. Zhang, Xiaolu REELL 138 - - - 138
Mr. Qu, Jiuhui BABLE 150 - - - 150
M. Xie, Qiuye ANBEE 150 - - - 150
Mr. Fan, Renda Anthony BLERAE 150 - - - 150
Supervisors gz
Mr. Shao, Guoyong BEBELE - - - - -
Mr. Xu, Xingzhou SRENEA - - - - -
Mr. Chen, Jingdong REREE - - - - -
Ms. He, Lili WEBLL - 391 156 ! 618
Mr. Li, Wei Z BrE - 332 17 70 519
588 1,906 587 349 3,430
2015 F£ 3§ 189
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Bk M e ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEREHB - UARBFIR)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

9 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments 9 EEREENTFM(E)
(continued)
Salaries,
Directors’ and allowances Retirement
supervisors'  and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2014
fees inkind bonuses  contributions Total
ETEL  IE-#M 20145
£28  REVEN BERL  BREER Ait
RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB1000
ANREFT  AREFT  AREFr  AREFT AREFI
Directors Bz
Mr. Yang, Guang (Chairman) BREE(EER) - 360 199 56 615
Mr. Fei, Zhi (Appointed in May 2014) EBRA(20145501H) - 360 199 56 615
Mr. Wang, Zhongqu (Appointed in May 2014) THERE(014F5R D) - - - - -
Mr. Zhang, Wenjian (Appointed in May 2014) RXELE(014F5RT6H) - - - - -
Mr. Feng, Shuchen BHELE - - - - -
Ms. Wang, Hongyan TRt - 421 130 72 623
Mr. Yan Andrew Y. B oaks - - - - -
Mr. Chen, Feihu (Resigned in May 2014) BRELE (014F5 R ) - - - - -
Mr. Ye, Weifang (Resigned in May 2014) EEFLL(014F5RER) - - - - -
Mr. Li, Hongyuan (Resigned in May 2014) FRELE(014F5RER) - 93 107 19 219
Independent non-executive Directors BUEHTES
Ms. Zhang, Xiaolu (Appointed in May 2014) REELLT(2014F5RT6) 88 - - - 88
Mr. Qu, Jiuhui (Appointed in May 2014) BABEA (201455 516) 88 - - - 88
Mr. Xie, Qiuye (Appointed in May 2014) BB LE(014F5 A fER) 88 - - - 88
Mr. Fan, Renda Anthony EELs 150 - - - 150
Mr. Lu, Yanchang (Resigned in May 2014) BEES &t (201455 R 63 - - - 63
Mr. Zhai, Ligong (Resigned in May 2014) BN (2014F5 B R 63 - - - 63
Mr. Shi, Dinghuan (Resigned in May 2014) RERLE(014F5 A ER) 63 - - - 63
Supervisors -
Mr. Shao, Guoyong (Appointed in May 2014) BRI S04 (20145 A 1T 6) - - - - -
Mr. Xu, Xingzhou SEMEE - - - - -
Mr. Chen, Jingdong (Appointed in May 2014) BEREL(014F5A0D) - - - - -
Ms. He, Lili (Appointed in May 2014) EELL(2014F581%) - 288 159 47 494
Mr. Li, Wei T REHE - 352 167 67 586
Mr. Chen, Bin (Resigned in May 2014) Bt (20145 AR - - - - -
Mr. Guan, Xiaochun (Resigned in May 2014) BEALL (201455 A - 506 198 77 781
Mr. Gao, Song (Resigned in May 2014) 5 BEA(2014F558E) - - - - -
603 2,380 1,159 304 4536
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESBHA - UARKETITR)

Individuals with highest emoluments 10 FMESHEA
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2014: xR REMLEAS - EF iz (2014
one) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 9. The F—U)BESE  EFMEM TP ETT
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2014: THE o B =((2014F : ML) EAAK
four) individuals are as follows: BN -
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFT
Salaries and other emoluments T & J2 H A B 1,342 1,685
Discretionary bonuses ﬁ’]\ T4 437 552
Retirement scheme contributions RIRSHK 217 282
1,996 2,519
The emoluments of the three (2014: four) individuals with the highest E=((20149F : ) B &e BB E
emoluments are within the following band: ARFNEELT
2015 2014
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AH
Nil to HKD 1,000,000 T2 #1,000,0007T 3 4
Discontinued operation 11 BRI EK

During the year ended 31 December 2015, management decided
to abandon all of the Group’s operations under the solar power
products and services segment, which constitute a major line of
business of the Group, due to the challenging market conditions
in the solar industry. As such, the results of the Group’s operations
under the solar power products and services segment were
presented as discontinued operation in the consolidated financial
statements and the comparative figures have been restated.

As a result of the discontinuation of solar power products and
services segment, the Group shut down the related production
lines which indicated the related property, plant and equipment,
lease prepayments and intangible assets may be impaired. It is
also considered that the carrying amounts of certain other assets
belong to the solar power products and services segment may
not be recovered or realised as previously expected. Accordingly,
management conducted a review on the carrying amounts of these
assets and based on the results of the assessment recognised
impairment losses or assets write-downs according to the Group’s
applicable accounting policies. Further details are set in out in notes
13, 15, 16, 21 and 24.

REZE2015F12A31 B ILFE - AR K%
%ﬁ¥?@mm%ﬁﬁ ERERTERIEX
BEEMMMRIE D BB LEEER &
ﬂm$%lm EEBEEER - At - &
SEEEARRRREE R RIRF H B AE & R
BHPBIRE T RADRIEEEER - I
BrrEgigoamEt -

RN ARG REEMMARTE D BRI EBFR L - A
SEBEARLIES  HEYE  BEMR
B BN AERMETEEED HE
BAE 1IN EREHEEE - ABEEMR
MARTS D &R R E b B ERARE BB 58
BRI R B -G ARERER - F
It EEEHREEENREEEETE
%o WERFEER - REEBERNSE
BERFERBIERR R E EMOR, - #H15E RN
57131516 214124 ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

11 Discontinued operation (continued) 11 BARIEEEER(E)
2015 2014
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
et ARBTT AREFr
Revenue A 4 684,264 2,919,416
Cost of sales HEMKA (865,212) (2,739,198)
Gross (loss)/profit (E8H) ER (180,948) 180,218
Other revenue Hlg A 5 8,077 15,769
Other net losses HthE518)55E 5 (5,676) (5,089)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R DAY (9,542) (31,765)
Administrative expenses TS (4,149,991) (919,691)
Loss from operation REEE (4,338,080) (760,558)
Finance costs BATSR AN 6 (325,179) (344,060)
Loss before taxation from BRI RN ATEE 7 (4,663,259) (1,104,618)
discontinued operation
Income tax Frig®t 8 (80,752) 1,387
Loss for the year from ERIEEEBNETERFE (4,744,011) (1,103,231)
discontinued operation
Attributable to: BER
Equity shareholders of the Company ZNA al#E 25 A% 5 (4,604,649) (1,058,437)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR (139,362) (44,794)
Loss for the year from BRI REXBNEFEEER (4,744,011) (1,108,231)

discontinued operation

2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Discontinued operation (continued) 11

The net cash flows incurred by the discontinued operation are as

follows:

(RIESEHHB - AARKIIT)
ERIEEERE(E)

ERIMGERBEENFRSIRAT -

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT AREFT

Net cash generated from/(used in) R ELS (FRFRE 627,420 (994,961)
operating activities

Net cash (used in)/generated from WEEESH(ER), EENFRE (20,380) 17,766
investing activities

Net cash (used in)/generated from MEESR(FER) ELNFRS (648,081) 621,541
financing activities

Net cash outflow SFIR SR (41,041) (355,654)

Loss per share

12

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB4,639,616,000 (2014:RMB393,374,000) and the weighted
average of 6,063,770,000 ordinary shares (2014: 6,063,770,000

ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence during
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.

(Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company used in the basic and diluted loss per share calculations:

BREE

BREARABEBNFTERBEARBRAAR
AR I R A B 1B A R %6 4,639,616,000
7t (2014 : A R % 393,374,000 7t ) bA
MAFERITENLBROMEFTSH
6,063,770,000 % (2014 4 : 6,063,770,000
A% @A) ©

RELZE 20154 £ 2014F 12 A31 B IFEE
A AR N FERREMEEE LB -

Eﬁﬁ%$ﬂ%?§iﬂx)§ﬁ@ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁE’Jg%
ARARE B RN (BER),BNA

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARMTFIT

— From continuing operations — BB ST (34,967) 665,063
— From a discontinued operation —BRIHEEER (4,604,649) (1,058,437)

(note 11) (K15E11)

(4,639,616) (393,374)
2015 F3§
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

13 Property, plant and equipment 13 W% - BEKRE
Land,  Machinery Furniture,
buildings and and Motor  fixtures and  Construction
structures  equipment vehicles others  in progress Total
1t BF FERE
REEN  BERRK RE Rt ERIR &3t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000

ANEEFT  AEETT  ARETT  ARETT  AEEFT ARETT
Cost: A
At 1 January 2014 R014E1A18 4,945,984 7.907,733 193,921 376,465 1,557,334 14,981,437
Additions 1 5,824 65,656 13,731 111,662 451,930 648,803
Transfer from construction in progress EETEREN 113,244 826,277 - 127 (939,648) -
Transfer from investment properties (note 14)  B{EREIENEHiit14) 41,022 - - - - 41022
Acquisition of control over an associate WEHBAR - 2,862 2208 - - 5070
Disposals & (3,441) (168,675) (2,320) (5,488) - (179,924)
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 R2014F12A318 20155 1A1A 5,102,633 8,633,853 207,540 482,766 1,069,616 15,496,408
Additions 1 18,474 124,702 5,604 26,521 256,255 431,556
Transfer from construction in progress HRIREEA 94,604 686,103 - 324 (781,031) -
Transfer from investment properties (note 14) — S{EREUNE Hiit14) 106,926 - - - - 106,926
Disposals e - (89,062) (1,099) (2,325) - (92,486)
Disposal of a subsidiary HEMBRA (116.244)  (200,151) (3,499) (7,408) (15,051)  (351,359)
At 31 December 2015 R2015512A31H 5,206,393 9,146,445 208,546 499,878 529,789 15,591,051
Accumulated depreciation BHAERAERL

and impairment losses:

At 1 January 2014 R201451718 480,879 1,488,440 98,143 140,273 - 2,207,735
Depreciation charge for the year TEENER 191,491 743,542 29,020 66,447 - 1030500
Impairment loss AERR - 524,866 - - - 524,866
Transfer from investment properties (note 14)  S{EREME Hiit14) 4070 - - - - 4070
Written back on disposals RLEmAD (1,368) (71487) (1,946) (4814) - (79615)
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 R2014F12A31A R2015F1A1A 675,072 2,685,361 125,217 201,906 - 3,687,556
Depreciation charge for the year TERRER 231,160 663,488 23,029 63,353 - 981,030
Impairment loss (note (iv) RERK W) 723,997 765,102 1,028 10,562 43552 154421
Transfer from investment properties (note 14)  B{EREMME(Hiit14) 4,697 - - - - 4,697
Written back on disposals R EmEE - (42,285) (879) (2,246) - (45,410)
Disposal of a subsidiary HEHBAR (20,782) (75,947) (2,554) (4710) - (103993)
At 31 December 2015 R2015%F124318 1,614,144 3,995,719 145,841 268,865 43,552 6,068,121
Net book value: RERE:
At 31 December 2015 R2015%F12/318 3,592,249 5,150,726 62,705 231,013 486,237 9,522,930
At 31 December 2014 R2014%F12/318 4,427 561 5,948,492 82,323 280,860 1,069,616 11,808,852
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B #%5 R M et (AR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

13 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Notes:

(0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The Group's plants and buildings are located in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group is in the process of applying for
the ownership certificates for certain of its properties. The aggregate
carrying value of such properties of the Group as at 31 December
2015 is approximately RMB306,227,000 (2014: RMB467,892,000). The
directors are of the opinion that the Group is entitled to lawfully occupy
or use these properties.

The Group leases out a number of items of machinery and
equipment to power plants under operating leases, details of the
lease arrangements are set out in note 4(a)(ii). As at 31 December
2015, the aggregate net book value of these assets amounted to
RMB3,925,333,000 (2014: RMB2,956,118,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group shut down
certain solar production lines in the solar power products and service
segment, which was reclassified as a discontinued operation in the
consolidated financial statements (note 11). The Group assessed
the recoverable amount of the related property, plant and equipment
of the solar production lines and as a result the carrying amount
of the property, plant and equipment was written down to their
recoverable amount of RMB1,413,992,000. An impairment loss of
RMB1,534,550,000 was recognised in “administrative expenses”. The
estimates of recoverable amount were based on fair value less costs
of disposal, using cost approach as the method of the appraisal of the
certain assets, for which was evaluated by an independent third party
valuer, Beijing Pan-China Assets Appraisal Co., Ltd. The fair value on
which the recoverable amount is based on is categorised as a Level 3
measurement.

(BRIESBHA - UARKETITR)

13 % - BEERE(E)

Bet

(M)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

AEBERME RAETHMRHE

2015 12A31H0  AEBIEEAETY
HEPIPERET - N2015512A318 A&
B ) It 58 W) 2 42 (B B A R 15 306,227,000
TL(20144F + AR¥467,892,0007T) ° &
EMRE  AEBEEESXEESFERL
B E

AEFENCERAEME/MEAT & TSR
B ARAELHMNFE2ERE
4(a)(ii) e R2015F 128310 » IWEEER
B EFE R % A A R 3,925,333,000 7T
(20145 : AR¥2,956,118,0007T) °

REZE2015F 128318 ILFE » A&EH
BB T KIBEEE MR D B ARG aEE
REER BEAHMBRETENS
BMABKRIEEEEB(MHE11) - NEM
HAGEREEREESHBODE - BE
REEH RO S EET T ARY
BEYE  BELRIENEDSERRZ
Ha e < 58 A R%1,413,992,0007T °
BEIMTRAXIFRIFEBIARE
1,534,550,0007T ° ¥ A/ E € L ETE
LR BEREEERAMKE -@BBVE
ZHFEARHE R R BEELETFEER
RAEERK A EAZSEENBER A
HEEETTE - EREENQAEE
EEAIKRESHENERAEZER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BTSRRI e (48)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

14

Investment properties 14 REMYE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Cost: R :
At 1 January ®1A1H 411,182 452,204
Transfer to property, BAWE - BE MREH713) (106,926) (41,022)
plant and equipment (note13)
At 31 December M12831H 304,256 411,182
Accumulated depreciation: HEIE
At 1 January »1A1H 54,073 48,083
Depreciation charge for the year KEEWEE 8,652 10,060
Transfer to property, A - BB KR (HF13) (4,697) (4,070)
plant and equipment (note 13)
At 31 December M®12H831H 58,028 54,073
Net book value BRENFE 246,228 357,109

All the investment properties owned by the Group are located in the

PRC.

The fair values of the investment properties of the Group as at 31
December 2015 were RMB408,795,000 (2014: RMB635,446,000).

(@) Investment properties leased out under operating lease

The Group lease out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to
15 years, with an option to renew the lease after that date
at which time all terms are re-negotiated. Lease payments
are usually adjusted upon the expiry of lease terms to reflect
market rentals. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

REEMANREEMESLNDE -

MR2015F 12 A31H » REBWMKRELEY
=N R EEAAREEAL08,7950007T (2014
£ AR¥635,446,0007T) °

(a) RESLEEHBANREMWE

AEBENKEHERBRENEYE -
—RUAEERH /1165 - FIHIZ
‘RATAEE - ERESBRMEEE
GREHAH - B Z R —RIR
EHISHSETRE - AEHEESR
BIFESERS

ERTRBHCLEAEET - A%EE
SRR FEUR Y ST N SRR T -

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ABETFT

Within 1 year 1F R 11,937 14,543
After 1 year but within 5 years 1FZBSFER - 2,901
11,937 17,444
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 15 e M et (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEREHRA - UARKETIR)

14 Investment properties (continued) 14 REMYEGE)
(b) Fair values of investment properties (b) BEMWELAEE
(i)  Fair value hierarchy () RAREEZR

The following table presents the fair value of the TREH|TASEERBREHR
Group’s investment properties measured at the REEZENEESENRE
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis for HEMENRREE  WIR(EB
disclosure purpose, categorised into the three-level P MEENEIIF)N ARE
fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value EffE2 PIEED B=ELA
measurement. The level into which a fair value BEEH - AABEFEEBR
measurement is classified is determined with reference RRBHE A EREREA
to the observability and significance of the inputs used HUR A A B AT 1 AN & SRR
in the valuation technique as follows: FEIDH - AT :

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only —  F1ERMEE: EFHA1
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in F A BIRETAIEN A
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at AEE - BlErE 2 AR
the measurement date. BENBEMNERTST

RESTHRERRIE -

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using —  FoELHE: FH2A&
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which MABBETTIEN AR
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant BE  BTFE1IMENX
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are BRFEATAIERNED
inputs for which market data are not available. ) A\ BB A ] B SR  A2K

& o TAIEBRHASE L
TFET SR8 A S
o

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using —  FEIERMGE:FEATA

significant unobservable inputs. BIRME R ABURETT
AENAREE-

2015 F3§ 197
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

14 Investment properties (continued)

14 REMWE(E)

(b) Fair values of investment properties (Continued) (b) BREMYELIAEEE)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) () AARBEZRE)
Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2015 categorised into:
2015512 A1 AAAEETE X5 A
Fair value at
31 December
2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R20156
124318
AEE E—ER EBR EZER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETZ
Recurring fair value measurements E#MAAEENE
Investment properties REUYE 408,795 - 408,795 -
Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2014 categorised into:
R2014F12A31B AR BEHE - WA A
Fair value at
31 December
2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R20145F
12A31H
AR(EE E-ER E-ER F-EDR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ANREFT  AREFT ARMEFT  AREFT
Recurring fair value measurements E#&MAALEENE
Investment properties REMYE 635,446 - 635,446 -

(ii)  Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements

The fair value of investment properties is determined
using market comparison approach by reference to
recent sales price of comparable properties on a price
per square meter basis using market data which is
publicly available.

2015 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

15 Lease prepayments

(BRIESBHA - UARKETITR)

15 FAMLHBER

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARMETFT
Cost: RN :
At 1 January M1A1H 979,014 977,395
Additions N - 1,619
Disposal of a subsidiary HEHE A A (32,254) -
At 31 December ®12H831H 946,760 979,014
Accumulated amortisation ZF B RREERX
and impairment losses:
At 1 January ®W1A1H 79,705 60,422
Amortisation for the year RNEEFHEE 19,161 19,283
Disposal of a subsidiary HEHE AR (3,064) -
Impairment losses (note (iii)) BB E K (B a2 (i) 154,835 -
At31December MeAstA 250637 . 79.705
Net book value EREFEE 696,123 899,309
Notes: Kist -

0]

(it)

(iif)

Lease prepayments mainly represent prepayments for rights to use
land, which is all located in the PRC, for own use properties with lease
periods of 25 to 50 years. There were no unpaid lease prepayments as
at 31 December 2015 and 2014.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group was in the process of applying
for registration of the ownership certificates for certain of its land use
rights. The aggregate carrying value of such land use rights of the
Group as at 31 December 2015 is approximately RMB2,600,000 (2014:
RMB2,600,000). The directors are of the opinion that the Group is
entitled to lawfully occupy or use these land.

Two pieces of land for which the Group prepaid the land use rights
have not been developed as at 31 December 2015. The land use rights
belong to the Group’s solar power products and services segment and
the Group does not have a plan to develop the lands. Pursuant to an
announcement issued by the State Council of PRC named “Circular of
the State Council on Promoting the Economical and Intensive Utilisation
of Land (GuoFa [2008] No. 3)", the land use rights for land pending to
develop for over two years should be returned with no consideration.
The aggregate carrying amount of such land use rights of the Group
as at 31 December 2015 is approximately RMB154,835,000. The
Group assessed the recoverable amount of such land use rights and
as a result the carrying amount of such land use rights was written
down to their recoverable amount of RMB Nil. An impairment loss of
RMB154,835,000 was recognised in “administrative expenses”.

(if)

(iii)

ENLHHAERETES L FEAEEN
RoMEFERLHIVRTRE - ERA
R HEHA25-509F - R2015F K
2014F12A318 » AT FERZFHTERN
THFREK

M201512A310 » AEBEALEAET
T AR EREE - R20156F 128
318 AEBNL ST B EABEY
A AR ¥2,600,0007T (2014F © AR
2,600,0007T) - EEMRAE  AEBHFHE
BIEMIE AR E AL E i o

HZE2015F12A318 - AEBE ML L H(E
AREDABERFME - ZSLHEREE
REBABGEERRRES I - WA RE
ES AR Bk Z L - RIBEPEBER
Be 25 47 19 [ C B 5 e A A (R 3 D 40 SR 40 FR it
B0 A1) (B 25[2008]35% ) |+ LB MM
F o EEEEKRE - #ZE2015912 A 31
A AEEBEEN Lt AEEERRA
BEXD B ARE154,8350007T ° A%kE
ERHE T bt AN EE - &
R LT EARNEESERREE
AEEBARBE T - BETTHREAY ]
AR RBR(E 8 5k A R % 154,835,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEREHB - UARBFIR)

Intangible assets

16 |FEE

Concession Technical Development Software
asset know-how costs  and others Total
fTREE BERW BEAK  BHRHEM st
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000
ANREFT  AREFT  AREFr  AREFT AREFI
Cost: %
At 1 January 2014 W2014E1518 1,016,010 112,418 308,639 40,133 1,477,200
Additions )| 25,829 1,062 101,603 10,898 139,392
Acquisition of control over an associate e YN - - 25,243 87 26,030
Disposals st (9.517) - (3,469) (13) (12,999)
At 31 December 2014 201412 A31A K%
and 1 January 2015 2015%1A18 1,032,322 113,480 432,016 51,805 1,629,623
Additions 0 1,596 - 58,950 13,477 74,023
Disposals e (2,676) - - - (2,676)
Disposal of a subsidiary HENBAR - (11,876) (54,799) (238) (66,913)
At 31 December 2015 12015812318 1,031,242 101,604 436,167 65,044 1,634,057
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses: R BERAERL
At 1 January 2014 201451518 77,807 48,725 26,166 14,084 166,782
Amortisation charge for the year AEEBED 37522 9,927 17,105 5,665 70,219
Disposals HE - - - (5) (5)
At 31 December 2014 M2014512A318 &
and 1 January 2015 2015F1A18 115,329 58,652 43,271 19,744 236,996
Amortisation charge for the year (note (ii)) REREHBH) 37,516 8,656 20573 7,080 82,825
Disposal of a subsidiary HEHBAR - (4,058) (1,557) (238) (5,853)
Impairment losses HBRX - 17,992 - - 17,992
At 31 December 2015 #2015%12A31A 152,845 81,242 71,287 26,586 331,960
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2015 12015812318 878,397 20,362 364,880 38,458 1,302,097
At 31 December 2014 12014F12A318 916,993 54,828 388,745 32,061 1,392,627

200 2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

Intangible assets (continued)

Notes:

(0]

(it)

(iii)

Concession assets represent the rights the Group received for the
usage of the concession water treatment plants for the treatment of
water. The concession assets are amortised over the operating period
of the service concession projects.

The amortisation charges of RMB42,705,000 (2014: RMB46,568,000),
RMB36,531,000 (2014: RMB11,939,000) and RMB3,589,000 (2014:
RMB11,712,000) are included in “cost of sales”, “administrative
expenses” and “loss for the year from discontinued operation” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss respectively.

As at 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings were secured by concession assets (see note
28), which had an aggregate net book value of RMB552,404,000 (2014:
RMB564,503,000).

(BRIESZEHA - UAREIITR)
B EE &)
Aaz

(i) BFEEEEIEEZAENEFEER
BIS/KEEIE RS o ISRTHRBELRT
ERETRB SRS -

(i)  AHEERPOIEENLR]  [1TTBHZ]
MR EHFEBEBIEE TH52
FEEMVEESHERARK42705,000
gL (2014 4F + AN R % 46,568,000 7T ) °
AR #36,531,0007C (2014 F : AR¥E
11,939,000 7t ) & A R # 3,589,000 JT
(2014: AR#®11,712,0007T) °

(i)  M2015F12A31H  AEEMNE TS
BIHRTEEMERASFEEEFE
B(RWE28) HEEFELEAA
R ¥ 552,404,000 7T (2014 4F : AR
564,503,0007T) °

Goodwill 17 BE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHTFT ABEFT
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 20141 H1H + 2014F12H31H
and 31 December 2015 20159 12A31H 57,591 57,591

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units identified
according to operation and operating segment as follows:

P E D BCRIRIR TIOR3 8 7 /Y
REERTELETT

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARMTFT

Environmental protection IRIR 57,591 57,591

The r

ecoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based on

value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using zero growth rate. The cash flows are
discounted using discount rates ranging from 12.9% to 16.0% (2014
12.9% to 16.0%). The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant segment.

ReEEE MO EEDIREREE
EMEE - BABENGERBARAT
FEEMBECATHENUBEENES
FIEAE - BBEAFHMNBE S RERATE
EREH - B REBAFERAR12.9%
£16.0% B I3 K (2014 F : 129% &
16.0%) ° FTERAMITREATAITEE
I [z BR AR B 9 EB A REE RS o

2015 F£ 3§
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

18 Investments in subsidiaries 18 HHEBEARNKRE
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries as at MR2015F12H31H » HAEEEE - BE
31 December 2015 which principally affected the results, assets or S BEAGTEFENNBRARIMNEEYE
liabilities of the Group. All of the PRC subsidiaries are limited liability mr e FERENBRARMYABREMEA
companies. Al e

Proportion of ownership interest

fE&RERILA
Place of Group’s
establishment/ Issued and fully effective ~ Held by the Held by
Name of the company incorporation paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities
BE A TEEN
LR R/ HENER BhEE mADERE AMELOIRE IEER
Beijing Guodian Longyuan Environmental The PRC RMB1,613,000,000 100% 100% - Provision of desulphurisation and other
Engineering Co., Lid. 7 ARH1,613,000000 environmental protection engineering
(‘Longyuan Environmental’) services
IREASERERIEERAT ( [ERRR] ) RERTREMRR LR
Jiangsu Deke Environmental The PRC RMBB0,000,000 67.46% - 67.46%  Production and sale of environmental
Equipment Co., Ltd. q: AR #80,000,000 protection equipment
THERRRABRRAT RRRBHIERHE
Beijing Longyuan Environmental The PRC RMB33,750,000 51% - 51%  Provision of desulphurisation and other
Engineering Co., Lid. t 33,750,000 environmental protection engineering
IRERERIERRAT services
RERTNENRRRELRRE
Zhoushan Longxi Environment The PRC RMB33,340,000 36.21% - 7% Design and construction of environmental
Engineering Co., Ltd. A ARE33,340,000 protection projects
AUEERRTRARAR O EEEa AN
Bengbu Guodian Longyuan Environmental The PRC RMB30,000,000 100% - 100%  Operation of environmental protection
Development Co., Lid. q: AR30,000,000 facilties
BERSERERLRARAT RRRIERTE
Jiangsu Longyuan Catalyst Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% - 100%  Production and sale of selective catalytic
TERRELHARAR il ARH50,000,000 reduction catalyst
BEIECERE AN LERSE
Guodian Longyuan Nanjing Membrane The PRC RMB25,000,000 84% - 100%  Production and sale of membrane, water
Technology Co., Lid. A ARE25,000,000 treatment equipment and electric
BEERARERIERAR equipment
Bl KERRBRERRENLELHE
Nanjing Longyuan Environmental Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB101,000,000 60% - 60%  Provision of environmental protection
ArERRRERAT # ABR101,000,000 engineering services
RERRTERS
Puyang Guodian Longyuan Water The PRC RMB10,000,000 70% - 70%  Operation of water treaiment projects
Treaiment Co., Lid. HE ARH10000,000 KEEER R

BRERER EARAA

2015 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BT ISR P o (A8
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEREHRA - UARKETIR)

18 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

18 HKELQTWRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

fE&RERILA
Place of Group’s
establishment/ Issued and fully effective ~ Held by the Held by
Name of the company incorporation paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities
BE A TEEN
LR R/ HRMER BhEE mADERE AMELOIRE IEER
Yixing Guodian Jinghui Environment The PRC RMB12,000,000 100% 100% - Production and sale of selective catalytic
Equipment Co, Lid. 7 AR12,000000 reduction catalyst
ERASEERRREERLT BRIEERE(HNEEREE
Jiangsu Guodian Environment The PRC RMB36,000,000 100% 100% - Production and sale of selective catalytic
Catalyst Co,, Ltd. t AE36,000,000 reduction catalyst
TEHESERENIERAR BRIRERE(ANIEREE
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Hong Kong 22,000,000 100% 100% - Saleof desulphurisation equipment
Hong Kong Corporation Limited (note (j) & ordinary shares RigEnEs
(W) 22,000,000%
Beijing Lucency Environment and The PRC RMB500,000,000 100% 100% - Construction and operation of water
Technology Co., L. t AB#500,000,000 {reatment projects
PR AR RN RAR AT KREERMBTELE
Dalian Delang Water Treatment Co, Ltd. The PRC RMB20,000,000 51% - 51%  Operation of water treaiment projects
REEHKBARAF il ARE20,000000 KEEERNEE
Shanxi Xinyuan Environment Protection The PRC RMB13,000,000 51% - 51%  Construction and operation of water
Resources Development Co., Ltd. 7 ARE13,000,000 treatment projects
WERRERE RS EREMARA KEBER R ELE
Talyuan Lucency Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB102,000,000 80% - 80%  Design and installation of sewage treatment
RRAHE R EERRAR il AR%102,000,000 equipment
K RERRR BLR
Dalian Economic and Technical Development The PRC RMB53,442,000 50% 50% - Construction and operation of water
Zone Drain Management Co., Lid. 7 ARH53,442,000 treatment projects
REBERIASRIKERERRA AL
Guodian Galaxy Water Corporation Limited The PRC 300,000,000 70% - 100%  Construction and operation of water
BERTKBRAERAT ki shares of RMB1 each ireatment projects
300,000,000% KEBEREL AL
BRARET
Guodian Galaxy Water (Shanxian) Co., Lid. The PRC RMB15,000,000 70% - 100%  Construction and operation of water
BIERKY (ER) ARAA e AEH15,000,000 {reatment projects
INASEEL) AR
Guodian Galaxy Water (Shouguang) Co., Ltd. The PRC RMBG60,000,000 70% - 100%  Construction and operation of water
BERKE (B1) BRAT il AR 60,000,000 freatment projects
KRR i e

2015 F3k
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEREHB - UARBFIR)

18 Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 18 HHBLARNKRE(E)
Proportion of ownership interest
fE&RERILA
Place of Group’s
establishment/ Issued and fully effective ~ Held by the Held by
Name of the company incorporation paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities
BE A TEEN
LR R/ HRMER BhEE mADERE AMELOIRE IEER
Guodian Galaxy Water (Dezhou) Co., Lid. The PRC RMB21,409,200 70% - 100%  Construction and operation of water
BERTKH () 5RAR e AEH21,409,200 {reatment projects
KRR i 80
Guodian Galaxy Water (Changle) Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB32,550,000 70% - 100%  Construction and operation of water
BERKE (B2) BRAR A NE32,550,000 ireatment projects
NEERR i T e
Guodian Galaxy Water (Caoxian) Co., Lid. The PRC RMB12,000,000 70% - 100%  Construction and operation of water
AERE (BE) BRAT HE AK12,000,000 ireatment projects
KEBER iR L EEE
Galaxy Water (Tengzhou Mushi) Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB13,250,000 70% - 100%  Construction and operation of water
RkE (BIHAR) BRAF ke AE13250,000 ireaiment projects
KEEER ML ELE
Guodian Galaxy Water The PRC RMB72,000,000 70% - 100%  Construction and operation of water
(Qingdao Development Zone) Co., Lid. HE AR72,000,000 reaiment projects
BERTKE (FEREE) ARAR NEHERR i L RS
Jining Galaxy Water Treatment Co., Lid. The PRC RMB51,710,400 0% - 100%  Construction and operation of water
EERTKEERAE A AR51710400 freatment projects
KEBER L ELE
Guodian Galaxy Water (Tengzhou) Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB47,000,000 0% - 100%  Construction and operation of water
BERTKE () BRAT e AR 47,000,000 {reatment projects
INAIEEL) AR e
Zhucheng Galaxy Water Treatment Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB50,000,000 70% - 100%  Construction and operation of water
ERETIKRERRAT t ABRH50,000,000 {reaiment projects
UL Ak
Guodian United Power Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB1,695,903,400 70% 70% - Research and development of wind turbine
BERADNRITERAT il NE1,695,903,400 technology
B eHE
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB220,000,000 70% - 100%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Baoding) Co, Ltd. il AB#220,000,000 BENEEREE
EERATNRNT (RE) BRAR
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB150,000,000 70% - 100%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Lianyungang) Co,, Lid. i AR150,000000 BSNEEREE

HEBAU7R (E28) 5RO
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BT ISR P o (A8
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(BRIEREHRA - UARKETIR)

18 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

18 HKELQTWRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

fE&RERILA
Place of Group’s
establishment/ Issued and fully effective ~ Held by the Held by
Name of the company incorporation paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities
BE A TEEN
LR R/ HENER BhEE mADERE AMELOIRE IEER
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB105,000,000 70% - 100%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Chifeng) Co., Ltd. il AB#105,000,000 BENEEREE
EERATNR (FE) BRAR
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB50,000,000 59.50% - 85%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Yixing) Co., Lid. HE ARE50000,000 BORMEEERE
EskAPNR (HE) BRAR
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB5,000,000 70% - 100%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Changchun) Co., Ltd. A AR5,000,000 WL Tiokde et
BESRABNRN (RF) BRAW
Guodian United Power Technology The PRC RMB24,000,000 42% - 60%  Production and sale of wind turbine
(Weifang) Co., Ltd. il ABH24,000000 BENEEREE
EERATNRT (45) 5RO
Guodian United Power American LLC. (note (i) United States USD1,000,000 70% - 100%  Sale of solar cells
() e %711,000,0007C ARG EnNEE
Guodian Solar Co., Ltd. The PRC RB1,483,000,000 100% 100% - Production and sale of solar cells
BEERERAA i AJRH1,483,000,000 BB EERHEE
Guodian Zhaojing Optoelectronics The PRC RMB300,000,000 51% - 51%  Production and sale of solar cells
Technology Jiangsu Co., Ltd. i AR300,000000 AGHENNEERNE
BEkEHSRIHARLT
Guodian Solar System Technology The PRC RMB20,000,000 50% - 50%  Construction of solar power generation
(Shanghai) Co., Lid. (note (i) i AK20,000,000 system
BEABEAGRE (18) BRAR (W) ABHEBRMME LR
Guodian Longyuan Power Technology and The PRC RMB244,727,000 100% 100% - Provision of energy conservation engineering
Engineering Co., Lid. A ARE244 727,000 services
BEERE NRITTEEREMAAA AR
Guodian Longyuan Energy Saving The PRC RMB100,000,000 100% - 100%  Provision of energy conservation engineering
Technology Co., Lid. A AR100,000000 services
BT RITERAT REEE RS
Beijing Long Wei Power Generation The PRC RMB40,000,000 60% - 60%  Production and sale of steam furbine
Technology Co., Lid. $E AE40,000,000 iR REE
IRERERRITERAT
Yantai Longyuan Power Technology The PRC 513,216,000 23.25% 23.25% - Production and sale of thermal energy
Co., Ltd. (note (i) w shares of RMB1 each equipment
ELERENBHRBRAR) W) 513,216,000 R RBNEEERE
BRAREIT

2015 F3k
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(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

18 Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 18 HHEARNKRE(E)
Proportion of ownership interest
R ERLA
Place of Group’s
establishment/ Issued and fully effective ~ Held by the Held by
Name of the company incorporation paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities
BRAARH I5EH
AR R/ HRMER ByEE AARERE BNELIRE  TERH
Guodian Longyuan Technologies USA United States USD2,000,000 23.25% - 100%  Production and sale of igniters and other
Corporation (note (i) (#:2() 3 %712,000,0007 electric equipment
BISRABSRRENEEESE
Beijing Huadian Tianren Power Controlling The PRC R\B143,823,113 90% 90% - Production and sale of variable-pitch control
Technology Co., Ltd. ek AR%143823,113 system for wind turbing

IREERCENEHRNERAR BNEERARRENZS

Guodian Longyuan Electrical Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB14,932,900 51% 51% - Production and sale of wind turbine

AEERERAR LA HE NE#14932,900 components

BABSEOEEREE
Beijing Guodian Zhishen Control Technalogy The PRC RMB53,900,000 53.15% 53.15% - Production and sale of electric power related
Co,, Lid. t AR#53,900000 products

FREEEREHRNERAA ENREBERNEERHE

Notes: Biat -

(i) Except for Guodian Technology & Environment Group Hong (i) fkGuodian Technology & Environment
Kong Corporation Limited, Guodian Longyuan Technologies USA Group Hong Kong Corporation Limited,
Corporation and Guodian United Power American LLC, the English Guodian Longyuan Technologies USA
translation of the names of other entities is for identification only. The CorporationA &z Guodian United Power
official names of these entities are in Chinese. American LLCHYZ L ZTE 2 4h + HERTE

LRERANHER A ZERARMERS
BARETE -

(i) The Group appointed and has the power to appoint the directors (i) ANTIRRSIAK - REBERIEFa T ~ X
of this company to govern the financial and operating policies of BREMDZARMNESALEZA RN
this company so as to obtain benefits from its activities since the FEEGEEHREL M BEZA TR L ES
establishment of this company. HEVEIES o

(i) ~ The Company is the biggest equity owner of this company and no (i) ANRAFEBZAFZANERIBEE  BE
other equity owners individually or in the aggregate had the power ZNTINATIER  NMEEER ek e
to control this company according to the Articles of Association. BB HIEHZ AR EMESFAEE -
Historically, the Company controlled the operation of this company EZARFESL L ARRAR@EBEGS R
by appointing senior management, approving annual budget and ERAE FEEEEHELBETEEF
determining the remuneration of employees, etc. The Company has M —HEZARNKEZ a0 R o
agreements with certain shareholders of this company, whereby such EEAVNGI AT BV /NG R AN 0P
equity owners have agreed to vote in concert with the Company since THRREZ] Tz BERSRE  tE
the establishment of this company. The PRC lawyer of the Company BRESHEAATIEE —HWEE - AA
confirmed that these agreements are valid under relevant PRC laws. TR EREEER - EREAPEREE
Considering the above mentioned factors, the directors are of the FENAEEMNH - EREIEAZE  EF2
opinion that the Company controlled this company during the years B EREERN - AAFEZAFTAES
presented. FEIE -
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Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

The following table lists out the information relating to subsidiaries
of the Group which have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”).
The summarised financial information presented below presents the
amounts before any inter-company elimination.

(BRIEREHRA - UARKETIR)
18 HBEARMNKRE(E)
Hrit o (&)
(V)  TFREAREMEAIEREROHBAT

HHEAE BT T8 - TRIMAEZE
BIESAARMRAEEHEANEHE -

Guodian United Power
Technology Co., Ltd.

Yantai Longyuan Power
Technology Co.,Ltd.

BESHEE HEMERAT EREREIREMRDERAT
2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#TFT ARHTFT ARETFTT ARETFT
NCI percentage FEPE AR A 2 LE 1 30.00% 30.00% 76.75% 76.75%
Current assets MENEE 9,741,694 13,300,100 2,430,703 2,770,077
Non-curent assets EMEBEE 1,186,010 1,277,745 373,181 395,958
Current liabilities nBEE (7,758,555) (11,422,025) (674,880) (973,248)
Non-current liabilities SERBAE (667,772) (578,844) (13,983) (20,908)
Net assets BEFHE 2,501,377 2,576,976 2,115,021 2,171,879
Carrying amount of NCI PR SR E 25 750,413 773,093 1,623,279 1,666,917
Revenue A 7,282,590 8,756,955 809,891 1,613,581
(Loss)/Profit and total NEE (Fi8) /FIE (2,826) 24,155 (36,330) 170,100
comprehensive income AR A W B
for the year
(Loss)/Profit allocated AR T IEERERR (848) 7,247 (27,883) 130,552
to NCI (E518) /FA
Dividend paid to NCI XA FIEERERFRE 10,500 - 15,756 32,824
Cash in/(out) flows from KEEENIES 972,619 1,902,743 43,931 (65,866)
operating activities wEAS ()
Cash (out)/in flows from BEEBHHES (104,236) 11,790 (100,289) (289,401)
investing activities () A
Cash (out)/in flows from BEFREHIRE (1,068,969) (1,909,142) (20,558) 39,654
financing activities o) A
2015 F£ 3§
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R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

19 Interests in associates

19 HBEELATNRE

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR ARHTTT

Share of net assets FE(REEFE 314,346 385,667
Amounts due from associates i NN /S 1,200 1,200
315,546 386,867

The following list contains only the particulars of material associates,
all of which are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market
price is not available and established in the PRC, which principally
affected the results or assets of the Group as at 31 December 2015:

TREFIE THAEE2015F12A31HH
EEREEABFEFENEABE AN
G TBEL AR ALETERENK
BME ETAR - WASZAHRE -

Proportion of ownership interest

FrEERRLA
Issued and Group’s
Place of fully paid-up effective ~ Held by the Heldby  Principal
Name of the company establishment capital interest Company subsidiaries  activities
BETARY KEEN HKE
NEER R BREMEE BYEE BEAARRE NARE  TEER
Beijing Longyuan Cooling Technology The PRC RMB50,000,000 60% 60% - Production and installation of
Co., Ltd. (note (i) HE AE%50,000,000 cooling equipment
IERER S SBIMERAR () RBRBHEENRE
Guizhou Longyuan Wongfu Environment The PRC RMB250,000,000 55% 55% - Operation of environmental
Technology Co., Ltd. (note (ii)) # AK%250,000,000 protection facilties
BIERRERRRBERAR ML) BRAEET
Guodian Longyuan Environmental The PRC RMB180,000,000 45% 45% - Operation of environmental
Taizhou Co, Ltd i AR 180,000,000 protection facilities
AERRERENERAR BRAEENT
Notes: Kiat -

(i) The English translation of the names is for identification only. The
official names of these entities are in Chinese.

(ii) According to the Articles of Association of these companies, the
resolutions in relation to material financial and operating decisions
have to be passed by three-fourth of directors. As the Company
only has rights to appoint less than three-fourth of directors of these
companies, the Company does not have power to control the financial
and operating policies of these companies although the Company
owns more than half of equity interests and voting power in these
companies.

2015 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*

() ARANEXERERBHZH  BLR
B IER BT R CETE o

_I

(i)  REZFATNAFER  BRERME
REERRORBREND Z —WESA
B ARARBBAEREDZERR IR
Moz =MEE ARBERARHEZ
ERFBFENRERD RRORE - AARYH
ZEREIE L EBR BB EGIE -



19

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR M sk (&)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BIEBEHA - UARKTIR)
19 HEEQRMNERE(E)
BAMBRRNHERGIEL(CRERE

BORMERE(T TR  WABEAEE
BENEELR) RENT

Interests in associates (continued)

Summarised financial information of the material associates,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled
to the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed below:

Guizhou Longyuan Wongfu
Beijing Longyuan Cooling Environment Technology Guodian Longyuan
Technology Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. Environmental Taizhou Co., Ltd.
TRERLBEMERAT  ENERERERNEERAT HEERERENERAF
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFL  AREFT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFLT  AREFI
Gross amounts of the associates: BENRSE:
Current assets nYEE 547,576 508,278 107,429 113,320 141,196 180,499
Non-current assets ERBEE 89,459 103,183 1,230,347 1,168,233 301,162 182,148
Current liabilities REYERE (472,305) (463,530) (1,373,634) (1,031,553) (96,295) (242,387)
Non-current liabilities FnBak (23,929) (22,766) - - (171,500) -
Equity s 140,801 125,165 (35,858) 250,000 264,563 120,260
Revenue WA 413,439 609,169 104,358 - 221,529 144,187
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive REEFIE/(BB)E 15,636 10,612 (285,858) - 82,534 20,257
income for the year GalineE
Dividend received from the associates BElEE AR RE - 29,171 - - 8,204 -
Reconciled to the Group’s interests FHEAEENEE
in the associates: RAIMERE -
Gross amounts of net assets of the BENRFEERE 140,801 125,165 (35,858) 250,000 264,563 120,260
associates
Group's effective interest 60% 60% 55% 55% 45% 45%
Group's share of net assets/(accumulated 84,481 75,099 (19,722) 137,500 119,053 54,117
losses) of the associates * é‘F/ 2EER)
Unrecognised share of losses FEZRER - - 19,722 - - -
Elimination of unrealised profits on JEFR HARBRFE - - - - (9,429) -
downstream sales igpigt
84,481 75,099 - 137,500 109,624 54117
Carrying amount in the consolidated RAPEBBRER 84,481 75,099 - 137,500 109,624 54,117
financial statements FEeE
2015 F3§
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D
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(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

19

20

Interests in associates (continued)

19

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually

material:

HBRENRANRKRE ()

ERIZEERBE ARISFTEREER -

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREFT
Aggregate carrying amount of individually — 7EA HE SR P ERIFEE AR S D 120,241 118,951
immaterial associates in the consolidated AMEFTIRE SR
financial statements
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of  ZN£E B fE (5 1 B4 A 7
those associates VEET R
(Loss)/profit (E518), /%8 (49,683) 5,829
Other comprehensive income HEira e - -
Total comprehensive income A RS s (49,683) 5,829

Three associates of the Group are loss making and the Group’s
share of the accumulated losses of those associates has exceeded
its interest in the associates. In accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2(f), the Group discontinued to recognise its
share of losses of the associates. The current year unrecognised
share of losses of associates equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate is RMB44,311,000 (2014: RMB14,119,000). The
accumulated unrecognised share of losses of an associate as
at the end of the reporting period is RMB101,604,000 (2014:

RMB57,293,000).

AEE=XE AR B AEREBERE - K
SEEGZBEARNZEBIECBALSE
B8z E QR E o RIEME2(HH 5
AEOEEHEER - AEE D T HEEREL %
EARRHEBENE RFEEHZBEA
AR R ERE BN ER B ERN 2 E
NEMREN A AREE44,311,0007T
(20144 : AR¥14,119,0007T) ° RRE
HIR R 8B 2 QR R ERE BN E
B AR¥101,604,0007C (20144 + AREE
57,293,0007T) ©

Other equity investments 20 HitEmRE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARETFT
Unlisted equity securities, at cost FEETRERES IR AGTE 162,187 162,187

2015 ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B ISR I (48)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEREHRA - UARKETIR)

Other non-current assets

21 HtERBHEE

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFT
Long-term trade receivables RHAEUERSR « (A722())
due from: (note (i))
—related parties under Guodian — BT T B R R 699,834 777,991
—third parties —%=7 176,098 178,973
Less: current portion of long-term trade & : R HERFEUKHBIERSR (5 (183,940) (174,725)
receivables
691,992 782,239
Long-term service concession receivables — FEURE =5 REE R 1,163,374 1,165,472
due from third parties (note (ii)) FEMRIE (K22 (i)
Less: current portion of long-term service i : RS R E R I
concession receivables FRIE BN ERER(D (41,699) (87,888)
1,121,675 1,127,584
Long-term retention receivables RHEEBWERSFIE - (M772(i)
due from: (note (iii))
—related parties under Guodian —BEE T BRI 295,169 190,306
—third parties —$E=75 2,373,701 1,991,902
2,668,870 2,182,208
Long-term loans to third parties (note (iv)) B =SOEMERAMZW) 14407 14930
Non-current financial assets RS EREE 4,496,944 4,106,961
Long-term prepayments REAFERIER 9,123 11,507
Deductible VAT (note (v)) AHRFEER (A2 (v)) 348,347 536,308
4,854,414 4,654,776
2015 F£ 3§ 211
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21

22

Notes:

@

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Inve

(C)

Other non-current assets (continued) 21 HkEREBEE(E)
Hist -
Long-term trade receivables represent trade receivables of certain (i) RHEEWERFUEES-sF RS HIEN S
construction contracts which are repayable by instalments over a 3 to FiREARIE FHOEUEESR -
8-year period.
Long-term service concession receivables due from third parties (i) FEULEE = 7 BRIS R 7 8 = HA B W sk 1B 45 B
represent the amounts contractually and unconditionally receivable in BEHEE T TNEERSHB AT R
connection with construction services under concession arrangements AR FEIEIE (Bt 5E42) ©
(note 42).
Long-term retention receivables represent retentions of sales of wind (i) FRHEKERSIEEEREAMZEBK
turbines which will be received when the retention period elapses. ERRNEIEESRESFRIA -
A loan to third party represents an unsecured interest-free loan which is (iv) RELKFE=FTNENRBEROTHIE
repayable by instalments from 2015 to 2034. R HEEFER2015F E20344F 5 HifE
2o
Deductible VAT represents the input VAT in excess of output VAT. Input (v)  AIEIIEER IR AR BE g E
VAT is recognised for the purchase of manufacturing raw materials FEED - EIEERNEBELEERRM
and components and acquisitions of machinery and equipment used REFIED DA T 8 B 40 & A B R e i I T
for operation. Input VAT will be deductible from output VAT payable for R EIBREMUNREEEELEEYE
goods to be sold in subsequent years. AT RS IEISER R -
As at 31 December 2015, deductible VAT amounting to HZE2015F12H31H @ @@stE AR
RMB221,680,000 is related to the discontinued operation as disclosed 221,680,0007T &) AT 4 HE B T B 2 4% 1F
in note 11. As the Group is not expected to generate output VAT CEEBER - RN - AREETER
against which the deductible VAT can be offset from the discontinued HE RS SIS IR E A TR ER
operation, the deductible VAT has been fully written down during the IR R IEIIEET - F L E E2015512
year ended 31 December 2015. A318 - AIEMgERE LT 2 HE -
All non-current financial assets of the Group are neither past due nor (vi) AEEXEETRBCREERMKEGH -
impaired. TRAREARIE -
As at 31 December 2015, long-term service concession receivables (viiy  EZE2015F12A318 + AESRITERIE
of the Group amounting to RMB781,915,000 (2014: RMB547,486,000) BIRFRYETERNRG S ERIREY
was pledged as collateral for bank loans (see note 28). FARMET81,915,0007T (20145 : AR
547,486,0007t) (R FI7E28) -
ntories 22 7FE
Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial (a) BGHEMBRRRINEESSE
position comprises:
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARBTFT
Raw materials FEA R 607,748 1,215,392
Work in progress EEM 384,072 1,062,019
Finished goods EERK i 2,499,037 2,221,754
Spare parts 15 1,523 4,802
3,492,380 4,503,967
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22 Inventories (continued) 22 FE(#E)
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as (b) EEHEBERZRRTEIRBEBANEE
an expense and included in the consolidated statement SHEWT :

of financial position is as follows:

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFT
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHFENETDSE 8,307,617 10,505,555
Write down of inventories FEMOR 68,849 29,181
8,376,466 10,534,736
23 Gross amounts due from/to customers for 23 YW EAEESRAEFEFNREA
contract work )
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT AREFT
Contract costs incurred plus recognised EEPREARBELEARKAM 27,231,340 29,590,915
profits less recognised losses in connection B FERFER 2 AR BLL
with construction contracts in progress
Less: progress billings o TREER (26,002,170) (27,377,843)
1,229,170 2,213,072
Gross amounts due from customers for FEYGEEA RRE R IBEEE 2,204,619 3,486,111
contract work (notes (ii) and (iii)) (B a2 (i) £2 (i)
Gross amounts due to customers for contract  [EffiEEA R T RIELAEE (975,449) (1,273,039)
work (note (iv)) (Hiz#(iv))
1,229,170 2,213,072
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(BRIEREHB - UARBFIR)

23 Gross amounts due from/to customers for
contract work (continued)

Notes:

(i) Gross amounts due from customers for contract work represent
unbilled revenue for contract work and are presented as assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Gross amounts due to
customers for contract work represent the amounts billed in advance
of the contract work delivered and are presented as liabilities in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

(ii) The gross amounts due from customers for contract work of the Group
include amounts of RMB1,549,516,000 (2014: RMB2,748,184,000) due

from related parties under Guodian.

(i) As at 31 December 2015, except for amounts of RMB92,939,000 (2014:
RMB123,375,000) which are payable to the Group after the retention
period of construction contracts, all of the remaining gross amounts
due from customers for contract work of the Group are expected to be

recovered within one year.

(iv)  Included in the gross amounts due to customers for contract work are
amounts of RMB533,401,000 (2014: RMB758,636,000) due to related

parties under Guodian.
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23 W ENREAREFREA

(if)

(iii)

")

(&

EUCEESREP RBEEEESRITIZE
TARBREMNWA - EAGFHBRIES
JIREE - BRNBESRTPRIREEE
EERFESHESNETKIENEHE &
MIERRARAFIREE -

AEEENZEEARTPNBRERE
EHEETBENER KRR EAR
#%1,549,516,000 7T (2014 F : A R ¥
2,748,184,0007T) °

R2015F12831H - BE&EARIBE
THERBARZEENERAEEH A
R % 92,939,000 7t (2014 FF : AR ¥
123,375,00070) 2 5h + AEEENZES
FRFFIEBENAERBIRR - Batig
E—FzRKE -

BIELTENREARBTPRBRAEZNAN
WESNGERETBOHERTNKEA
AR #533,401,0007C (2014 F : ARME
758,636,0007T) °
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24 Trade and bills receivables

24 FEWERFRER

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FT ARMTIT
Trade receivables for contract work due from: AR IIEHEWERR
—Guodian —FE 12,783 91,723
—related parties under Guodian —BIE T B A 1,808,442 2,612,109
—associates VNG 16,856 6,039
—third parties —$=7 3,693,833 5,055,557
5,531,914 7,765,428
Bills receivable for contract work due from: élﬁlﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁ%”ﬂl%fi :
—related parties under Guodian B E T A RS 1,122,609 1,287,553
—associates — Hﬁ%%’*’& 500 -
—third parties —$E=75 512,383 384,236
1,635,492 1,671,789
Trade receivables for operating LETRE R EIER -
leases due from:
—related parties under Guodian —RE BRI 237,388 370,193
—third parties —%=H 44,989 15,924
282,377 386,117
Trade receivables for sale of goods and 465 P on R SR AR O PR LR K
rendering of services due from: (note (ii)) (HaE(i)
—Guodian —EE 1,426 4,469
—related parties under Guodian —HETEBMNEES 1,490,780 2,597,080
—associates — B A T] 26,807 3,322
—third parties —%=5 5,580,538 7,976,821
7,099,551 10,581,692
Bills receivable for sale of goods and HE R MR IRHARIS H B
rendering of services due from:
—related parties under Guodian BB 483,263 495,283
—associates —Hﬁ”’*”‘ - 31,199
—third parties —$E=75 1,186,763 1,008,251
1,670,026 1,534,733
16,219,360 21,939,759
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W REERRBE (2,306,664) (268,386)
13,912,696 21,671,373
2015 £
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24 Trade and bills receivables (continued)
Notes:

(i) Trade and bills receivables of the Group include bills discounted
to banks or endorsed to suppliers and factored trade receivables
with recourse totalling RMB273,891,000 (2014: RMB856,710,000).
These receivables were not derecognised as the Group remains
exposed to the credit risk of these receivables. The carrying amount
of the associated bank loans and trade payables amounted to
RMB273,891,000 (2014: RMB834,239,000). As at 31 December 2015,
the fair value of the transferred assets and the associated liabilities
is the same as their carrying amount, with the net position of RMB Nil
(2014: RMB22,471,000).

(ii) As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of the Group amounting to
RMB342,300,000 (2014: RMB192,960,000) were pledged as collateral
for interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (see note 28).

All trade and bills receivables (net of impairment losses for doubtful
debts) of the Group are expected to be recovered within one year.

24 RUIRIRERE(E)

Mt -

0]

(if)

AEBEMRKERRZEEWBAR
TREEERLHEEINER - UK
HERBNERERRE  BEAA
R ¥ 273,891,000 7T (2014 4F : AR
856,710,000 7T ) ° i= L fE U BR 3% fn 2=
BARWHIEHER  AAASEDYHEL
BREFMNZEAEGEARAR - 54
RTERMENERNEASEAA
R ¥ 273,891,000 7T (2014 F : AR
834,239,0007T) ° 201512310 &
REEMAABERBEBAREEERES
EHR - FEBEAARBETIC(20144F -
ANR¥22,471,0007T) °

R2015F 128318 » AEBEALER
TREAMEFTFEYmME RO EKERA
AR ¥342,300,0007T (2014 4F : AR¥
192,960,0007T ) ( R Ff5E28) °

R BT A FE YRR R R (FIBR R IE AR Y
REER) BN —FZAKE -

(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRERDHT
As end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade RWERKR - REEERFAYIERA
and bills receivables, based on invoice date (or date of H e FE YRR 30 I 245 (HNBR R AR
revenue recognition, if earlier) and net of allowance for HBRE ST -
doubtful debts of the Group is as follows:
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Within 1 year 1R 10,392,683 19,032,456
Between 1to 2 years 1E2FR 3,091,777 2,270,952
Between 2 to 3 years 2E3FN 357,024 255,303
Over 3 years 3FLA L 71,212 112,662
13,912,696 21,671,373
Trade receivables are required to be settled in accordance YR FIRBARGRER - —RTRER
with contracted terms and are generally due immediately PREAP A BB =5 B BDEIEE o B A S
without credit upon the issuance of invoice. Further details on Bz BRI MR - 2R ME36(a)

the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 36(a).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

24 Trade and bills receivables (continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills receivables
are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against trade and bills
receivables directly (see note 2(m)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year, including both specific and collective loss components, is
as follows:

(BRIESBHA - UARKETITR)

24 EBUWRMRRE(E)

(b)

FE W AR & R 0B (E

FEUBR 51 R IR AR BRI B A
BER  BRIEAEERBET TR
WERZHIE - EUIEFE 2T - BIER
7% 1Lt 55 U B R % SR 4R B (B S 1R R
(R FE2(m)()) °

AEZERMERNRFRBENE
BT

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT ARMTFT

At 1 January »1A1H 268,386 182,958
Impairment losses recognised ERAREEE 2,048,837 124,268
Reversal of impairment losses FEEIEE D (6,371) (37,842)
Uncollectible amounts written-off TR Y B FRTE (2,775) (998)
Disposal of a subsidiary HEH B AR (1,413) -
At 31 December »12HA31H 2,306,664 268,386

The Group’s trade and bills receivables of RMB3,068,865,000
(2014: RMBA470,463,000) were individually determined to
be impaired. The individually impaired receivables primarily
related to customers from the discontinued solar power
products and services segment who have unsatisfactory track
records of repayment. Management decided to discontinue
the business relationships with these customers and expected
the receivables from these customers cannot be fully
recovered. The remaining individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial difficulties and
management assessed that the receivables are expected
to be unrecoverable. Consequently, specific allowances for
doubtful debts of RMB1,775,126,000 (2014: RMB34,923,000)
from the discontinued solar power products and services
segment and RMB232,137,000 (2014: RMB63,101,000) from
other segments were recognised by the Group.

RNEEE ERFTE A RERN EYRER
AR EE B AR 3,068,865,0007T
(20144 : AR#470,463,0007T) °
ERERKEREZHRERIELEEDN
AGHEERMRES>BHFEETRE
BN ER - EEERERL
HELREMEBRBE - BIEFHEE
R FEFh 2B EKER -
H R [E 515 B FE W AR R BT A
HORFPAER  EREEMTELRE
FEURBR FIE ARG AR E - AL - A
BB MR B AR LA B K 5 RE EE M AN
BR7% o E ) A K% 1,775,126,000 7T
(20144 : AR #¥34,923,0007T) M
N H b5 259 A R 232,137,000 7T
(20144 : AR%63,101,0007T) B4
TERREME -

2015 F£ 3§
EERERREERAGERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEREHB - UARBFIR)

24 Trade and bills receivables (continued) 24
(c) Trade and bills receivables that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that are

neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
are as follows:

PR Rk I R 4% ()
(c) ESMImLE MR R R

BRI EE R M = B R R EIR(E R
JEUBR MM E R ARE D ATAN T

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR AEBTTT

Neither past due nor impaired BL AR B MR E 3,531,157 3,452,669
Within 1 year 1FR 6,618,217 14,953,119
Between 1 to 2 years 1224 2,415,545 2,238,159
Between 2 to 3 years 2FE3F 325,495 200,123
Over 3 years 3FEM F 50,970 40,380
... 9,410,227 17,431,781
12,941,384 20,884,450

Aged receivables that were not impaired relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there were no recent history of
default and have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

25 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESBHA - UARKETITR)

25 B ANREREMBERRER

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARMETFT
Prepayments to sub-contractors (note (i) XE D BEETER KA )
—related parties under Guodian —BE T E R 16,324 17,962
—third parties —$£=7 551,446 1,100,596
Prepayments for purchase of inventories REFENFERR
—related parties under Guodian —EE T B 317 851
—third parties —%=7 468,909 830,500
Deposits for construction contracts’ BEEERNRESRED
bidding or performance (note (ii)) 4%55/1\(%&(//))
—related parties under Guodian ETNEMBEH 61,681 110,288
—third parties *%_7‘5 119,104 120,276
Other deposits Hihiz s 8,466 8,335
Advances to staff KB THER 25,917 20,026
Advances to Eal N
—associates (note (iii) =N ) 852,363 460,287
—third parties —%=7 30,070 14,157
Interest receivables EF B8
—associates VNG 115,841 80,585
—third parties —$£=7 9,860 19,961
Dividends receivables fEU R B B
—related parties under Guodian —EE T B - 3,500
Consideration receivable from a related FEWEE NEMEE R HE 100,000 100,000
party under Guodian for the disposal N s OF 2
of an associate
Consideration receivable for the disposal of EWHEME  WE N REHTE
property, plant and equipment
—associate . NG 273,747 205,745
—third parties —%=7 53,742 103,742
Compensation receivables FEUL BEE TR 131,998 141,152
Others Hih 73,758 64,691
2,893,543 3,402,654
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RIZERREME (473,702) (19,332)
2,419,841 3,383,322
2015 E3#§
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

25 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
(continued)

Notes:

(i) The balances represent prepayments to the sub-contractors in
connection with the Group’s construction contracts. The prepayments
will be settled upon the delivery of goods and services by the
sub-contractors.

(ii) The balances represent deposits placed with customers for contracts
bidding or performance of contracts in progress. The deposits will be
released to the Group upon the completion of the related bidding or
contract work, where applicable.

(i)~ Advances to associates of RMB591,854,000 (2014: RMB459,388,000)
as at 31 December 2015 are unsecured, bear interest from 4.35% to
6.60% (2014: from 6.00% to 6.60%) per annum, and are repayable
with one year.

All other advances to associates are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

Impairment of deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Impairment of deposits, prepayments and other receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against deposits, prepayments and other
receivables directly (note 2(m)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful accounts
during the year, including both specific and collective loss
components, is as follows:

25 ?ﬁ;ﬁs - EA AR 2 AR KRR

Mt -

() HFEERENARENZESRMAD R
AXNOENR - 2 EEXNEYRRE
2% AISHENREE -

(i)  FFEERANEFIRERERBOM N
REPHRESD - HHERBERARTRES
Tzt ZRESAGRELAEH -

(i) M20159F 128318 » KL RAIN®
AARM591,854,0007T (20144 © AR
#459,388,0007T ) © FE R B4.35% %
6.60% (20144 : 6.00% £ 6.60%) ' K
B BERE—FREE

BRittzoh - FRE b E AR MR
FIGEAER TR EREE k2R
BIRESI B o

2%  BAREREMGERTRNRE

Bme  FANIRN KA R IRAR AR
ABER - BRIFREERAET TR sl
ZHE R ZT - MERETER
& - BNFOR R EMEERIRERER R
5 (CRMEE2(m)(0)) °

AEEERIFMERRRRBEOREIT

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARK T ARETTT

At 1 January ®1A1H 19,332 5,645
Impairment losses recognised ERR R EEE 456,787 14,389
Reversal of impairment losses BEEEED (239) (702)
Uncollectible amounts written off BN S BRI 8E (127) -
Disposal of a subsidiary HEHREBRR (2,051) -
At 31 December ®12A31H 473,702 19,332
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESBHA - UARKETITR)

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 25 Ze - AARERHEMERRKE
(continued) (#&)
The Group’s deposits, prepayments and other receivables of RNREFEBEARTEAEBENES - AN
RMB1,155,354,000 (2014: RMB7,372,000) were individually A K el IE A AR EE1,155,354,0007T
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired receivables (20144 : 7,372,00070) ° #&FE AE RE
included receivables from a few debtors whose operation and Y JFE S 0T B0 FE FE U — L 2 FE AN BA RS AR 3
financial condition continued to deteriorate and management BRICNERH  EEENERAEZEK
assessed that the recoverability of the receivables is doubtful. FIER B AEE THEEN - Bt - A&
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts of BT RIBREE T AR 456,745,0007T
RMB456,745,000 (2014: RMB5,704,000) were recognised by the (20144 : 5,704,0007T) °
Group.
For other balances of deposits, prepayments and other receivables, RN EfMize « T FRIE L E W EE
management is of the opinion that the counterparties are with good EEERE  HHEABROMNEHEE It
credit quality and the balances are considered fully recoverable. e - BN FEREAMEBKRFIER AT S
eI
Restricted deposits 26 ZREIFX
Restricted deposits mainly represent guarantee deposits, cash ZRETFTREZRRESTH - BHEEMN
pledged as collateral for bills payable and loans and blocked ERREIRR S U RRETR « RBREK
deposits. Majority of these restricted deposits are expected to be LIEEE KRB E MmN ARIS 2 3R R LLBF 7
released within one year except for RMB25,403,000 (2014: RMB Mm% 2 9 B AR AT R AR 25,403,000
Nil), which was reclassified as blocked deposits for certain litigations TL(20144F « B)LASM - ZERBHIFHTE
from discontinued solar power products and services segment. et —FRNERES o
Cash at bank and in hand 27 BITERREERS
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Cash in hand BEFRE 308 319
Cash at bank RITIFRR 2,028,918 1,855,092
Cash at other financial institution H i & R IE T K 1,040,543 1,269,396
3,069,769 3,124,807
Representing: B
—cash and cash equivalents — e EREEEY 2,325,469 2,456,107
—deposits with banks over three —REIEB =@ AU LR 744,300 668,700
months of original maturity RITER
3,069,769 3,124,807
2015 E3#§
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

28 Borrowings

(a)

28 &

The long-term interest-bearing borrowings comprise: (a) REBEE/REHE:
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBETFT
Bank loans RITER
- secured (notes (i) and (iv)) — () R (iv) 928,339 1,387,440
— unsecured — K 881,671 2,176,630
Other loans from third parties (secured) KB = FHE b E R () 54,536 68,037
Private placement notes LAREEHRETLA 996,908 -
(unsecured) (note (iii)) () (a2 dii))
Corporate bonds (note (ii)) RNEMESH (I a2) 2,838,529 4,055,645
5,699,983 7,687,752
Less: current portion of long-term W REMERE B ER R D (907,309) (2,601,018)
borrowings
4,792,674 5,086,734
Notes: Bt

(i)

Secured long-term interest-bearing borrowings as at 31
December 2015 were guaranteed and/or secured by concession
assets (note 16), trade and bills receivables (note 24) and
long-term service concession receivables (note 21). Secured
long-term interest-bearing borrowings as at 31 December 2014
were guaranteed and/or secured by concession assets (note
16), trade and bills receivables (note 24), long-term service
concession receivables (note 21) and income stream of certain
subsidiaries.

In August 2012, the Company issued corporate bonds of
RMB4,000,000,000, which comprise 3-year corporate bonds
of RMB1,200,000,000 issued at par and with a coupon rate of
4.30% per annum, 5-year corporate bonds of RMB800,000,000
issued at par and with a coupon rate of 4.65% per annum and
10-year corporate bonds of RMB2,000,000,000 issued at par
and with a coupon rate of 5.15% per annum. All corporate
bonds are guaranteed by Guodian. The effective interest
rates of the bonds are 4.52%, 4.85% and 5.24% per annum
respectively. The Company repaid the 3-year corporate bonds
of RMB1,200,000,000 in August 2015.
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R2015F12A318 » RN EHE
BERAZERRESAFTEE
A E(ME16) - BUREREEE
(PH5E24 ) 70 Uit AR 745 45 7 fRE = HA e
WeakaE (M sE21 ) AR o 7R2014412
A318 - EHENEHEEERAS
BRE SR g e E (T
16) « EUWERR R & (HeE24) -
FEU AR5 1F A4 R B R R TB (PR =
21) KB TFHIE AR 2 W BRI o

R20126 8 « ARRIEITAGE
# AR #4,000,000,0007T © BIEE
HEZITH=FHRREFARE
1,200,000,000 7T + ZEHEF FI X 5
4.30% : REBEFETHAFHEAR
&% AR ¥:800,000,0007C © Z=M®
FEFRABL65% : IHEEZEITHT
FHIN R)EH AR 2,000,000,000
JCc BEFEFMEAE515% - TR
AIEFHEEER HEEBEHFD
BERFRED R A452% - 4.85%
K 5.24% - R AEIEE2015F 8 A
TEET=-FHRARBELSARE
1,200,000,0007T °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BT ISR P o (A8
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEREHRA - UARKETIR)

28 Borrowings (continued)

C)

(b)

28 fER(E)

The long-term interest-bearing borrowings comprise: (a) RETEEREE: (&)

(continued)

Notes: (continued) Mt - (&)

(i) In November 2015, the Company issued the first tranche (i) PA2015F 11 A » RRARIEITTH—
of private placement notes with total face value of HEE 45 3 AR #1,000,000,000
RMB1,000,000,000. The coupon rate and effective interest rate HWIARREEARETRE - EZF
are 4.30% and 4.62% per annum respectively. The private notes F 2= F0 A B 2 5 Bl & 4.30% 0
have the maturity period of three year and were unsecured and 462% - IR A=F » BER I
issued at par. REEET ©

(iv)  As at 31 December 2015, two bank loans of the Group totalling (iv) #HZE2015F12A31H ' BE A
RMB600,000,000 (2014: RMB750,000,000) are guaranteed by REEMEBRITERATARE
Guodian. 600,000,000 7% (2014 % : A R

750,000,0007C ) R HELR -

The short-term interest-bearing borrowings comprise: (b) REHHBEEREE:

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARYFT ARETFT
Bank loans RITE X
—secured (note (i) — IR A L)) 553,011 311,100
—unsecured — EA A 8,610,000 8,745,500
Other loans HiE®
—Guodian (unsecured) —BE (EER) 300,000 65,080
—related parties under Guodian —BIE B
—secured (note (i) — IR () - 300,000
—unsecured —EK R 379,397 60,000
Private placement notes FLABEEBHRMETA - 1,373,438
(unsecured) (note (ii)) () (H33(i))
Current portion of long-term borrowings = B{& k&I BN EA ZB1 907,309 2,601,018
10,749,717 13,456,136
2015 £
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

28 Borrowings (continued)

(c)

28 fER(E)

(b) The short-term interest-bearing borrowings comprise: (b) EHEEEREE: (#)

(continued)

Notes: Kiat -

0) Secured short-term interest-bearing borrowings as at 31 0) 20156128318 IR ERS
December 2015 were guaranteed and/or secured by trade and BERAZERR kA B ERR
bills receivables (note 24). Secured short-term interest-bearing NV (Mi7E24) EHEIR o 1R20144F
borrowings as at 31 December 2014 were guaranteed and/or 127318 - HRNE BT 2ERR
secured by income stream of certain subsidiaries and trade and SRR HAS THIE A A& Uk
bills receivables (note 24). B BRERERRER(HE24)1E

i o

(i) ~ The Company issued the first and second tranche of private (iy  ARFDBIR20145F6 AF120144F
placement notes with face value of RMB750,000,000 TMAZITTE—SHME LA
and RMB600,000,000 in June 2014 and November 2014 REEBRETE  @FEEBEED
respectively. Both tranches have the maturity period of one Al & A KM 750,000,000 T A K
year and were unsecured and issued at par. The coupon rate #600,000,0007T ° &M HAB LA
and effective interest rate are 5.30% and 5.62% per annum ElEEBRE TAR MR A —
respectively for the first tranche of private placement notes and FEER REREEET - F
are 4.55% and 4.86% per annum respectively for the second —HAAREEHEHE TANFE
tranche of private placement notes. The Company repaid the ZEMEMERFES 5 /55.30%
first and second tranches of private placement notes in June M5.62% + EZEAFL AR EEH A
and November 2015 respectively. BATENFEZENEMERFX

DR 54.55%FN4.86% ° NAAIE
E2015F6 AR ARRIERETE
—HIME AR EEHRET
A

The interest rates per annum on borrowings are as (c) MEREFMRMT :

follows:

2015 2014

Long-term RH

Bank loans RITER 4.90%~7.38%  4.82%~7.81%

Other loans HinER 4.75%~6.40% 7.07%

Private placement notes AREEHRETA 4.30% -

Corporate bonds NEIES 4.65%~5.15%  4.30%~5.15%

Short-term FEH

Bank loans RITER 3.92%~6.24%  4.80%~7.22%

Other loans H &R 3.00%~8.00%  3.75%~5.80%

Private placement notes LAREEBMETLR - 4.55%~5.30%

2015 ANNUAL REPORT
Guodian Technology & Environment Group Corporation Limited*



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expr

28 Borrowings (continued)

(d) The long-term borrowings are repayable as follows:

AR M sk (&)
essed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BRIESZEHA - UAREIITR)

28 fER(#&)

(d) REEFERBRMOT

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT

Within 1 year or on demand 1F ek Bk B8 K 907,309 2,601,018
After 1 year but within 2 years 1F A H{E2F AR 380,414 983,055
After 2 years but within 5 years 2 LA MBS LA 2,728,347 2,269,383
After 5 years 5% LA 1,683,913 1,834,296

5,699,983 7,687,752

29 Trade and bills payables

29 EBARIRRREE

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTFT AR TT

Bills payable to: JERERIE -
— sub-contractors and equipment suppliers — D BEREREEER 235,437 36,521
— raw material suppliers — R E R 3,091,999 4,604,905
3,327,436 4,641,426
Trade payables to: FEITERX
— sub-contractors and equipment suppliers:  — 2D BER LKEHEHER :
—related parties under Guodian —EE BRI 162,924 83,946
— associates /N 5,485 5,571
— third parties —%=% 5,165,357 6,182,116
5,333,766 6,271,633
—raw material suppliers: — B EHE SR -
— related parties under Guodian —BEE B 44,992 121,431
— associates oI /NE] 9,462 2,215
— third parties —F= 4,306,061 7,128,865
. 4,360,515  7,252511
13,021,717 18,165,570

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, all trade and bills payables of
the Group are repayable on demand except for bills payable which
are repayable within 6 months. All trade and bills payables are
expected to be settled within one year.

20154 2014512 A31H - B R61E A
WIEEEBMENER 2N  NEENFRERE
BRI IR FEAT ¥ 77 BRI BB - 78
STRTE MRS EEBRSE—F2NES °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEREHB - UARBFIR)

30 Other payables 30 HfnEMARIE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Interest payables FERTFILE
—Guodian —EE 697 97
—related parties under Guodian —BE N B 139 1,155
—third parties —%=7 17,910 24,181
Payables for staff related costs JEfT 8 THRAERIR A 89,935 82,810
Payables for other taxes e B At B TE 164,945 244,342
Payables for acquisition of property, BEYE  WERREUAR
plant and equipment and land use rights b fF FR A A FE AN FR0E
—related parties under Guodian —BEE T B R 13,492 -
—third parties —%£=7 544,345 634,299
Deposits from sub-contractors (note (i) DEREZ RS (M) 241,592 330,388
Retention payables (note (ii)) FEHE (R & FIE (M)
—related parties under Guodian —BIE T 8B 8 49,505 -
—third parties —%=7 621,474 145,172
Advances from (note (iii)) IR £ i)
—related parties under Guodian —BIE T 8B 8 - 527,363
—third parties —%=7 138,000 138,000
Dividends payables FEAT AR 2
—third parties —%=7 17,169 29,633
Other accruals and payables HEmiaiR S Fa B RIR
—Guodian —EHE 2,180 2,195
—related parties under Guodian —BIE B 21,935 12,003
—associates — BN T 55,934 45,092
—third parties —%B=H 182,996 119,313
Financial liabilities SEAE 2,162,248 2,336,043
Receipts in advance (note (iv)) TEWGERIE (BTt (iv))
—related parties under Guodian — BB T B R 832,719 1,335,404
—associates =N - 238
—third parties - =V 770,086 1,065,469
1,602,805 2,401,111
3,765,053 4,737,154
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

30 Other payables (continued)

31

Notes:

(0]

(it)

(iii)

(iv)

All of
recog

Inco

The balances represent deposits from sub-contractors for contract
bidding. The deposits will be released to sub-contractors upon the
completion of the related bidding.

Retention payables represent the amounts due to equipment and
construction contractors which will be settled upon the expiry of the
warranty period.

All amounts are interest-free, unsecured and have no fixed terms
of repayment except for amounts totalling RMB 118,000,000 (2014:
RMB118,000,000) as at 31 December 2015 which bear interest rates
ranging from 4.75% to 6.00% (2014: 3.75% to 6.00%) per annum.

Included in the balances are amounts of RMB10,500,000 (2014:
RMB2,720,000) advances received from customers for which the
related construction works have not commenced as at the end of
reporting period.

the other payables of the Group are expected to be settled or
nised as income within one year or are repayable on demand.

me tax in the consolidated statement of

financial position

(@

Tax payable/(recoverable) in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents:

30

31

(BRIESBHA - UARKETITR)

H v fE 7R ()

Bet

(M)

(ii)

(i)

ZAREER A RREED BRRES
T o MBERRERZE  REKELS
BE -

%
ﬁj\

BNEREFIREREMB 2% - AIEN
fa R AR Mt TR FOE -

%2015 12 A1 BE R KR B475F
6.00% (2014 F : 3.75F6.00% ) B A
R % 118,000,000 7T (2014 4F : AR ¥
118,000,0007T ) Z 51 + Fi B RIBHE T
B IR E R EERE -

ZREREARBEPRIBARKE
10,500,0007C (20144 : A R¥#2 720,000
JO)TEMGEIE - RIREHR - REEETR
MART °

R AEER B EMEMARIERR —F 2R
IBRIER RN - SIRHERZ RIENZ AT -

SO BN R TSR

(@)

B BHRRRPES (TRE)
FIE :

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETFT ARMTFT
Net tax payable at 1 January A1 B ERTRIE F R 17,731 66,949
Provision for the year (note 8(a)) REERBE(H58(a)) 194,332 223,492
Over-provision in respect AT E R BT (A7518(a)) (3,443) (5,901)
of prior year (note 8(a))
Income tax paid BUREFTSRE (205,529) (266,809)
Net tax payable at 31 December W12 831 HERBIEF5E 3,091 17,731
Representing: BIE
Tax payable JEITFS T 63,600 101,435
Tax recoverable AT [E FEIE (60,509) (83,704)
3,091 17,731
2015 F3§
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

31 Income tax in the consolidated statement of 31 SO MRRRPOFER (E)
financial position (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERAMECHEEERER:
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised AHFEMRRRFPERNELETIEE
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the E/(AB)UREREENEIER
movements during the year are as follows: PN

Unrealised
Provision for profits on
impairment Tax intra-group Deferred ~ Provision  Intangible
of assets losses  transactions income  for warranty assets Others Total
EEnE
RAFER

REHERE  HERR AR ERhe HRSAR  BREE it aif
RVBOOO  AMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  AMBOOO  AMBOOO  AMBOOD  RMBOOD

(note (i) (note (ii))
ARETE  ARETT ARETT ARETR AEKTT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
() ()

At 1January 2014 42,008 83,113 23,328 51674 149,163 (108,092) 46,893 288,121

HoouEI 18

Acquisition of control over an associate 5824 - - 1588 7,904 - (10232) 5,084

DERELFIEHE

Credited(charged) to profit or loss (note 8(a)) 16,308 15,996 18,381 (3.641) (58,234) (10279) 43418 21,949

iA/ (R &g

At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 64,140 99,109 41,709 49,621 98,633 (118,331) 80,079 315,160

120145128318 k2015511 E

Credited)(charged) to profit or loss (nofe 8(a)) 97,264 (70,636) (3,645) (2,975) 7,963 (5,193) (52,513) (29,735)

itA/ () BaHige)

At 31 December 2015 161,404 28473 38,064 46,646 106,796 (123,524) 27,566 205,425

Ho015512A31A

Notes: Bzt -

(i) Deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses are related (i) R RN B A RN IBEIBE
to subsidiaries that were established in recent years. They HERBIETRIBEE » BT FE LT
are now progressing to their normal production stage and are HMRBATERE BB ATE
deriving profits. Accordingly, it is considered probable that B IEFE 2 AL IE 8 30 B 04 B A= 7
sufficient taxable profits will be available in the future to utilise o EFEH - R AR EEEFE
their unused tax losses before they expire. B EMTFE - mal LAFER

VAR ARFI AR 89 AT TR IR 18 o

(i)  Deferred tax liabilities in respect of intangible assets arose from (i) BREREEMEANELRERH
the temporary differences in development costs and concession BEEANERKANRESTFESE
assets. MR ERMEER o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

31 Income tax in the consolidated statement of
financial position (continued)

(b)

(c)

(BRIESBHA - UARKETITR)

31 SHMBIRR R T RER (&)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERAMECHEEERERS:
(continued)
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial RS EE G BARRE -
position:
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFTT AREFT
Net deferred tax asset recognised & B ROR 2% TR BV IR AT 459,730 451,557
in the consolidated statement of financial ~ F{I8& & /558
position
Net deferred tax liability recognised G OB iR A 2% R IR B IR 1T (174,305) (136,397)
in the consolidated statement of financial ~ FiE & (&%
position
285,425 315,160
Deferred tax assets not recognised (c) RERNELHEELEE

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(u),
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of unused tax losses and certain deductible temporary
differences of RMB7,221,706,000 (2014: RMB1,452,717,000),
as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which
the losses or the temporary differences can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entities. As at 31
December 2015, the expiration of tax losses of the Group, if
unused, is as follows:

BIEMIFE2(U) R R EMGETHE - A
SERMERARFIAR KN IES
BHFELAEINEREEEAAR
#7,021,706,0007C (2014 F : AR
#1,452,717,00070 ) IR EF B E E
AATEREREEEE LTS

15 SRR AT R/ A AT DAME AR L S5 R 7
B 7 T 5 18 ok T B 1 2 R A R AR TR R
B o 201512 A31H » K"&EE X
FIAMFIEEBOERAT

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETFT ARMTFIT
2016 37,518 9,812
2017 81,878 77,113
2018 412,488 80,455
2019 664,008 724,867
2020 1,303,382 -
2,499,274 892,247

2015 F£ 3§
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

31 Income tax in the consolidated statement of
financial position (continued)

(d) Deferred tax liability not recognised

At 31 December 2015, taxable temporary differences
relating to undistributed profits and PRC statutory reserves of
subsidiaries and associates amounted to RMB3,233,080,000
(2014: RMB3,850,555,000). No deferred tax liability was
recognised in respect of these taxable temporary differences
as dividends from subsidiaries and associates are not subject
to PRC income tax and the Group has no plan to dispose of
these subsidiaries and associates in the foreseeable future.

32 Provision for warranty

The movement of provisions for product warranty during the year is as

31 SOHMBMRRRPHEH (&)

(d) FREZLELEHEAR

2015412318 » BRHE R A
B N R R D BRFE RS BEEE
AEECHEMNHEREZEARARE
3,233,080,000 7T (20144 : AR
3,850,555,0007T) ° BRIt FE AT
TR EER - RERTAETHHIE
8E  BARWBRAR KRS QAR
BRRETHFRMNFREAESH B
AITE R AR - A E W A2
HENSHBRRMEEAT -

32 HRTRE

AEEERSBENRCOT

follows:

2015 2014

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ABEFT

At 1 January ®W1A1H 672,211 622,767
Acquisition of control over an associate ER{SHE & A Al b - 31,616
Additional provisions made BEHINE A 270,440 222,238
Provision utilised B REE (155,595) (204,410)
At 31 December M12A31H 787,056 672,211
Less: current portion of provision for warranty & : B R4 BE R BIEIEED (111,389) (108,260)
675,667 563,951

Under the terms of the Group’s sales agreements, the Group
will rectify product defects of wind turbines, steam turbines and
distributed control system products arising within one to five years of
the date of sale. Provision is therefore made for the best estimate of
the expected settlement under these agreements in respect of sales
made within one to five years prior to the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESBHA - UARKETITR)

Provision for warranty (continued) 32 BERE&BEGE)
In addition, the Group’s photovoltaic modules typically sold with a AN - REB KRB R EIRE2F55
two or five-year warranty for defects in materials and workmanship FRREME REWE T ERAERE - Bt
and a ten and twenty-five year minimum power output warranty, A B EARF ) 9005 3 T RE I IR KB IR 10% 2
against declines of more than 10% and 20%, respectively, of initial 20% ° D RIREI0F K25 FENHR/NEEE
power generation capacity from the date of delivery. The Group has BIR c MERIEFET  BEEZPHES -
the responsibility to repair or replace solar modules, at customers’ AREBFEETHEHFIRABGRLAENT - K&
option, under the terms of the warranty policy. The Group maintains EHLEERBETNEENEETIRERE
warranty provision to cover potential liabilities that could arise under & o
these warranties.
The amount of the provision takes into account the Group’s recent RGN E B F IR A IR B A B A R H At A 7]
claim experience and the experiences of other companies for similar AR BLERNRIEAR BT SEERE
products and is only made where a warranty claim is probable. & WEHRAEELEBRERAIGFIZE
Bt o
Deferred income 33 EZEWE=
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
At 1 January M1A1H 503,131 428,263
Additions N 30,526 98,496
Credited to profit or loss st AEE (34,204) (23,628)
At 31 December M12A31H 499,453 503,131
Deferred income mainly represents government grants relating to the BEWSTIERRBINATERDE - BE
construction of property, plant and equipment, as well as technology HEREEREL  URERNBEAREREE
research funding related to environmental protection related assets, MEMAERES  BEEGFERBEEN
which would be recognised as income on a straight-line basis over EEHFE A= BARTER A TR AIELER
the expected useful life of the relevant assets. The deferred income HNEEAEEAHEIEN MU A
recognised is included in “other revenue” in the consolidated Moo
statement of profit or loss.
Other non-current liabilities 34 BE#IEREBERE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AEETT
Long-term retention payables to third parties ENE=ZARPERSE 214,327 50,488
Other non-current financial liabilities Hib3Eme&ras 6,370 6,370
220,697 56,858
2015 E3#§
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

35 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 35 EX - RERKRE(E)
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) HEDERIPMHHEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances A ESEHSRDIE T AERS G
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity FEES R R AR BB W HR ) M B R Bh R
is set out in the consolidated statements of changes in HFETIE N o ANA B S B 2B B 2R
equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual HYE ) KRB IS R an T At -
components of equity between the beginning and the end of
the year are set out below:
Retained
PRC profits/
Share Capital statutory (accumulated Total
capital reserve reserve losses) equity
HEEE BERE/
(&N BREE NES (RFTER) A

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT  ARETT

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000

ARETT AEETT ARETT

Balance at 1 January 2014 6,063,770 805,682
20141 A1 B 4458

Changes in equity for 2014;

2014FfEmE L

Loss and total comprehensive income - -
for the year

REFEERGE W EE

Appropriation - -

Elka

Dividends approved in respect of the - -
previous year (note 35(b)(ii)

S EFEAERNBE (A7a235(b)(ii))

99,586 361,975 7,331,013

- (944,177) (944,177)

29,746 (29,746) -

- (103,084) (103,084)

Balance at 31 December 2014 6,063,770 805,682
and1 January 2015
201412 A31H k201541 A1 H64%8

Changes in equity for 2015:

2015 fEm# L

Loss and total comprehensive income for - -
the year

AEEERRAR S et AR

129,332 (715,032) 6,283,752

- (2121,226)  (2,121,226)

Balance at 31 December 2015 6,063,770 805,682
20151231 H 4%

129,332 (2,836,258) 4,162,526
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR M sk (&)
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESBHA - UARKETITR)

35 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 35 EX - FERRKRE(E)
(b) Dividends b) BE
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the () FEFEENELARERRKE

Company attributable to the year

The board of directors of the Company does not ARRIEEETERREEHS
recommend the payment of a final dividend in respect of 2015%F K 2014F12A31H IEF
the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. RS -

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) REFELZHER T L — R F
Company attributable to previous financial year, FEr KR ETHIKE

approved during the year

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT

Final dividend in respect of the previous RANFLH I X189 —1#

financial year, approved and paid ERARERE - BT
during the year, of RMB Nil per share RARKEZIIT(20145F - A
(2014: RMB0.017 per share) R#0.0177080) - 103,084
(c) Share capital () MB=x
Registered and issued share capital 2l R BEITRAR AR

No. of shares

IR
000 RMB’000

TH ARET T

Ordinary shares, registered,issued Bl BRTEEHHENZTER -
and fully paid:

Domestic shares of RMB1.00 each ERRG  SERAR¥1T
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014, 20141 81H  2014%12A831H 4,754,000 4,754,000
and 31 December 2015 F2015%F12A31H
BEAkG - BRARE1T

H shares of RMB1.00 each HE > BRARE1T

At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014, 20141 81H 2014512831 H 1,309,770 1,309,770
and 31 December 2015 &2015%12A31H

Total &5t

At 31 December 2015 and 2014 201549 K 2014F12 A31H 6,063,770 6,063,770

2015 F£ 3§ 233
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

35 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Share capital (continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Capital reserve

Capital reserve mainly represents share premium,
contributions from Guodian, and the difference between
the considerations of acquisition or disposal of equity
interests from/to non-controlling equity owners and the
carrying amount of the proportionate net assets.

(ii) PRC statutory reserve

According to the Company’s Article of Association, the
Company is required to transfer 10% of its net profit as
determined in accordance with accounting rules and
regulations of the PRC to its statutory reserve until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.
The transfer to this reserve must be made before
distribution of a dividend to equity shareholders. This
reserve fund can be utilised in setting off accumulated
losses or increasing capital of the Company and is
non-distributable other than in liquidation.

(iii) Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations that have functional currency
other than the RMB which are dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies as set out in note 2(x).

Distributability of reserves

In accordance with the “Articles of Association” of the
Company, the net profit after tax of the Company for the
purpose of dividends payment will be the lesser of (i) the net
profit determined in accordance with the accounting rules and
regulations of the PRC; and (ii) the net profit determined in
accordance with IFRSs. As of 31 December 2015, the retained
profits available for distribution are RMB Nil (2014: RMB Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

35 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

®

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for equity
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to financing at a reasonable costs.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
equity shareholder returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of gearing
ratio, which is calculated by dividing net debt (including
interest bearing other payables and interest bearing loans,
less cash and cash equivalent) by the sum of total equity plus
net debt. The gearing ratio of the Group was 62.6% (2014:
55.8%).

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital
management during the year. Neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

36 Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage
these risks are described below:

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash at
bank and in hand, trade and bills receivables, deposits,
prepayments and other receivables and other non-current
assets. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

Substantially all of the Group’s cash at bank and in hand are
deposited in the stated owned/controlled PRC banks which
the directors assessed the credit risk to be insignificant.

35

36

(BRIEZHHA - UARBIIR)
BX - FERRE(E)
) EXEE

FEBERERENTIEZBER  RIB
R KT EE K RS E B IR A
BEKARGHEE - UEREREE
FaQZ MBS - (M Al AR AR 1
AR R AR (B #R 3 A EL o ) 2R AR U5

PReftasg -

AEEEGDY A FHRESTERR
SENERER  ERENEFUKFE
BN TR EBRRRHE S R R
o REAKEEAFEMNENES
Rz2l - WIRRQEL S e %
REBHEARERE

AEBIBEBEHEELXR(HFE
BE(BEABEMEMNKIENE G
FREBREMBESEEY)BRUAE
B AR ROFEIS R TRt i
BEMAKENERNGERE - AEE
B EHEENEE62.6%(20144F :
55.8%) °

REFAEBNERERFTELEH

ERE - ARRRAEAHELTY

FAEMZHRIEMERESR -
MBERAREERAAEE

AEENEREBBRETFEER
T FEAREERR -

CRBE

7N 52 (5 T il ) b 55 L B DA e A R [ ) B 7S
BB R IE AN T A

() ERERR

rEENERRBRIZEMNTREZR
B ROTERREFRS - BUSRK
EEE e - ANFUEREmER
BB UREMIERBEE - BIEE
BRI TERERBE - THERE
REREE -

REBIFRENRITERIERFR
SEFRNHEBEE EHHIERTT -
E=HERAEERRRTAK -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

36 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

In respect of trade and bills receivables, deposits,
prepayments and other receivables and other non-current
assets, individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. The Group generally requires customers to
settle trade receivables in accordance with contracted terms
and other debts in accordance with agreements. Credit terms
may be granted to customers, depending on the nature of
business. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual customers.
At the end of the reporting period, 32% and 7% (2014: 33%
and 19%) of trade and other receivables was due from
Guodian and related parties under Guodian, the Group’s
largest customer, and the five largest remaining customers
respectively.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group as
set out in note 38, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial
guarantees at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in
note 38.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables,
deposits, prepayments and other receivables and other
non-current assets are set out in notes 24, 25 and 21
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

36 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure continuity of sufficient
funding and flexibility by utilising a variety of bank and other
borrowings with debt maturities spreading over a range
of periods, thereby ensuring that the Group’s outstanding
borrowing obligation is not exposed to excessive repayment
risk in any one year.

The Company is responsible for the Group’s overall cash
management and the raising of borrowings to cover expected
cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

At the end of the reporting period date, the Group
had net current liabilities of RMB3,351,097,000 (2014:
RMB1,083,420,000). With regards to its future capital
commitments and other financing requirements, the Group
has unutilised banking facilities of RMB19,837,962,000 (2014:
RMB15,446,636,000) as at 31 December 2015. The directors
are of the opinion that the assumptions which are included in
the cash flow forecast are reasonable. However, as with all
assumptions in regard to future events, these are subject to
inherent limitations and uncertainties and some or all of these
assumptions may not be realised.

(BRIESBHA - UARKETITR)

36 HKEREERAABEEGE)

(b)

RRBAEBEAARANEEEESIN
REZBRN  AEBRAZITEN
RITREMER - B2 A RS
DR EMEARENEREH TS
BEME P IMER—EFE -

ARRABAEENEERRSEIEIN
RineMEREFTHNERER -
RIBAREBOM K - NEBEH
EERPETREARBESHRK
- ERASEAEERHNREFH
B TEFESREBTAEAEEN
BeAwERE  tmne A RE &Y
MBI RS ESFR

PRERR - AEEFRBAGES
A B #3,351,097,000 7T (2014 4 :
AR #1,083,420,0007T) © BIR A&
ERRA)E @A R A& Z sk
R2015F 12 A31H - AEBE XA
RITR1E B AR 19,837,962,000
JL(20144F « AR 15 446,636,000
T0) c BEEMRE B RENHRE
REHEEER o Al - BRARKSE
P A RERGHEAF Y ABREIM
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B TEREEIR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

36 Financial risk management and fair values 36 MEAMEERAAEEE)
(continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REELSER(E)
The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities TRINETRWMEIR - REEIENT
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative LB ENTSESRERE  KiES
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual SRR ST (BERESART
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments RETEMFBEE - WRERZEF
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates £ BARBHREHAROFETELN
current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date MBEFEE)  UARAeEkARERET
the Group can be required to pay: HH=FHEE
2015
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ERKREERER
More than1  More than 2
Within 1 year year but less years but less More than Carrying
orondemand than2years than5 years 5 years Total amount
1R 1FH0E 2FBLE5
EREM 2T FUT 5L E &5t RESHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AR¥FT AR¥FT AR¥FrT ANREFT AR¥F7T
Long-term borrowings 75,179 1,647,015 3,948,244 100,825 5,771,263 4,788,500
(note 28(a))
REMER (Wit28(a))
Short-term borrowings 11,001,055 - - - 11,001,055 10,753,889
(note 28(b))
KSR (AFt28(b))
Trade and bills payables 13,021,717 - - - 13,021,717 13,021,717
(note 29)
ENERRER (f17729)
Other payables (note 30) 2,162,248 - - - 2,162,248 2,162,248
HHb R FIE (H7:230)
Other non-current liabilities - 195,453 25,244 - 220,697 220,697
(note 34)
HibJEmBEE (Hi734)
26,260,199 1,842,468 3,973,488 100,825 32,176,980 30,947,051
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(BRIEREHRA - UARKETIR)

36 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

36 MBEBREERAABEGE)

(b) RBEZEME(E)

2014
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
SRRMRARRL
More than 1 More than 2
Within 1 year  year butless years but less More than Carrying
orondemand  than?2years  thanb5 years 5 years Total amount
1FERH 1FIA L 2L 15
ERET 2FELAT FUAT 5FA L &5t FHeH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  AREFT  AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Long-term borrowings 144,403 1,294,735 2,315,600 2,715,243 6,469,981 5,086,734
(note 28(a))
REMER (H17128(a))
Short-term borrowings 13,856,006 - - - 13,856,006 13,456,136
(note 28(b))
RHER (Hzt28b))
Trade and bills payables 18,165,570 - - - 18,165,570 18,165,570
(note 29)
JER RN R IR
(Hf:#29)
Other payables (note 30) 2,336,043 - - - 2,336,043 2,336,043
B ReRIE (#17£30)
Other non-current liabilities - 31,614 25,244 - 56,858 56,858
(note 34)
HiERBEE (#i34)
34,502,022 1,326,349 2,340,844 2,715,243 40,884,458 39,101,341
Interest rate risk (c) F=mM

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from long-term
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the

Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of fixed and
variable rate borrowings in order to manage its interest rate
risks. During the year, however, management of the Group
did not consider it is necessary to use interest rate swaps to

hedge their exposure to interest.

AEBENFERERETZRENRHAE
Ko F B EERERNEERZENR

ERMNERERZT °

RTEERSENFNEER - A&E
A B4R B E A R RUF B
fERNES - AT - AEEEEER
REAFEEFBBENXEH - Hih

REBEFERL
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(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

36 Financial risk management and fair values 36 HMEEMREERAAEEGE)
(continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (c) FIEmEPR(E)
(i)  Interest rate profile (i) FIERELR
The following table details the profile of the Group’s TRFAMYE TRERARAE
net borrowings (interest-bearing financial liabilities BHFERBL(GESREE
less interest-bearing financial assets) at the end of the B S REE) o MiFtosiFE
reporting period. The detailed interest rates and maturity TAREBERFAFIE K
information of the Group’s borrowings are disclosed in EFRHEARR -
note 28.
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AEETT
Net fixed rate borrowings: EEFERER
Borrowings B 7,523,381 10,936,301
Less: bank deposits (including restricted B RITER(BREZR (744,300) (668,700)
deposits) HITFR)
loans and advances L/ OSEEN (30,854) (16,388)
6,748,227 10,251,213
Net floating rate borrowings: FERRFMEN
Borrowings B 9,699,677 7,606,569
Other payables Efth T RRIE 118,000 118,000
Less: bank deposits (including restricted o RITFER(BIEZR (2,501,175) (2,960,678)
deposits) #7750
loans and advances BRNBR (501,000) (443,000)
S 6815502 4320891
Total net borrowings SFHER AR 13,563,729 14,572,104
(ii) ~ Sensitivity analysis (i) BBEEDH

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates
of net floating borrowings, with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s loss after tax would have
increased/decreased and retained profits would have
decreased/increased by approximately RMB42,087,000
(2014: RMB34,510,000). Other components of
consolidated equity would not be affected by the general
increase/decrease in interest rates.
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B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

36 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at the end of the
reporting period. The impact on the Group’s profit
after tax (and retained profits) and other components
of consolidated equity is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense or income of such a change
in interest rates.

The estimated 100 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a reasonable
change in interest rates over the period until the next
annual statement of financial position date. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2014.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases which give rise to receivables and payables,
as well as borrowings and cash at bank and in hand that
are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other
than the functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily Euros (“EUR”), USD and HKD.

U]

Recognised assets and liabilities

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
arising from cash at bank, receivables, payables and
borrowings which are denominated in EUR, USD or
HKD. Depreciation or appreciation of these foreign
currencies against Renminbi would affect the financial
position and operating results of the Group. The Group
did not hedge its foreign currency exposure.

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the PRC
government may at its discretion restrict access to
foreign currencies for current account transactions in
the future. Changes in the foreign exchange control
system may prevent the Group from satisfying sufficient
foreign currency demands and the Group may not be
able to pay dividends in foreign currencies to its equity
shareholders.

36 HMBEBREERA

(c)

(d)

(BRIESBHA - UARKETITR)

REEE)

FIRER ()
(i) SBEAH ()

fifh £ SRR 3 AT B R R M
RSB EAEREHR

BERRERFENEITES
BTANFZEAROBA - &

AEEBEMNE(RHE T?’F‘J/FEJ)
K& G e H AP BB 1D
ERRIRULF R HF ,%\ %
RBIRAMEZERE MG
& o

fBEHH9100ME RS £k T4 -
EEEEHNERET —FEY
Bk gk B B A] gL 3 A= A [E
REICEEMAE BTG - &
2014F T 5 /AR -

B ER

AEENEEER

2T 2 RIRANNE

(B ZHRBENERT AR R
TRNEMER)FHENKRERIEE
KB ER B E R MR R B K

H o UARERNBITERREFER

& o EZEBARNERETERER

TG~ ETLRBEE o

() BEEWEEHEEE
AEBEMNEBREREZ RN

KA - ZTEEHER

RITIER - BUHIR - BRI
ARAER o IFINERERA

REONRZELTELSETED
REBH PR ELEE
B o NEBREHINERR o

ARBIWIHFEHRILIRER - F
Bl B AT B] B 178 TE 1 2R PR ] 2K
TP HERAMINEG - IE%/\
9|\[? il Z A ML - Al B

A SEEREHINEHE K -
N6 B AT B MR ER AR ANEE TR AR
RERE ©
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(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

36 Financial risk management and fair values 36

MBEREER A AEE(

i

(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

(d) EWmERE)

Exposure to currency risk (i) E¥EEHO

The following table details the Group’s exposure at KAERMABEEE AN
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising HE @ ENEREEXE
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a & FAEE RPN REBRA
currency other than the functional currency of the entity SHEBRRE NKRP AT
to which they relate. For presentation purposes, the e Bz BH - RARS

amounts of the exposure are shown in RMB, translated HARNIBEEXRSITEAAR
using the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. MG REERR o REFEG
Differences resulting from the translation of the financial BN TS I B 75 3R R B IR A AR
statements of foreign operations into the Group's EEREEEELNESE -
presentation currency are excluded.
2015 2014
usb EUR HKD usbD EUR HKD

ES BT B e BT R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARKETTT ARETFT ARBTFT ARETIT ARBTT ARETIT

Cash at bank and in hand  $R771F 2% 16,241 181 121,201 5,785 339 88,732
EFRE

Trade receivables FEUER X 22,608 55,391 - 14,930 85,363 20,241

Trade payables FEFIR (1,778) - (283) (77,721) - (267)

Other receivables H b FEUSBR 5K 62 85 9,029 62 131 4,738

Other payables H b IR X (8) (844) (125,935) (10) (844) -

Net exposure SO 37,125 54,813 4,012 (56,954) 84,989 113,444
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36 Financial risk management and fair values 36 HBEKREERERAAEEGE)
(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥EEREGE)
(iii)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BBEZH
The followings are the related foreign currency exchange TNRYE T AEE BN B
rates to RMB during the year: AR 7 IR EXR -
2015 2014
Average Reporting Average Reporting
rate date spot rate rate date spot rate
HEH WEH
FHER REEZX R R 35 i e
usD T 6.3063 6.4936 6.1428 6.1190
EUR BT 7.2754 7.0952 8.1255 7.4556
HKD B 0.8134 0.8378 0.7924 0.7889
A 5% strengthening of RMB against the following AREH T EES%NFAE
currencies would have increased/(decreased) the net HeFrBErRBFEMEN L
profit after tax and retained profits by the amounts iR (TB) BT R ©
shown below. Other components of equity would not T 2= ) B AR PR D T ' 5
be affected by the strengthen of RMB against foreign AREHERINEF BN -
currencies.
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARK T ARBET T

Usb ET (1,578) 2,449
EUR BT (2,290) (3,556)
HKD kil (©) (4.481)
(3,871) (5,588)
A 5% weakening of RMB against the above currencies ABRBIHEN it E85%EzE -
would have had the equal but opposite effect on the WA H A SRS - Bl
above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the MEEEARRERARNOTE &
basis that all other variables remain constant. SEEI_FRFTT o
The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming ﬂzﬁi;ﬁ@zﬁzr TR GRS =
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred PERE(LBREMABEEREERNE
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied ETEE’J@WQIEE’JTMHKMWD .
to the Group’s exposure to currency risk for financial BEFffBEEMEERETE - LHEF
instruments in existence at that date, and that all other AR TR o

variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

2015 F£ 3§
EERERREERAGERAR

243



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

36 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(e)

(iii)  Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the next annual
statement of financial position date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2014.

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2015 and 2014
except the following financial instruments, for which their
carrying amounts and fair value and the level of fair value
hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement, are
disclosed below:

The level into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.
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(BRIESZEHA - UAREIITR)

36 Financial risk management and fair values 36 HKEBEERAAEEGE)
(continued)

(e) Fair values (continued)

(e) 2AREBEE(E

Fair value measurement as at

31 December 2015 categorised into:
R2015F12A31B AREBERE - X255 :

Carrying
amounts at  Fair value at
31 December 31 December Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
M20156128  R20155128
J1AREEE S1HAAEE E1ER E2ER EI/R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT ARKETFT AREFT AREFT
Long-term receivables 2,668,870 2,494,217 - 2,494,217 -
REENE
Fixed rate long-term bank loans (183,000) (185,551) - (185,551) -
Bl M & REBRITE R
Corporate bonds (3,835,437) (2,863,480) (2,863,480) - -
RAENES
Other non-current liabilities (220,697) (210,689) - (210,689) -
HthIERBafk
Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2014 categorised into:
K014 12A31B AR BENE - UHR
Carrying
amounts at  Fair value at
31 December 31 December Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R2014F12H  H2014F12H
SIHEEERE 31HARER SR B2ER FIER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT  AREFT ARETFT AREFT AREFT
Long-term receivables 2,136,478 1,920,975 - 1,920,975 -
R HEAREURIE
Fixed rate long-term bank loans (140,000) (137,299) - (137,299) -
EEMERHRITER
Corporate bonds (4,055,645) (4,051,614) (4,051,614) - -
NEES
Other non-current liabilities (56,858) (53,640) - (53,640) -
Hi3pmeaE
2015 F3§
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(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

36 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(e)

®

Fair values (continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair values of financial instruments in Level 2 are estimated
as the present value of contractual future cash flows,
discounted at from the relevant interest rates announced
by the People’s Bank of China as at the end of the reporting
period.

Master netting or similar agreements

In December 2014, the Group has entered into an agreement
with a supplier in connection with the compensation receivable
from the supplier in respect of substandard equipment
purchased by the Group. According to the agreement, the
compensation receivable from the supplier and the Group’s
outstanding trade payables due to the supplier are aggregate
into a single net amount that is payable by the supplier. The
agreement meets the criteria for offsetting in the statement
of financial position as the Group has currently legally
enforceable right to offset recognised amounts.

The following table sets out the carrying amounts of
recognised financial assets that are subject to the above
agreement.

36

(e)

®

MBEREER A AEE(

i

DABEE)

HEFE2ER LA EE B IR TF
1 EFIA B

FoRGEMIARABEKRENSG
RIARRHFSTHEELREFEEPEA
REBITHRBEIRE HRAT A 8RS
BLIAF R E DAL R BT TEET -

BRAE SRR

R20145F127 - siAKER —H#“E
EEENGTEEEMENRBME
WHERE - AREEZHERRR] —
Hinek o RiIgZiHz - BRZEHER
MR EREANRBERENZHEHNER
RHBEA A EREER 2 ENF
B o IR AEEAERAE A @5 R
RN AR ERN S - %I
AT A RMBIRNKR P REA GRS -

TRIG Ll mE T ERRAZERE
ENRAEEHR -

Gross amounts

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial assets

of recognised
financial
liabilities

set off in the
statement of

financial position

Net amounts of

financial assets

presented in

Allowance for the statement of
doubtable debts financial position

SEEFRAIR R P IR
BRERN  BEENDREN RHSIRH
CHEECZRE SHEEZAE REREE CREEZEE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ANEEFT ANEHTFT ANEB T ANEEFT
31 December 2015
2015412 H31H
Deposits, prepayments and other 324,000 (192,002) (29,420) 131,998
receivables
B BN KA R IR
31 December 2014
MR2014912/31H
Deposits, prepayments and other 324,000 (182,848) - 141,152

receivables
Be - BRNRUEREMERGIR
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37 Commitments

Commitments for the construction and acquisition of property, plant
and equipment outstanding at 31 December 2015 not provided for

37

i

BT BEHREP AT EER2015F12 A31
ARBERBEME  BELRENER

in the consolidated financial statements were as follows: AYELN TP
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#EFT ARETFT
Contracted for SHES 5,583 502,323
Authorised but not contracted for ERRBEERTH 426,150 481,036
431,733 983,359

At 31 December 2015, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

HR2015F 12 A31H @ IRIBET ARG E
e RREMHSERENFEEN AT

it
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBFT
With 1 year 1FER 49,104 60,002
After 1 year but with 5 years 1F1%B56R 15,908 13,904
65,012 73,906
The Group leases certain buildings through non-cancellable REE BB AR ESEHEREER &

operating leases. These operating leases do not contain provisions
for contingent lease rentals. None of the rental agreements contain
escalation provisions that may require higher future rental payments.

B85 - REEAEAATRAARIAES
tiEH - BEARR N TEEERTLBE
RNE BT S R A -

2015 F3k
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38 Contingent liabilities

(a)

(b)

Guarantees issued

At 31 December 2015, the Group issued financial guarantees
to banks in respect of the bank loans granted to related parties
and provided bid and performance guarantees to customers
for construction contracts and sale of wind turbines as follows:

38 HHEE

(@

ERA

2015512 8318 » @R IEITHRES
RO ERMEAREB RERITIE
PHESEMER AREBEREESR
MEEEE MRS PEDNIRIERE
HHEAR L0 BT -

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT

Bid guarantees provided to: AT A R AR IEER
- related parties under Guodian —BE B 15,406 4,530
— third parties —$£=7 32,437 29,583

Performance guarantees provided to: M TR R ELOER
— related parties under Guodian —BRETEBBEE S 1,586,146 280,396
— third parties —$£=7 1,513,280 1,280,727
3,147,269 1,595,236

Litigation contingencies (b) FHFAREEE

During 2015, a subsidiary of the Group was claimed by its
suppliers for overdue payables with additional interests and
penalties in a few lawsuits. The subsidiary is now negotiating
with the suppliers to settle the lawsuits and up to the date of
these financial statements the subsidiary reached settlement
agreement with certain suppliers to repay the overdue
payables without any additional interests and penalties
and resolved the respective lawsuits. In the opinion of
management of the Group, taking into account of the result
of the resolved lawsuits, the subsidiary will be able to settle
the remaining lawsuits without interests and penalties. The
aggregate interests and penalties claimed by the suppliers for
the unresolved lawsuits is about RMB15,172,000.

According to the rulings made by the relevant courts, cash
at bank totaling RMB207,492,000 or other assets with the
equivalent value of the subsidiary should be frozen or
attached.

In addition, the Group is the defendant in certain lawsuits as
well as the plantiff in other proceedings arising in the ordinary
course of business.
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(BRIESBHA - UARKETITR)

38 Contingent liabilities (continued) 38 JEEEBE(E)
(b) Litigation contingencies (continued) (b) RAREBE(E)

#R LB RIE - SFAASEMER
RFHAEREDEERTE - BEIR
EREEMELEENERTEHA
SEMMBARN - BERENETE
EERTHNEE - AREAREILRE

While the outcomes of the above contingencies lawsuits
or other proceedings cannot be determined as present,
management believes that any results will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial position, operating results and
business of the Group. No provision has been recognised by

the Group for these claims. ERBETAE -
39 Material related party transactions 39 EXBBARS
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) EERAEEAMIR S

FEBERHETENRZ AR —
) - EEEREE T BH T 2
BEEBARRHENBERMIE -

The Group is part of a larger group of companies under
Guodian and has significant transactions and relationships
with Guodian and related parties under Guodian.

Principal transactions which were carried out in the ordinary

FIEEFB B2 EpEE T EhE

course of business are as follows: TSN A
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR TFT
Sale of goods to HEBRT
Guodian B & 6,378 11,768
Related parties under Guodian BIESAN 1)) b 4,632,196 3,705,673
Associates /N 4,689 4,241
Construction service provided to RUBERET
Guodian B E 6,943 -
Related parties under Guodian BIE TR 5,686,403 7,056,997
Associates /NS 165,312 -
Service provided to IR T
Related parties under Guodian B NE: o) 14,184 35,434
Lease to HAEF
Related parties under Guodian BE T & H) RaRE 7 1,643,494 1,642,777
Lease of certain property from HEMER
Related parties under Guodian BlE T & H) R 33,897 -
Purchase of goods from BEERAE
Related parties under Guodian BE T & H Ra R 7 527,884 180,511
Associates GE/NS] 10,465 4,788
2015 E3#§
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39 Material related party transactions (continued) 39 EXEHARS (&)
(a) Transactions with related parties (continued) (a) EEBAMES MRS (&)
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREFr
Purchase of equipment from BERER
Related parties under Guodian Bl B HIRRE T 604,122 449,773
Service provided by RERMR
Guodian EE - 1,271
Related parties under Guodian Bl T B HRRE T 61,406 26,569
Working capital obtained from AEESHER
Guodian B - 200,000
Related parties under Guodian BE BB H 484,105 527,363
Working capital repaid to HEREESLT
Guodian HE - 500,000
Related parties under Guodian Bl T B HIREE 5 1,011,468 -
Working capital provided to RHEBEEEST
Associates i /N 271,797 113,928
Working capital repaid from HEBEREESRH
Associates /N 2,356 59,000
Loans received from EXMERA
Guodian BE 600,000 65,080
Related parties under Guodian BHE T B AR 1,275,397 800,000
Loans repaid to HEERT
Guodian S 65,080 300,000
Related parties under Guodian Bl T B HIREE 5 1,556,000 1,240,000
Interest expenses FMEEH
Guodian B & 26,657 10,441
Related parties under Guodian B E T BRI 10,489 57,356
Interest income FIBWA
Related parties under Guodian BE T ERREE 22,799 3,559
Associates LN 37,813 39,623
Net deposits withdrawn from TN ERRE
Related parties under Guodian Bl T B HRaE 62,476 313,518
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

39 Material related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(b)

()

(BRIESBHA - UARKETITR)

39 EXBMALIXRE (&)

Transactions with related parties (continued) (a) EERAHAINREZ(E)
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFr
Capital investment in BEEXRET
Associates /NG 36,000 35,000
Capital investment from =N PN =
Related parties under Guodian Bile NS 1= oez): v - 132,487
Dividend paid to ZRBREF
Guodian ElE - 40,419
Related parties under Guodian Bl N== 1= oea): 14,349 48,419
Dividend received from WELR S B
Related parties under Guodian BE T B H Ra R 7 16,920 19,920
Associates /NS 9,044 29,943
Outstanding balances, including commitment, with (b) EEEEEES MVEREE - BEENE
related parties
Details of the outstanding balances with related parties are set BfifFE21 - 23 ~ 24 ~ 25 - 28 ~ 29230
out in notes 21, 23, 24, 25, 28, 29 and 30. HIRAE T WOBRERETT T R R o
At 31 December 2015, the Group’s commitments with related R2015512A318 » AREEIH
parties that have been contracted for but not yet been 8L e AR B 75 ¥ 2 P B GR A 9 R
recognised in these financial statements were as follows: HHEE AT |
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FTT AEBEFr
Sale of goods to HEFRT
Related parties under Guodian B E T B R 8,850,927 6,077,290
Construction service to be provided to REZERET
Related parties under Guodian BE BRI 3,358,586 7,790,844
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans (c) REMIRIKTTEBMHR

The Group participates in various defined contribution
retirement plans organised by relevant local government
authorities and Guodian for its staff. As at 31 December
2015, there was no material outstanding contribution to
post-employment benefit plans. Details of the defined
contribution retirement plans are set out in note 7(a).

AEEL2IN T BERTHIENBEE
AN SEREHRIRNRTE - R
2015 12A318  FEERAKBEF FHE
T REERRIAHER - Wit
7(a) ¥ RER PR NG E#ETT T FF A
iR o

2015 F£ 3§
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

39 Material related party transactions (continued)

(d)

Transactions with other government-related entities in
the PRC

The Group operates in an economic regime currently
dominated by entities directly or indirectly controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by the PRC government
and numerous government authorities and agencies
(collectively referred to as “government-related entities”).
Guodian, the parent and ultimate holding company of the
Company, is a PRC state-owned enterprise and these
government-related entities are also considered as related
parties of the Group in this respect.

Apart from transactions with Guodian and related parties
under Guodian mentioned above, the Group conducts a
majority of its business activities with other government-related
entities in the ordinary course of business. These transactions
are carried out at terms similar to those that would be entered
into with non-government-related entities.

The Group prices its services and products based on the
commercial negotiations. The Group has also established its
approval process for sales of goods, provision of services,
purchase of products and services and its financing policy
for borrowings. Such approval process and financing
policy do not depend on whether the counterparties are
government-related entities or not.

Having considered the potential for transactions to be
impacted by related party relationships, the Group’s approval
processes and financing policy, and what information would
be necessary for an understanding of the potential effect of
the relationship on these financial statements, the directors
are of the opinion that further information about the following
transactions that are collectively significant is required for
disclosure:

- Sales of goods and provision of construction services;

The Group sells its goods and provide construction
services to a wide range of government-related power
companies and manufacturing enterprises. These
transactions individually are not significant to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

39 Material related party transactions (continued)

(d)

(e)

Transactions with other government-related entities in
the PRC (continued)

- Deposits and borrowings;

The Group deposits most of its cash in
government-related financial institutions, and also
obtains short-term and long-term loans from these
financial institutions in the ordinary course of business.
The interest rates of the bank deposits and loans are
regulated by the People’s Bank of China.

- Purchase of materials and receiving construction
services; and

The Group purchases materials and receives
construction services from a wide range of
government-related manufacturing enterprises and
construction contractors. These transactions individually
are not significant to the Group.

- Service concession arrangements.

The Group entered into a number of service concession
agreements with local governments to construct and
operate water treatment plants during the concession
period. All transactions under the service concession
arrangements were made with local governments and
carried out at terms set out in the respective service
concession arrangements.

Key management personnel remuneration

Key management personnel are those persons holding
positions with authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or
indirectly, including the Company’s directors.

(BRIESBHA - UARKETITR)

39 EXBMALIXRE (&)

(d)

(e)

EFEHARFEEER BN
5 (%)

- FEREEK:

AEBOABNRSFRBA
HENSREE  BEERE
BBEP BRI RS REER
Bk RHER - |RITHFEK
KREFHERHEARRTH
;'_'Eo

- MHBERESHEIRS &

A S ) 5 T AR R
9 B AR S B R
BB EIRE R - 1t
ZAEXSERMEHAEE
TEK -

- IRISERTRERE -

AEBECREMBNERT %
TSR IRTS 155 - R RTER
RezA  BEERARER)S
IKERIERR o BRTGHF AT HE s 1R
THMBER %2R T B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

40 Disposal of a subsidiary

Guodian United Power Technology (Baotou) Co., Ltd. (“Baotou
Company”), a former subsidiary of the Group, in which 55.38%
equity interest was held by Guodian United Power Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Guodian United Power”) as at 31 December 2014.
Pursuant to an agreement entered into between United Power and
a former shareholder of Baotou Company dated in April 2011, the
shareholder agreed to vote in concert with Guodian United Power,
including decisions regarding financial and operating policies. In
September 2015, the shareholder transferred all equity interest to
a third party and the new shareholder does not agree to vote in
concert with Guodian United Power. As a result, the Group lost the
control over Baotou Company and it is accounted for as an associate
of the Group since then.
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39 Material related party transactions (continued) 39 EXEHARS (&)

() Key management personnel remuneration (continued) (e) FEEEAEHFM(E)
Remuneration for key management personnel, including ERTEETBEASNEMOT @ 245
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note PHFEORR I FE AU S 4R AR R R EE E 1M
9, and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in &5 ANMF10RHENE TH
note 10, is as follows: ME=HES

2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFT
Salaries and other emoluments TEREMES 4,772 5,034
Discretionary bonus EIBIEAT 1,359 1,938
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIH 739 742
6,870 7,714

40 HEMEAT

A ORI (BE)BRAR(REAR])
RAELENRINEAR - BAEBOWEITAR
ARI([EAEB ) R2014F12 A31A#EF A
Z B A F155.38% IR IEIE A o IR IERHE A B
NFBEBERAR—NRERHRTHNEA
2011F4 A - ZRERBEMEESE D
—BER BIEABY ML EBIRAR
® 2015997 - mIRFRBEBE 2 E
EREEAE = FIRETREMESE)
N—EETR - Ftt - NEEU PR K BE
NRIRIEHIIE - BEEA AR AR K E R
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40 Disposal of a subsidiary (continued)

41

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B 15 e M et (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEREHRA - UARKETIR)

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the subsidiary as at

the date when control was lost are as follows:

40 HEMELQTEE)

BRESENT ¢

LB AR EERABERRKEHZ BHY

RMB’000
AREFr

Property, plant and equipment, lease prepayments #)% - ii/E &R - BN LSS MER EE 337,610

and intangible assets
Trade and other receivables U R EAth JE U R 47,132
Inventory FE 199,629
Cash at bank and in hand RITERREFRE 22,019
Trade and other payables FE BR 3N N EAD R A~ 08 (452,830)
Borrowings (=T (60,000)

93,560

Total consideration ¥R -
Fair value of the retained interest as an associate  {EABEZ A RIFTRRBREARN AR BE 51,814
Non-controlling interests, based on their BB HENB AR ERLENEEMNAGETRRE 41,746

proportionate interest in the recognised amounts Bz L 5 B FEIZE AR HE 25

of the assets and liabilities in the subsidiary

disposed of
Carrying amount of net assets in the subsidiary WHENBARZ FEENREER (93,560)

disposed of

Net gain on disposal of the subsidiary

BB A ) e R

Notes to the consolidated cash flow statements 41

Disposal of a subsidiary during the year ended 31 December

2015

HE

BHRERERNME

BZE2015512A31B L EEHB AT

RMB'000
AEETT

Cash consideration received
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

WEIR & EE
BRENRE MRSEHEY

(22,019)

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal

FEENR e RSB FRH

(22,019)

2015 F3§ 255
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

42

Service concession arrangement

The Group entered into a number of service concession agreements
with local governments (the “Grantors”) to construct and operate
water treatment plants during the concession period, which is
normally for 20-30 years of operation. The Group is responsible
for construction and maintenance of water treatment plants during
the concession period. At the end of the concession period, the
Group needs to transfer water treatment plants to the Grantors
at nil consideration. With respect to these service concession
arrangements, the Group has evaluated and assessed that these
arrangements fall under the scope of IFRIC 12, Service Concession
Arrangements (“IFRIC 12”).

In accordance with IFRIC 12, the Group accounts for the revenue
and costs relating to construction services in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(0). The consideration received or
receivables in exchange for the construction services is recognised
as a financial asset for an unconditional contractual right to receive
cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the Grantor
for the construction services and/or an intangible asset for a right or
a license to charge users of the water treatment service.

The Group has recognised intangible assets (note 16) and service
concession receivables (note 21) related to the service concession
arrangement representing the right the Group received to charge
a fee for water treatment or sale of reclaimed water and the
guaranteed minimum payment during the operating period of the
water treatment plants respectively.

Services concession construction revenue recorded during the
year amounted to RMB13,711,000 (2014: RMB49,127,000), which
represents the revenue recognised during the construction stage
of the service concession period. The Group has recognised profit
of RMB11,000 (2014: RMB3,969,000) for the construction of water
treatment plants.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIESBHA - UARKETITR)

43 Company-level statement of financial position 43 ATFEEHMBEARRE
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARMTFT
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment M -~ R R 1,218,264 1,322,131
Investment properties &Y 966,110 954,509
Intangible assets BREE 12,461 12,095
Interests in subsidiaries HB AR RE 4,087,325 4,239,583
Interests in associates HEZ N FWIRE 35,941 35,941
Other equity investments Hfb =iz g 156,070 156,070
Other non-current assets HiIEmENEE 15,092 40,414
Deferred tax assets EEFIEEE 4,200 1,050
Total non-current assets FRBEERLE 6,495,463 6,761,793
Current assets REEE
Inventories & 201 77
Trade and bills receivables FEURBR TR N =18 228,472 309,460
Deposits, prepayments and e - BAFIERHAERGRIE 5,468,019 8,444,634
other receivables
Cash at bank and in hand RITFERLEFRES 439,341 486,870
Total current assets REEEERE 6,136,033 9,241,041
Current liabilities REEE
Borrowings B 3,839,861 5,689,776
Trade and bills payables FERTBRR R R 24,626 48,675
Other payables E b FETRIE 790,507 864,905
Income tax payable JE AT HR - 3,839
Total current liabilites  _ __ _ #BAf#s 4,654,994 6,607,195
Netcurrentassets = hKB&E¥® = 1,481,039 2633846
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBAE 7,976,502 9,395,639
2015 F3§
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R MY A (48D

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

43 Company-level statement of financial position

43 NEIEEREBARRE(E)

(continued)
2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#EFT ARMTFT
Non-current liability FRBEE
Borrowings &= 3,813,976 3,111,887
Totalnon-currentliability ~~~~~ ¥#hBAfMe® 00000000 3813976 3,111,887
NET ASSETS BETFE 4,162,526 6,283,752
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARREEE
Share capital R X 6,063,770 6,063,770
Reserves G (1,901,244) 219,982
TOTAL EQUITY R 4,162,526 6,283,752

44 Non-adjusting events after the reporting period

(a) Disposal of certain desulfurization and denitrification
assets

On February 5, 2016, Longyuan Environmental, a subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a transfer agreement with
each of the 27 subsidiaries of Guodian. Pursuant to which,
Longyuan Environmental will transfer certain desulfurisation
and denitrification assets to the 27 subsidiaries of Guodian
respectively, with a total consideration of approximately
RMB3,390,887,000.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B %5k M et (48

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

44 Non-adjusting events after the reporting period

45

46

(continued)

(a) Disposal of certain desulfurization and denitrification
assets (continued)

The desulfurisation and denitrification assets to be disposed
of by Longyuan Environmental under the transfer agreements
consist primarily of (i) inventories which include raw
material necessary for the operation of desulfurisation and
denitrification equipment and (ii) fixed assets which include
desulfurization and denitrification equipment, facilities and
buildings, as well as construction in progress. Such assets are
used to reduce the emissions of sulphur dioxide and nitrogen
oxide from coal-fired power generation in the environmental
protection segment. The carrying value of these desulfurisation
and denitrification assets as at 31 December 2015 is
RMB2,963,958,000.

(b) Issue of private placement notes

In January 2016, the Company issued first and second
tranches of private placement notes with a face value of
RMB1,000,000,000 and RMB400,000,000, respectively. The
private placement notes have a maturity period of three years
and are unsecured and issued at par. The coupon rates are
4.35% and 4.30% per annum respectively.

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified as a result of the
presentation of discontinued operation.

Parent and ultimate holding company

At 31 December 2015, the directors of the Company consider its
parent and ultimate holding company of the Group to be Guodian,
which is a state-owned enterprise established in the PRC. Guodian
does not produce financial statements available for public use.

44

45

46

(BRIESBHA - UARKETITR)

BEPRIFAREEH(E)

(a) HOBRMBHEENLE(HE)
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(BRERBHRA - UARKETIR)

47 ERMEMKREBE2015F128

47 Possible impact of amendments, new standards

and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has
issued a few amendments and new standards which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2015 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group:

S1HIEFEAMMIER - AT W
HARBREAREENTE

BB mRAREMAH -

et ERIEE

GO M T EUEER] R AER] - B
HEZE2015F12A31BIEFEERAN - B

R IHRR TR
REE AR BRI Z A5 ¢

I EBIEIN TR

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after

BEUTRHR
&R
BEHHRENR

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 cycle
(BIBRAI T 3R 2R YR (20122 2014F EH)

Amendments to IFRs 10 and IAS 28, sale or contribution of assets between
on investor and its associate or joint venture
(BB B s 4ERI) E5105% R BB 285k B ET -
EREZHAWE NG SR FZ FABEHETKA

Amendments to IFRs 11, Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations

(ERABIRELER) FRNERT] - S ERFF R RBEE

Amendments to IAS 1, Disclosure initiative
(BB GRHER) FRMNIEET - KEEZ

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, Clarification of acceptable
Methods of depreciation and amortization

(BRREER) FA6SE N FEIBRANER] - 7T E M IH A A 2 X TZA)EE

Amendments to IAS 27, Equity method in separate financial statements

(B EFHER) FTRMER] BB EHE P A #E %

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts from customers

(RS BREER]) F155% - K EFLAIE FAIKA

IFRS 9, Financial instruments

(BRABREER]) FO% 28 TA

IFRS 16, Leases
(BRI mELER) F16% - HE

1 January 2016
20161818

1 January 2016
20165F1A1H
1 January 2016
20165F1H1H

1 January 2016
2016F1A1H

1 January 2016
201651 71H

1 January 2016
20161 A1H

1 January 2018
2018%F1A1H

1 January 2018
2018F1A1H

1 January 2019
201951 A1RH

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

ANEE B T E ARG AE Lt

fE5] - FaTm%E

ARFRERNE R AEENMELER

2 - AARARAEMTH
RELEAFE -

BEEH B PR
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Optimizing the Asset Structure

The Group plans to adjust its asset structure and withdraw from industries and projects in which
the Group does not have competitive advantage. On one hand, the Group seeks to dispose of
unprofitable projects and businesses and concentrates on enhancing its core businesses. On
the other hand, the Group intends to strengthen the development of new energy projects, such
as wind and solar power stations, and the preparation works of operational projects for coal-fired
power stations and enlarge the scale of its general contracting for green power stations and EMC
businesses.

Strengthening Technology Development

The Group intends to accelerate the industrial application of new technologies to improve
its capability of utilizing the technological innovation to meet the demands of the Group’s
development. The Group intends to put together its high-quality resources and enhance its
technological potential to achieve the breakthrough in its core businesses. Meanwhile, the
Group expects to offer incentives for scientific and technological innovations, and motivates the
technical personnel of the Group by connecting the remunerations of the technical personnel to
the profits of science and technology projects

Enhancing Service Innovations

The Group expects to establish a supportive system for service innovations. Regarding clients’
demands as the guidelines, the Group intends to integrate advanced technologies from every
area of its business, innovate its business model and improve the ability to adapt to the ever-
changing market. The Group intends to assist Beijing Guodian Sida Technology Co., Ltd., a
subsidiary of United Power, to enhance the WTG repair and maintenance service business, in
order to transform its business from manufacturing to integrated system design and provision of
integrated solutions. The Group also intends to accelerate the upgrading of services in information
service companies, creating new business models and providing value-added services.

Expanding Market

The Group divides the market into the market within the Guodian Group, the power market
outside of the Guodian Group, the non-electric power market outside of the Guodain Group
and the overseas market. The Group will analyze the capacity and business rules of each
market, focusing on efficiency and profitability, make diversified marketing strategies, seize
every market change, integrate its market resources and enhance its market competitiveness
comprehensively

Strengthening centralized management and control

The Group intends to further increase its efficiency by improving its centralized management.
The Group will focus on the financial indicators, emphasize on meeting targets and strengthen
its management in 2015. The Group expects to further improve the internal control system by
means of, among others, strengthening centralized purchasing of goods, enhancing budget
management, optimizing designs and production and improving financial management.
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31 Jan 2015 Yu Zhengsheng, a member of the Politburo Standing Committee and the chairman of the Chinese People's
Political Consultative Conference, paid a visit to Guodian United Power Technology (Baoding) Co., Ltd.
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GUODIAN TECHNOLOGY & ENVIRONMENT GROUP CORPORATION LIMITED*
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(a joint stock limited liability company incorporated in the People's Republic of China)

Stock Code {3455 : 01296
www.01296.hk

IERmIEEERAMNEREHE 16 555 1 5712
Building No. 1, Block No. 16 Xi Si Huan Zhong Road,
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